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IGas Energy is a leading British

oil and gas explorer and developer,
producing ca. 3,000 boepd from over
100 sites across the country, with
significant potential still to be
delivered from our assets.

IGas is extremely well positioned for the
future as we move doser to unlocking Britain’s
untapped unconventional oil and gas resources.

Our own technical studies support the

view, recently substantiated by the British
Geological Survey estimates, that our North
West licences have a very significant shale gas
in-place volume. This in turn, has the potential
to transform the company, create value for
our shareholders and materially benefit

the communities in which we operate.

For more information visit’
www.igaspic.com
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Highlights

Revenue - 12 months to 31 March 2013

Operational highlights

£

£68.3 milion

Production - vear to 31 March 2013

o

£

01,540boe”

* Includes one month's production from P R Singleton

Number of staff

»
»

¥ ow

162
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Financial highlights? *

Revenue of £68 3m (2012 £22 1m})

Total Production ¢902mboe (2012 ¢280mbaoe}
EBITDAS of £319m (2012 £13 0m)

Underlying operating profits of £22 Tm (2012 £5 4m)

» Net cash from operating actwities £28 9m (2012 used

b
»

¥
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Finanaal Statements

In operating activity £2 6my}

Net debt” of £77 4m (2012 £67 1m)
Refinancing of Macquarie delot through $165m
Syr bond issue

Successful placing of £23 tm gross in January

Adusted for preduction {production i the six month pericd to 20 Jure 2012

of 0 46mmstb)

For further detail on the range of estimates see table in Appraisal of wider
resources 1n the CEQ Review

On 28 February 2013, the Company completed the acquisiion of PR Singleton
from Providence Resources pic and therefore the 2013 results reflect one
maonth s contributicn from PR Singleton

The figures for 2012 reflect the 15 month perod to 31 March 2042 The Star Energy
acgutsition completed on 14 December 2011 and therefore the March 2012 results
reflect only 3 5 manths of results from Star Energy
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acquisiion costs and impairment of explorauon and evaluation assets

Net debt 15 borrowings less cash and restnicted cash
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IGas Group at a Glance

Our areas of operation

East Midlands

Weald Basin

North West/Staffs

In the East Midlands we have
two pnimary production areas:
Welton and Gainshorough.

Ol and gas has been produced in the
East Midlands since 1959 and current
production from this area accounts for
approximately 50% of the Group’s total
current production

The Welton area 1s made up of six fields
and a gathering centre where produced oll,
gas and water are separated The produced
ol 1s transported to Conaco Immingham
via road tanker Gas 15 used for power
generation and produced water 15 pumped
for reinjeciion

The Ganshorough/Beckingham area s
made up of 11 fields and a processing
facihity Qilis transported to Conoco
Immingham wia road tanker, gas is piped to
Gainsborough-1 for power generation and
produced water 15 pumped for renjection

Based in southem England, the
Weald Basin is the source of
approximately 50% of our
current production.

There are 11 fields ranging from
Stockbnidge, near Winchester, in the west to
Palmers Wood near Gatwick in the east and
now includes the Singleton field The area
has produced more than 29 milion barrels
of o1l to date Oilis collected by tanker from
our sites and transported to our processing
facilitres at Holybourne Here we have
storage for more than 20,000 barrels and

a rall terminal allowing us to transport our
products to local refineries by train We also
handle ol on behalf of other operators in
the area, proniding 1Gas with an additional
revenue stream

in the North West we have

nine onshore licences and one
offshore, located in the counties
of Cheshire, Flintshire and
Staffordshire, that contain the
Carboniferous Coal Measures
and Bowland-Hodder shales

The total area under licence in this region
15 1,259km? (approximately 311,000 acres),
with the Company owning 100% working
interest in all icences Our recent review of
300 square mules of this acreage gives an
estmate of Gas Iniually In-Place of up to
€a 170 Tcf', wath an average mid case in
place volume of ca 340 Bcf/square mile
ranging from 93 Bcf/square mile to

677 Befisquare mile

1 For further detall on the range of estmates
see tablein Appraisal of wider resources
sn the CEQ Review
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A Year in Review

Key milestones

During the year our “Chase the Barrels” initiative has identified
numerous opportunities to enhance production and recovery,
for example, field optimisation models have been developed
which help highlight production efficencies and identify

fost production opportunities.

April 2012

Encouraging results from interpretation
of logs from Ince Marshes-1

July 2012

Robin Pinchbeck appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director

September 2012

Signed Heads of Terms Agreement with
Providence Resources to acquire PR
Singieton Limited for US$66m

December 2012

Establishment of the government’s new
Office of Unconventional Gas and Qi

Department of Energy & Climate
Change (“DECC") Iifts the restrictions
on hydraulic fractuning

Cuth McDowell appointed to the Board
as Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee

January 2013

Successful fundraising of ca £23m
at 95p per share

February 2013

Completion of the acquisition
of PR Singleton Limited from
Provtdence Resources

March 2013

Arrangement of a five year US$165m
senior secured bond

April 2013

Confirmed plans to spud two
exploration wells in the North West
subject to results and permitting

May 2013

Institute of Directors (“loD") ssues
‘Getting Shale Gas Working' report

June 2013

Announced our shale Gas Initially in-Place
(“GIIP"} estrmates for North West acreage

British Geological Survey ‘The
Carboniferous Bowland Shale gas study
geology and resource estimation’ released

UKOOG Community Engagement
Charter signed

Government announces package of
community incentives, guidelines on
permitting and pltanning and launches
consultation on tax mcentives in
support of the industry
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Gas from Shale

The unlocked opportunity for Britain

“Shale gas could represent a multi-billion pound investment, create
tens of thousands of jobs, reduce iImports, generate significant tax
revenue and support British manufacturing. It could potentially meet
a third of the UK'’s gas demand with a very small surface footprint,
benefitting the environment at the same time.”

Source oD Report  Getting Shale Gas Working

IGas - helping to unlock Britain's shale
gas potential

Britain has a hentage of onshore and
offshore ol and gas production that
dates back to 1851, and one that has had
a profeund effect on the economy of the
country From the wartime exploration of
onshore oil, through to the development
of the largest onshore ol and gas field n
Europe at Wytch Farm in Dorset, the UK
has had a gold standard of safe operation
of ot and gas fields across the country

IGas 15 currently the operator of the

largest number of onshore olf and gas
wells in Britain Cil and gas has been safely
explored, developed and produced at our
sites for over 40 years

Now IGas 15 set to be a key player in

the development of previously untapped
British resources in the form of natural

gas contained within shate formations
underneath Britain Our management and
techmical teams are well placeg to take this
next step in onshore energy production,
which has the potential to deliver economic
and sooal benefits across the country

Delivering for the British economy
Natural gas from shale 1s potentially a

major asset for Britamn The most recent
study by the British Geological Survey
('BGS") confirmed that there are estimated
to be 1,300 trithon cubic feet (“Tcf") of shale
gas resources lying under the North of
Engtand, a significant upwards revision of
previous estimates Our own studies show
that within 300 square miles of our licence
areas, between Manchester and Liverpool,
there 1s gas in-place of up toca 170 Tef’
With Britain's total gas use of ca 3 Tcf a year
and impaorts running at 15 Tcf per year and
nsing, 1115 clear this 1s a maternal national
resource and has the potental to make a
significant impact for the naton The size

of the recoverable resources is imited by
factors such as technology and economics
Using the Institute of Directors (“loD ") report
estimates, of a recovery rate of 10%, this
resource could have the potential to make a
meanmingful contribution to the UK economy,
improving our balance of payments,
delivering tax revenues, economic growth,
and a significant number of johs

1 For further detail an the range of estenates
see table in Appraisal of wider resources
i the CEQ Review

Shale gas — an important part of our
energy mix

Gas from shale deposits could significanty
decarbonse the economy by moving the
energy generation mix away from coal
towards gas This has the potential to aid our
ability to meet our greenhouse gas emission
commitments The impact of shale gas in
decarbonising an economy has already

been experienced in the Unrted States

At 1Gas we want to play our part in
diversifying the UK's energy mix and
reducing our reliance on imported
rescurces An energy diverse Britain is
a secure Britain and gas from shale can
play its part in helping to bning stabihty
te the UK energy market and pricing
environment Transporting gas results
1in a higher carbon footprint than
domestically produced gas

“Gas import dependency could be

reduced from 76% to 37% by 2030~
Source loD Report ‘Getting Shale Gas Working'

Developing Bntam's shale gas resources
will complement, not replace, investment
in renewable energy

Clean and safe production

Whlst shale gas has the potential to offer
enarmous benefits, 1t 1s understandable
that many people have questions over
both its extraction and its production

Britain has one of the world's most
stringent regulatory regimes for onshore
and offshore ail and gas extraction

IGas always warks within this framework
and will continue to adhere to the strict
environmental and safety codes in the next
phase of the Company's development

The advent of the combunation of horizontal
driling and hydraulic fracturing has enabled
the successful development of shale gas
resources elsewhere in the world Both
these technologies have been used in Britain
for many years without incrdent and are well
understood by operators and regulators

Seismic activity

There are naiurally occurring seismic
movements documented on a daily basis
across Britain In March 2013 alone there
were 16 tremors across the Briush Isles of
greater ntensity than that picked up near
Blackpool and Fylde in 2011, attributed
to shale gas-driling

“Tremors of this level are not felt and
that incdent was the equivalent of

someone ‘jumping off a ladder’”
Source Professor Richard Davies from Durham
Umversity s Energy Institute

Some ane million wells have used hydraulic
fractunng worldwide since 1949 (Amencan
Petroleumn Institute), when the technique
was introduced There have been only a few
cases of minor sessmic activity inked to this
process and In no cases has it resulted i any
surface impact

“The health, safety and
environmental nsks associated
with hydraulic fractunng (often
termed ‘fracking’) as a means to
extract shale gas can be managed
effectively in the UK as long as
operational best practices are
implemented and enforced through
regulation Hydraulic fractuning
1s an established technology that
has been used in the oil and gas
industnes for many decades
The UK has 60 years’ expenence
of regulating onshore and

offshore ail and gas industries *
Source The Royal Society

Water quality

IGas considers the secunty of our water
supply to be paramount In Britain, we
operate under some of the world's strictest
regulations, as well as our own very high
safety and environmental standards Unlike
some parts of the US, in the UK there s
typically more than a mite of rock between
the shale beds and the averlying fresh water
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aquifer Hydraulic fracturing has been
carried out on over a million wells and
studies by the US Emvironment Protectron
Agency {"EPA") and the Ground Water
Protection Counall have confirmed no direct
Iink between hydraulc fracturing operations
and groundwater mpacts (American
Petroleum Institute) In February, we signed
up to the UKOOG indusiry guidelines
covering best practice for shale well
operations in the UK

The gudelines, which include hydraulic
fractunng and the public disclosure of
fracture fluid chermical composition, were
written by a high levet workgroup which
included operating and service comparies
with input from The Department of

Energy and Climate Change (*DECC"), The
Health and Safety Executive ("HSE"), The
Environment Agency ("EA"} and the Scottish
Envircnment Protection Agency (”SEPA’')

Environmental impact

As discussed, the introduction of shale

gas into the UK's energy mx could have a
positive effect on the UK's current emissions
levels, as has been the case n the United
States Not only will domestically produced
gas have lower emissions than imported gas
but electricity generated from gas results

In half the level of CO, emissions than that
generated by burning coal, which currently
accounts for 31% of Britain’s generating
capacity Developing our shale gas resources
will help us move away from coal fired
generation, complement not replace
nvestment in renewable energy and

help to make a meaningful impact

wn decarbonising our economy

Between 2005 and 2010, US CO, emissions
fell by 403 milion tonnes, greater than the
318 milhion tonne fall in the EU over the
same penod Between 2005 and 2012,

US electricity generation from coal fell

by 25%, while electriity generation

from natural gas rose by 62% and from
renewables by 38% Source loD Report
Getting Shale Gas Working

“If production 1s well regulated,
shale gas can have lower emissions

than imported LNG ”
Source oD Report  Getting Shale Gas Working

One of Bntain's advantages 1s the density
of our shale resources In certain areas, the
shale section in the UK 15 up o 10 times
the average thickness of that in America
meaning that from a single site above
ground it should be possible 1o extract far
more gas The loD has quoted that ‘100
pads would need 200 hectares’ across
Britatn This would equate (o an area of
only ca 500 acres, equivalent to the size of
the Trafford Centre in Greater Manchester

“A two-hectare site could potentially
support a 10-well pad and a
production phase of 100 such pads
would require just 200 hectares,

or two square kilometres *
Source loD Report ‘Getting Shale Gas Working’

Industry working with

local communities

A binding mdustry charter for UKOOG
members has been developed, covering
the minimum standards of engagement
required wath local communities alongside
a commuruty benefits scherne The Charter
sets out the minimum standards that
communities can expect from shale gas
operators that display the UKQQG logo
The Charter covers how operators will
commumicate and engage and also

makes commitments with respect ta local
logistics, adherence to health and safety
regulations, compliance with environmental
regulations, local needs and jobs The
benefits mechamsm 1s based on a 1%
share of revenue from producing wells,
before all costs of production are taken
nto account

1Gas 1s committed to its social licence to
operate, which means honest engagement
with, and commitment to, our
neighbouring communities
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Chairman’s Statement

Building our Company

“If we get this right,
in future | believe the
world could look to the
UK as the gold standard
for a well requlated and
safe shale gas industry
that benefits local
communities and
the nation.”

Dan Byles Member of Parliament
for North Warwickshire

and Bedworth

Charr, All-Party Parliamentary
Group for Unconventional

Gas and Qi

,E683 million

(Revenue)

Since | reported to you this ime last

year, 1Gas’ conventional production

has remained strong and the Company

15 at the heart of the UK’s shale revolution,
which has now been recognised by both
government and industry as having a
potentially major impact on the country

During the year, the strong performance
of our conventional assets continued,
augmented by the acquisiion of PR
Singleton in February This acquisition
further consolidated our position as a
leading onshore oil and gas company
across Britain and has given us a matenal
increase in both reserves and production

IGas has enjoyed solid growth as
demonstrated by its financial results with
revenues of £68 3m in the year compared
with £22 1m i the previous penod

Qur unconventional resources have also
had an important fillip from the active
support the Government I1s now giving

to shale gas in particular Since the lifting
of the restrictions on hydraulic fracturing
in December, we have seen a step change
tn the political backdrop and geological
understanding of shale gas in this country
The Department of Energy and Climate
Change ("DECC") has established the
Office of Unconventional Gas and

Otl, which aims to promote the safe,
respensible, and environmentaily soung
recovery of the UK's unconventional oil
and gas DECC published its own reportin
April, which acknowledged the substantial
benefits that shale gas can offer to the UK
Natural gas from shale has the potential to
transform the UK's energy market, boost
the economy, create thousands of jobs,
generate significant tax revenues, reduce
our rehance on imgorted gas and reduce
CO, emissions by allowing a move from
coal to gas fired electricity generation

The recent news that Centnca, Britain's
biggest energy prowider with the largest
retarl supply business in this country, has
acquired a 25% interest in the Bowland
exploration licence {PEDL165), in Lancashire
from Cuadnlla Resources Ltd and AJ Lucas
for £100m n cash and future commitments,
1s a significant step forward for onshore oil
and gas development in Great Britain

With the political environment surrounding
shale gas 1n the UK developing positively,
the results of our recent studies of potential
shale gas in-place at our icences in the
North West, referred to further below, was
very timely, and highlights the significant
potential opportunity for 1Gas in this area
In addrtion to the main Bowtand basin,

we have also identified prospective shale
honizons across our licence areas in both
the East Midlands and the Weald Basin

Finanang

In January this year, we completed a
successful placing, with new and exsting
Institutional Investors, raising a total of

£23 ¥m(gross) Given the significant
developments around shale, we believed
the time was appropriate 1o ensure that

we were In a position to be able to further
demonstrate the potential of our resource
base ahead of any farm-out The proceeds
of the placing, along with cash flow from the
Company’'s conventional asset portfolio and
the Company's existing cash, will enable us
to conduct a work programme towards
achieving this objective

We also completed the arrangement
of a five year, US$165m sentor secured
bond which enabled us to refinance
the Company’s existing debt |

Board changes

During the year, we strengthened the
independence of the Board with the
appointments of Robin Pinchbeck and
Cuth McDowell as Nen-Executive Directors
Robin has 39 years of international
experience in the mdustry, having held a
range of leadership posiions in both the
oll and oii-services sectors Cuth McDowell
15 a hughly expertenced international
Exploration and Production executive

Richard Armstrong and John Hamilton,
both Non-Executive Directors, stepped

down during the penod and on behalf

of the Board | would like to thank them
both for therr valued contnbutians over
the last few years

People

A company 15 dependent upon its
management and employees for the
execution of its strategy, and on 1ts culture
for the way in which its results are achieved
We now employ over 160 pecple across the
business working in different environments
all of whom work to exacting standards

I would like to take this opportunity to
thank them all for the sterkng work they
do, and the care with which they do it
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Outlook

Since the year end, we have announced
the results of our studies of the shale under
our hcences in the North West, and have
shown a potential for gas in-place volumes
of up to ca 170 Tef' We must now
undertake further drilling to refine these
estimates and advance our understanding
of this significant patential shale basin

We will commence dnliing in the fourth
quarter of this year

It 1s )mportant to understand that we
have been safely exploring developing
and producing energy onshore at our
conventionat sites for four decades,
working sensitively and in collaboration
with focal communiiies throughout that
time We contnue to imform and engage
with these communities and are now
working within the new UKOQG Charter
to estabhsh how those communities can
recewve and share in the benefits that
shale gas may bring

We believe we have both the expenence
and the expertise to unlock the potential
of Britain’s untapped natural resources and
hefp to secure Britain's energy future while
creating value for our shareholders and
positively contnbuting to the economy

Francis Gugen
Non-Executive Chairman

1 For further detad on the range of esumaies
sea table in Appraisal of wider resources
in the CEQ Review
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Review

Harnessing our experience

"We move closer
to unlocking
Britain's untapped
unconventional
resources, whilst
continuing to deliver
on our conventional
assets.”

QOver the past 12 months we have had

a busy and productive year as evidenced
by our salid financial results We have also
made considerable progress in delivening our
strateqgic objectives As a result, we believe
we are extremely well positioned for the
future as we move closer to unlocking
Britain's untapped unconventianal
resources, whilst continurng to deliver

on our conventtonal assets, whichis

the foundation of our business

There have been sigrificant recent
developments in the UK with the lifting

of restnctions on exploration for shale gas
announced by the UK government on

13 December 2012 and the establishment of
the government's Office of Unconventional
Gas and QI In the Chancellor's Budget
statement, he outhined how the
government was looking to assist the
ndustry 1o take the next steps in assessing
this resource by bringing forward proposals
en respect 1o community benefits, planning
guidelines and appropriate taxation At the
time of writing the government has already
announced Its intention to introduce a
more streamlined planming process and

tax allowances and we continue to work
closely with all the relevant government
departments 1Gas has confirmed its
commitment to the recently launched
ndustry Charter which sets out the
minimum standards communities can
expect from operators We understand
further detail will be given by the
government later this month as part

of 1ts consultation process

The government's Energy and Chrate
Change Select Commuttee published

a Report 'The Impact of Shale Gas

on Energy Markets' in Apnl which
acknowledged the substantial benefits

to the UK that shale gas could offer It
concluded that natural gas from shale has
the potential to transform the UK's energy

market, boost the economy, create
thousands of jobs, generate significant

tax revenues and reduce our reliance on
imported gas The Committee itself 15 keen
10 see exploration proceed quickly In order
to vahdate current estimates and establish
the potential of shale gas in the UK

“The Government welcomes the
recent investment in the industry
by Centnca, which demonstrates the
attractiveness of the Bowland Shale

as an investment proposition”
HM Treasury, Investing in Britain s future’

In February, the United Kingdom

Onshore Operatars Group {("UKOOG"),

the representative body for UK onshore

oll and gas companies, was re-launched

to expand its scope to reflect the increased
importance of onshore ol and gas
exploration to the UK economy For the first
time, UKOOG published industry gurdelines
covering best practice for shale well
operations in the UK The guidelines, which
include hydraublic fractuning and the public
disclosure of fracture fluid composition,
were formed by a collaboration of operating
and service companies with input from The
Department of Energy and Climate Change
("DECC"), The Health and Safety Executive
("HSE"), The Environment Agency ("EA")
and the Scottish Environment Protection
Agency ("SEPA")

| am particularly pleased with the
progress we have made in developtng our
position in the exploration and evaluation
of unconventional resaurces In the UK
After the year end we anncunced the results
of our studies of the Lower Carbomferous
shale, mcluding the Bowland Shale, under
our 100% owned licences in the North
West of England We have estimated the
volume of Gas Imitally in-Place {(*GIIP™}
associated with the shales in the North
West, including the Bowland Shale,

could be up to as much as ca 170 Tcf’

1 Far further detaif on the range of estimates
see tablein Appraisal of wider resources
1n the CEQ Review
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As we expand further onshore all our
operations will continue to be run to the
highest standards of safety, rehiability and
enviranmental management working in
partnership with the communities in which
we operate We will continue to build our
capability by recruiting and retaining the
best people in the industry, and we will
continue to focus on performance and
delivenng on our strategy

Growing |Gas Energy

Stince the acquisition of Star Energy in
2011, the integration of which s now fully
complete, we have continued to grow the
business, acquinng PR Singleton Limited
from Prowidence Resources for US$66m
earlier in the year The assets included the
ownership of 100% of P.240, including
the Singleton field which 15 dose ta existing
IGas sites in the south of England, and
50% of PEDL 233 including the Baxter's
Copse and Burton Down frelds We were
already selling all the oIl produced at the
Singleton field on behalf of Providence and
therefore had a very good understanding
of the field and 1t's potential We see
considerable upside from Singleton
alongside the additional resources in
Baxter’s Copse and Burton Down fields
Current production frem the Singleton field
15 520 bopd The acquisition of Singleton
plays an important part in our ability to
explait our significant potential resources
by giving 1Gas a matenal increase in
reserves and production with the
associated cash flow to be used to
develop all of our assets across Britain

Importantly, in paraltel with our reserves
and resources growth, we have also grown
our professional team in both o1l and gas
operations and in our corporate group 1tis
particularly rewarding to see the number of
talented people |Gas 1s attracting This adds
significant capability to our business and
provides us with the professional skills

and experience to execute our operations
and iniiatves efhicaiently and to the best
industry standards To this end, we have
now centralised all our subsurtace, drilling
and land and planming staff in London
which will enable yet greater collaboration
between technical and operational teams
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review continued

In order to secure our atility to fund

aur future, and ensure that we are able
to further demonstrate the significant
potentual of our resource base, we
undertook refinancing projects in both
equity and debt in the course of the year
In January we raised £23 1m by way of

a placing of a total of 24,330,730 new
ordinary shares at a pnce of 95 pence
The proceeds of the placing, along

with cash flow from the Company’s
conventional asset portfolio, including
Singleton, will enable 1Gas to conduct
awork programme to further appraise
our shale assets and further demonstrate
the significant potenttal of our wider
asset base across the country

In March, we announced the arrangement
of a five year, US$165m senior secured
bond to reftnance our existing debt and
qive us addrwonal flexibility Subscribers
included mstitutions and banks in London,
Scandinavta and In the US

Production

Production through the penad (which
includes only one month's contribution
from Singleton) has continued to be robust,
with an average for the penod of 2,396
bopd and 2,470 boepd iotal production
including electricity generation This has
been achieved with imited capital
expenditure, with rates having been
sustained through active well services
management utilising 1Gas’ own
personnel and equipment

Our “Chase the Barrels” initiative has
identified numerous opportunities to
enhance productton and recovery, for
example, field opumisation models have
been developed which help ughlight
production efficiencies and identify

lost production opportunities A number
of speaific well apportunities have been
highlighted and these are being venfied
and priontised to form a series of
workover/remediation programmes o
unlock this additional potential (to date
ca 400 bopd has been identified)

Technical studies have also identified
additional opportuniues to add new
production and reserves, for example,
at Bletchingley-2 a recent extended well
test which flowed for 15 days atup to
4 4 MMsct/d (750 boepd) has identified
this accumulauon as a future gas
monetisation project which will be
progressed in 2013/14

A review of the portfoho illustrates the
potential in the asset base 25 of our
conventional fields are estimated to have
an in-place volume ("STONIP") of
approxmately 475 MMstb and the average
recavery factor for the portfolio 1s
approxmately 18% (ndwidual fields vary
between ca 5-55%) This suggests that
there stll remains a sigrificant volume

of oil to be recovered through detalted
analysis and the application of current
technology For example, we have recently
initated a comprehensive field study

of our Stockbrdge assets which is aimed
to identfy further upside in this

significant asset

Reserves growth

Following m-house technical studies

and continuing field performance 1in 2012,
a subsequent independent Competent
Persons Report issued in December 2012,
resulted in proven reserves growth of 30%
from 61 to 7 3 MMboe over the penod

1 January 2012 to 30 June 2012, adjusted
for production {production in the 6 month
period to 30 June 2012 of 0 46 MMstb)

In addiion, the acquisition of PR Singleton
Lirnited further added 4 3 mmboe of

1P reserves

Appraisal of wider resources
Significant progress continues 1o be made
on the unconventional resources of the
group both in terms of the subsurface
understanding and the clanfication by
government In respect to the regulatory
and planning process related to

shale development

Following completion of the Ince
Marshes-1 well, we conducted an
extensive evaluation programme of the
shale potential in our North West licences
This work has involved detalled seismic
analysts, including reprocessing many
kilometres of existing 2-D seismic, biostrat
and chemostrat studies, basin modeihng
as well as extensive petrophysical and
geomechamical studies using data from
existing wells across the Nosth West
Using the geological model constructed
by our techrical team, this data has been
analysed to give estimates of the reservor
charactenstics of the shale formations,
including the thickness of the shale

Based on this model, we have estimated
the volume of Gas Initially In-Place (“GIIP")
associated with the shales in the North
West, including the Bowland Shale

Most
Gl Low likely High
Tef 151 1020 1723

These estimates cover an area of 300
square miles giang an average mid case
In place volume of ca 340 Bcf/sguare mile
with a range of 93 Bcf/square mile to 677
Bcf/square mile across the (Gas North
West acreage

We wifl commence a dnlling programrme
later in the year, in the North West, which
will help to further refine these estimates
and advance qur understanding of this
shale basin Long lead items such as
wellheads and casings have now been
ordered and negotiations with driling
and related service companies are nearing
completion Background monitoring and
base lne surveys n advance of dnlling
have already commenced

We will also, in due course, carry out
further analysis and reinterpretation of
existing seismic and subsurface data to
evaluate the potentially prospective shale
resources in the East Midlands and
Weald Basin hicence areas
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The Doe Green piiot Coal Bed Methane
{“CBM") site continues to produce gas and
generate electnaity All three production
wells, each of which 15 testing a separate
seam, demonstrate that gas is flowing from
the seams The development of our CBM
resources will be inked to and dependent
on the progress made In demonsirating
our shale resources

Working with local communities

IGas has a leng track record of engaging
with neighbourtng communities Our
workforce lives and works in the areas In
which we operate, so the strength of our
relationships with local residents 15 vital to
us In all areas, we work with local people
through our Community Liaison Groups to
ensure that our actmties are understood
and lead to reat benefits for alf We operate
these groups before and dunng the
pianning process and throughout our
operations we are committed o

n-depth and meaningful consultation

and engagement

We have committed to distribute several
hundred thousand pounds a year in
community projects in parishes adjacent
to our sites, through an independently
managed community fund Details of our
fund and some examples of the projects
we have funded can be found in the
Corporate Socal Resporsibility section of
this Annual Report

Since the year end, we were pleased to
formalise our existing work in communities
by signing up to the UKOOG Community
Engagement Charter This binding
industry charter 15 a commitment 10 the
communities that we work with ensunng
that they understand what we are doing,
how we are doing it and the steps we wall
take to mitigate concerns they may have
around safety and the environmental
impact of our operations

Health and Safety

We continue to work extremely hard

to ensure that our presence makes a
meaningful and postive contribution

to the areas in which we operate and

15 sustainable over the long term, core to
which 15 our commitment to operate safely
and rehably There has been a low number
of Lost Time Injunies (“LTIs") i the year
and we are committed to mimmising
these incidents

Outlook

The conventional fields remain a wital part
of our business strategy and we have an
active programme of investrment to identify
incremental opportuniues to enhance
production and grow our reserve base

The *Chase the Barrels” iniative has
started to bear frurt and we will continue
this imbative in the forthcorming year

The recent pubhcation of new figures
from the British Geological Survey ("BGS”)
have indicated that the amount of shale
resources In an area stretching from
Lancashire to Yorkshire and down to
Lincolnshire could held at least 1,300
trithon cubic feet of gas The results of

our own technical study, (in the Narth
West, supports our view that these licences
have a very significant shale gas resource
with the potential to transform the
Company and matenally benefit the
communities in which we operate

We are very excited about the future of
the onshore oil and gas industry in this
country and look forward to developing
this potentially strategically rmportant
Fesource In conjunction with the
communities in which it is found,

in the coming manths and years

Andrew Austin
Chief Executive Officer

“The Government is
committed to ensuring
that a world-leading
framework for investment
is in place so that if the
conditions are right the
industry can prosper.”

HM Treasury ‘Investing in Britain s future”
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Chief Financial Officer’s

Review

The year ended 31 March 2013 has

been another extremely active year for the
1Gas Group, through the equity financing
in lanuary 2013, the completion of the
acquisiion of PR Singleton Limted

("PR Singleton”) in February 2013, and

the arrangement of a 5 year senior secured
US$165m Bond alongside a significant
amount of progress across our asset base

In January 2013, the Company raised

gross proceeds of £23 1m by issung 24 3m
shares at 95p, representing approximately
15% of the enlarged 1ssued ordinary share
capital of the Company The placing
followed the developments n the UK with
the fting of restnctions on exploitation

of shale gas announced by the UK
government on 13 December 2012 and the
establishment of the government's Office
of Unconventional Gas and Qil The Board
beheved it appropnate to ensure that the
Company was able to further demonstrate
the significant potential of its
unconventional resource base prior to

any farm-out The equity fundraising

also brought in a number of new
nsttutional investors to the

Company’s shareholder register

Year to 15 months to

31 March 20131 31 March 20122

Revenues £68 3m £22 1m

EBITDA3 £319m £13 0m

Underlying operating profit* £22 1m £5 4m

MNet loss (£18 4m) (E12 1m)

Net cash from/ {used in) operating activities £28 9m (£2 6m)

Net debt® (£77 4m) (£67 1m)

Net assets £59 1m £55 0m
Notes

1 On 28 February 2013 the Company completed the acquisiton of PR Singleton from Providence Resources plc
and therefore the 2013 results reflect one month s contribution from PR Singleton

2 The figures for 2072 reflect the 15 month penad to 31 March 2012 The Star Energy acquisiion completed on
14 December 2011 and theretore the March 2012 resulis reflect only 3 S months of results from Star Energy

3 EBITDA relates 10 earnings betare net finance costs tax depleuon deprecaton and amort:sation

4 Underiying operating proit excludes the profits/flossest on ol price swaps acquisition costs and impairment

of exploration and evaluation assets
5 Netdebt s borrowings less cash and restnicted cash

On 28 February 2013, the Company
completed the acquisition of PR Singleton
from Providence Resources ple following
fulfilment of the conditions precedent and
approval from the Department of Energy
and Climate Change ("DECC”) The
acquisition of PR Singteton further
consalidated the Company's positton

as a leading anshore oil and gas

company across Britain

The acquisition of PR Singleton gave the
Company a matenal increase in reserves
and preduction and was an important
element in the overall refinancing of the
Company and the issue of a five year,
U5$165m senior secured bond, which was
announced on 14 March 2013 The bonds
have a fixed interest rate of 10% per
annum and semi-annual amortisation of
2 5% of the imibal loan amount Dunng
Apnl 2013, following satsfaction of all
cenditions precedent, 1Gas drew down
153165m from escrow and repaid the
outstanding loan balances and closed out
all remaning hedges with Macquarie
(Completion of the Refinancing) 1Gas will
apply for the bonds to be listed on the
main Board of the Oslo Stock Exchange
and this 15 expected to take place

during September

Income Statement’

The Group recorded revenues of £68 3m
in the year (2012 £22 im) The Group
completed the acquisition of PR Singleton
on 28 February 2013 and therefore the
income statement includes only one
month’s contribution from Singleton

N these results

Group production in the year was 901,540
boe, representing an average of 2,470
boepd (2012 2,615 boepd) If the Group
had owned PR Singleton since 1 Aprl 2012,
Group production would have averaged
2,910 boepd for the year ended

31 March 2013

The average realised price per barrel
pre-hedge was £69 4 (U5$109 6) (2012
£73 4 (US3$117 0)) with narrow discounts
to Brent continuing to be achieved After
taking into account the cash effect of
hedging, which amounted to an average
of £6 9 (US$10 9) per barrel, the average
realised ail price was £62 5 (US$98 7)
(2012 £651 (US$103 2)) per barrel

Cost of sales of £38 Om (2012 £12 Om),
includes depreciation, depletion and
amortisation ("D,D&A") of £10 0m (2012
£3 2mj) and operating costs of £28 tm
(2012 £8 8m) including £7 0m In relation
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to third party oil (2012 £1 8m) Cperating
costs per barrel of oil equivalent ("boe”)
were £216(2012 £199), excluding the
third party costs These costs include
transportation costs of £3 15/boe {2012

£3 30/boe} and the costs of our weli service
team of £2 89/boe (2012 £2 64/hoe)

Administrative expenses were £8 4m (2012
£50m) A charge for the impatrment of
exploration and evaluation assets of £1 im
(2012 £mil) was incurred during the year
followang the relinguishment of PEDL115,
an exploration icence in Staffordshire
Profit on oll price swaps was £0 9m

(2012 loss £18 5m)

Other income amounted to £0 2m

(2012 £0 2m} Net finance costs amounted
t0 £27 9m (2012 £1 7m) including £9 2m
of interest (2012 £3 2m), net foregn
exchange losses of £3 3m (2012 gan

£0 3m), loss on revaluation of warrants
£54m (2012 gain £1 7my), early settlement
fees in relation to the loan assumed in the
Singleton acquisition of £1 4m (2012 £rul}
and unamortised Macquarie debt costs
written off of £76m (2012 £nil) Net
finance costs excluding ‘one-off’ costs?
amounted to £12 9m (2012 £2 7m)

Gross profit of £30 3m was recognised
in the year {2012 £10 1m) with underiying
profit? of £22 1m (2012 £5 4m)

Cash Flow

Cash generated from operating activiies
n the pertod amounted to £28 9m
(2012 cash used £2 6m)

On 15 January 2013, the Company raised
gross proceeds of £23 1m by issuing 24 3m
new crdinary shares, as detailed above

Cn 28 February 2013, the Company
completed the acquisition of PR Singleton
from Providerce Resources pic for £42 2m
{including assumed borrowings) which was
financed through addittonat borrowang of
£21 4m from Macquane with the balance
from the Group’s existing cash balances

Duning the year, the Group repaid £16 7m
{US$26 3m) of debt principal in addition
to interest of £6 7m {US$10 6m}

The Group incurred capital expenditure of
£3 6m in the year ended 31 March 2013
(2012 £18 5m)

Balance Sheet

The Group’'s non-current assets Increased
by £50 1m during the perniod to £231 4m,
prinapally due to the acquisition of PR
Singletons The PR Singleton acquisition
has been accounted for as a business
combination by the acquisition method

of accounting with an effective date of

28 February 2013, being the date the Group
gained control of PR Singleton Goodwill
of £10 8m was added to the balance sheet
due to the acquisiion of PR Singleton

The timing of the Completion of the
Refinancing, being completed post year-end,
resulted in significant termparary effects

on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2013
which unwound in Apnl 2013 following the
comptetron of the bond A pro forma
consohdated balance sheet 15 set out In Note
28 — Subsequent Events’ of the Consohdated
finanaial statements to show the balance
sheet as if the bond issue had completed

as at 31 March 2013

tn accordance with IFRS, the monies
received from the bond on 22 March 2013,
and which were held in escrow at the
balance sheet date principally to repay the
outstanding loan balance with Macquarie,
have been recognised within current assets
as ‘Other Financial Assets — Restricted
Cash’ The outstanding loan balance with
Macquane as at 31 March 2013, has been
recognised within current liabilities as
"Borrownngs-Macguane’, and the bond
was recognised princpally within long term
habihties - ‘Borrowings-Bond® On 10 Apni
2013, the Bond monies were released from
escrow and the outstanding loan balance
wath Macquarie was repaid in full At the
same ume all ouistanding oil and interest
rate swap hedges with Macquarie were
cancelled at a cost of £10 7m {US$16 2m)
Shortly thereafter, 1Gas entered into new
hedging arrangements by acquinng puts
for ca 450,000 barrels at US$90 O/barrel
and ca 450,000 barrels at £58 8/barrel
with maturities over the penod to 31
March 2014 Going forward, the Board
will seek to underpin the Group's future
cash flows by buying puts for baselne
production for at least the following

12 menths

As reflected in Nate 28 — Subsequent
Events of the Consolidated financial
statements, had the full Bond issue
been compleied as at 31 March 2013,
the current assets would have reduced
by £96 6m and the current habilities
by £102 Om, a net current asset
impact of £5 4m

Net debt, being borrowings less cash and
restricted cash, at the year-end amounted
to £77 4m Transaction costs of £2 8m
associated with the debt are offset against
the drawn debt within the balance sheet
and will be recogrised over the life of the
loan n accordance with the Group's
accounting pohcies

A deferred tax charge of £12 5m

has been incurred for the year which

has been created by the recogrution of
certain tax losses and other temporary
timing differences wathin the Group This
has increased the deferred tax liability to
£40 2Zm as at the balance sheet date As at
31 March 2013, the Group has corporation
tax losses of £49m and supplementary
charge losses of £25m carned forward

Stephen Bowler
Chief Finanaal Officer

1 On 28 February 2013 the Company completed
the acquisition of PR Singleten from Providence
Resources ple and therefore the 2013 results
reflect one month s contribution from PR Singleton
The figures for 2012 reflect the 15 month penog
10 31 March 2012 The Star Energy acquisition
completed on 14 December 2011 and therefore
the March 2012 results reflect only 3 5 months
of results from Star Energy

2 Net finance costs excluding one-off casts excludes
loss on interest rate swaps lossAgain) on warranss
early settlement fees in relation to the loan
assumed in the Singleton acquisiion and
unamortised Macquarie debt costs written
aff under amortised cost

3 Uncerlying operating profit excludes the prafits/
(lesses} on ol price swaps acquisition costs and
charges for exploration and evaluation assets
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Commiitted to the environment

“We want to build on
our community heritage
continuing to provide
jobs and grow local
economies

Summary

At Gas, we are commutted to the
environment, our employees and the
communittes i which we operate

During the year we have worked in
collaboration with Community Liaison
Groups, Planning officials, the Health and
Safety Executive, (“HSE") the Ervironment
Agency (°EA”), the government
Department of Energy & Chmate Change
("DECC") and the United Kingdom Onshore
Operators Group (*UKOQG"), to ensure
alt aur stakeholders have a thorough
understanding of our activities We are
cammitted to being aligned in our work
with these organisations to ensure the
development cf, and further investment
in, the anshore ol and gas sndustry

Working collaboratively with the wider
industry and associated partners means
that together we can continue 10 support
the regional and local economies and
ensure Britain's future energy secunty

Since the hfting of the restrictions on
exploration for shale gas n December 2012
and the estabhishment of the Office of
Unconventional Gas and O1l, UKQOG

has established a Community Engagement
Charter, setting out guiding principles

to ensure open and transparent
commumications between industry,
stakeholder groups and the communities
in which we operate

Openness and transparency s at the heart
of everything we do as a company and as
awider industry The UKQOG Charter will
ensure we, as an operator, continue to be
aligned to the needs of the community

Qur people

Our workforce 15 an integral and cnitical
part of every aspect of our business and

a key focus is developing the skills of our
team We are canscious of the role we

can play in helping to support focal
employment and the local economy

We currently have five employees at
different stages of ther apprenticeships
with IGas Including managers and
supervisors, we have over 90 employees
engaged (n production, maintenance and
well servicing operattons across our sites
Of these, more than 30 have in excess of
15 years' service with the company and
collectively, including trainees and
apprentices, average service 1s over 10
years Our drivers and vehicle mamtenance
team average over 12 years’ service This
provides us with a solid base of knowledge
to progress our operations Into the future
with a significant understanding of the
geology and with a deep understanding of
the communities and the environment in
which we operate

We are committed not only to developing
our people and continuing 1o IMprove our
internal skills but also to provide a positive
and safe working environment for all

staff and contractars
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Report continued

SCHOOL ALLOTMENT BOOSTED
Penketh South Primary School in Chestire
has received £4,000 from the community
fund towards a greenhouse and raised
planting beds for 1ts allotments Residents
from a neighbouring care home jain pupis
in growing vegetables which are used in
the school kitchen and sold to further
fund the praject

Our community

IGas has a long track record of engaging
with the communities in which it operates
We are a Briush business and our
workforce largely ives and works in the
areas in which we operate which helps
build the strength and the quality of

our relationship with local residents

Local engagement

We are committed to ensuring we work
with the neighbounng communities at
each of our operating locations through
our local ilson groups, ensurmg
transparency and an opportunity for open
and effective dialogue We recognise that
we are a part of the community and we
are committed to In-depth and meaningful
consultations, working together with the
aim to bring real benefits to the area

and address any concerns Thes local
engagement occurs both before and
during the planning process and continues
throughout the Iife of the development

UKOOG Charter

In June the industry body, UKOOQG,
announced a charter for community
engagement The Charter exsts to ensure
open and transparent communications
between industry, stakeholder groups and
the communities in which they operate

Its objectives, to which we fully subscribe,

are threefold

* todentify and proactively address local
1ssues and concerns,

» to facibtate the sustainable development
of extractive resources, and

« 1o achieve an appropniate balance
between the safe production of energy
and the community’s needs

POOL MADE SAFE

A £15 000 grant from the company's
community fund has resulted in much
needed repairs to the local swimming
pocl at Shere in Surrey The pool s a
papular facility amangst people from
villages close to the IGas wellsite at
Albury There had been growing concern
abaut the dangers of the previously
uneven pool surreund

All operators displaying the UKOOG

logo will have to adopt these as minimum
standards and will be measured against them
on a regular basis Each operator will report
annualty to UKOOG on their performance
and UKOOQOG will produce and pubhish an
annual ndustry report on tts website

Full details of the UKOQG Charter can
be found at www ukoog org uk

1Gas 15 a signatory to this charter

IGas Energy Community Fund

The IGas Energy Community Fund 1s a
further commitment we make towards
the witality of the communities in which
we operate Qur Community Fund has
committed to distribute several hundred
thousand pounds a year to projects that
are chantable, educational or benevolent
In purpose It Is an independently managed
fund with projects being chosen by
members from community groups

and pansh councils from areas in,

and adjacent to, our operations

These projects am to benefit groups

of people within the local communities

as well as wildlife and the surrounding
environment Projects have supported
children and young people, vulnerable
members of our communities, regeneration
projects, self-help groups delivering basic
services, wildlife projects and projects
providing education and skills

development opporiunities

Qver recent years, the fund has
helped projects ranging from nature
reserves to playgrounds We provided
funds to lay on water to a church in
Hampshire to enable 1t to be used

for wider community gatherings

At Albury in Surrey, grants have helped
the pansh counci to bring about a series
of improvements to enhance the overall
village environment

Currently, we are supporting three separate
projects where people In rural communitres
want to buy potentially ife-saving
emergency equipment in places where

999 crews will take time to respond

Further projects are described in the case
studies above

Employee volunteenng

and engagement

The soaal investment we make through
our Community Fund 1s complemented by
employee engagement Many of our team
at IGas have independently raised therr
own funds for charties We adrmire their
commitment and intiative towards looking
after each other and our communities
and encourage their efforts wath matched
funding Charities which the team at

|Gas have supported include a number

of cancer foundations induding the
Everyman Foundation

Our health, safety and security

The secunty, health and safety of our
waorkforce 15 of paramount importance
and an integral part of everything we
do A positive, safe and productive work
environment for all of our team comes
from ensuring the contribution of each
team member towards building and
sustaining a strong safety culture

We conduct routine assessments of our
operating standards and review on an
on-going basis our faclity HSE and ER
Plans These inciude nsk assessments and
mitigatron that extend from site faciliies
to considenng issues within the local
geographucal area
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In terms of site safety, we have Emergency
Preparedness and Response arrangements
and Incident Response and Reporting
processes in place We place great
importance in ensurning the effectiveness of
our response, and the ultimate safety and
secunty of our site personnel and others
who may be affected by our activities

Cur Management System 15 aligned to the
requirenents of the occupational health
and safety standard OH5AS 18001, and we
rema:n committed to pursuing certfication
to this standard

Qur Lost Time Inyuries {"LTIs™) for 2012
continue to dechine, which is a result of our
continued commitment to safe operations

Our environment

We have successfully extended our
certification to the Quality Management
standard 15Q 9001, and the Environmental
Management standard, ISO 14001 through
our on-going commitment O maintaiming
the requirements of these standards

Our mandatory envirenmental operating
standards are apphed to all operating
facihities Imtial nsk assessments are
conducted, along with baseline surveys,
applying impact mitigation throughout
all phases up to site restoration

Qur desire to sustain and enhance

the environments in which we operate
means that we work in collaboration wath
organisations Involved In protecting locat
flora and fauna including, for exampte, The
Royal Society for Protection of Birds

“We have been
embedded with our local
communities for decades
and we seek to work
collaboratively, which is
why we consult at every
stage of our projects.”
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Board of Directors

Francis Gugen

Non-Executive Chairman

Francis 1s a founder and Non-Executive
Chairman and has over 30 years’ ol and
gas industry expenence Between 1982
and 2000 he helped grow Amerada Hess
in North West Europe, ultimately becoming
CEQ Currently he 1s also Non-Executive
Chairman of Petroleum Geophysical
Services ASA and of Chrysaor Limited

and a board member of SBM Offshore NV,
all involved in conventional oil & gas Until
2006 he served as Non-Executive Chairman
of the start-up North Sea gas fields and
pipetines operator CH4 Energy Limited,
which was then disposed of for Euro
€224m He s past president of the UK
Offshore Operators Association, past chair
of the industnes representation on the UK
Government O1l & Gas Task Force (Pifot)
and past chair of the CBI's Environmental
Affairs Committee Francis 1s a chariered
accountant having worked for Arthur
Andersen for eight years until 1982,
principally as an oil and gas specialist

Andrew Austin

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew 1s a founder of IGas, has been

an Executive Director since 2004 and the
Chief Executive Officer for the last five
years with full time responsibility for

the day to day operations and business
development Prior to joining 1Gas, Andrew
has been involved in a number of ventures
as principal, speaialising In energy projects
in the gas, electricity and renewable
sectors with a track record of rassing
substantial funding from both private

and public equity Andrew 1s responsible
for the transformation of 1Gas from

a non-gperating partner to delivering
matenal hydrocarbon production to
Britain’s energy market
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John Blaymires

Chief Operating Officer

John has 30 years of international
expenence in the oil and gas industry
gained with Hess Corporation and Shell
International Before joining 1Gas he was
Director of Technotogy Devefopment for
Hess based in Houston, where he helped
develop a global engineering and
geoscience technology group responsible
for providing support across the E&P
business, from deepwater to uncorventional
resources Prior to that John was Techmical
Director for Hess' operations 1n West Africa,
and subsequently South East Asia with
responsibility for several major oll and gas
developments John has a BSc and PhD in
Mining Engineering from Leeds University

Robin Pinchbeck

Non-Executive Director

Rob has 39 years of international
experence In the oif and gas sector,

having held leadership posiions in both

ol and ail-services sectors with BP, Atlantic
Power, PGS and most recently, with
Petrofac Limited where he founded and

led the Operations Services division and
subsequently served as Group Director of
Strategy Past non-executive roles include
Sondex plc, SLR Consulting Ltd, Enquest plc
and international ol services company
Sparrows Offshore Ltd, where he served

as Charrman from 2008 until 2012

He 1s currently a Non-Executive Direcior at
AlM-listed Enteq Upstream plc and unlisted
Seven Energy International Limited

Stephen Bowler

Chief Financal Officer

Steve, started his career at Touche Ross,
now Deloitte, where he qualified as a
¢hartered accountant having spent time
in both their audit and corporate finance
divisions In 1999, Steve joned ABN Amro
Hoare Govelt, now Jefferies Hoare Govett,
where he acted as adviser and broker to a
wide range of compamies with a particular
focus on E&P Steve joined [Gas on

1 Novermber 2011

Cuth McDowell

Non-Executive Director

Cuth has 33 years of nternational
experience in the ol and gas sector,

having held a range of leadership positions
in Exploration and Production He began
his career with BP where he held various
commeraal and management roles over
eight years Cuth then joined Clyde
Petroteum plc, imitially as Senior Economust,
subsequently becoming Graup Commeraial
Manager before Clyde was bought by

Gulf Canada In 1897, Cuth joined Paladin
Resources pic, where he served primanly
as Finance Director The company raised
£120m 1n {our separate primary offerings
before it was sold to Talisman Energy Inc
for approximately £1 2bn 1n 2006 Cuthis
currently a Non-Executive Director at Pitkin
Petroleum, a privately owned international
upstream oi and gas company

John Bryant

Senior Independent

Non-Executive Director

John is the Chairman of AlM listed
Weatherley International plc, and a

board member of AIM bisted China Africa
Resources Plc He was until recently a
board member of the Attiki Gas Company,
which supplies natural gas to Athens and
the surrounding districts John previously
served as president of Cinergy Global
Resources Corp, responsible for all
international business and global
renewable power operations of this US
based electniaity and gas utility prowider
Before joining Cinergy, John was Executive
Drector with Midlands Electricity plc

He has been involved in developing a
number of large gas fired power stations
both in the UK and overseas, together
with both electricity and gas distnbution
in Europe and Africa, renewable power

in Europe and North America and gas

and electnaty trading His prior experience
was at British Sugar plc, Drexel Limited, the
Bntish Oxygen Company and Unilever plc
Drexel, where he was president, was a
global ol and gas equipment manufactunng
and servicaing company John s a Fellow

of the Institute of Directors and a Fellow

of the Royal Society of Arts
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors support high standards of corporate
governance and the guidance set out In the UK Corporate
Governance Code As a Company that 1s quoted on AIM, it 5
not required o comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code
but all the Directors intend to comply wath s main provisions as
far as 1s practicable having regard to the size and composition

of the Group

The Board and its committees

The Board of the Company consists of three Executive Directors
and four non-executive directors, with Mr Bryant, Mr Pinchbeck
and Mr McDowell being considered to be independent The Senior
Independent non-executive director 15 John Bryant and biographies
of all the directors are included within this statement

The Board retains full and effective control aver the Group

The Board meets regularly, at least eight times a year, 10 consider
reports on the operational and financiai performance of the
Group and to decrde on matters reserved unto itself, which include
reviewing and approving the Group's strategy, budgets, major
nems of capital expenditure and semor personnel appointments

The Directors have established separate committees each chaired
by a non-executive director as follows

Audit committee

The committee comprises only non-executive directors, being

chaied by Cuth McDowell and having as other members John
Bryant and Robin Pinchbeck The Chairman and the Executive

Directors may attend only at the invitation of the committee

The committee receves and reviews reports from management
and the Group's auditors relating to the Group’s annual report and
accourts and to mtenm results announcements The committee
focuses particularly on comphance with legal requirements,
accounting standards and the AlM Rules and on ensuring that
effectve systems of internal financial and non-financial controls
{including for the managemenit of nsk and whistle-blowing) are
maintained However, the ultimate responsibility for reviewing

and approving the annual report and accounts remains with the
Board of Directors The commuttee 1s also responsible for making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the appointment of
the external auditors and their remuneration The committee keeps
under review the external auditors’ independence and considers
the nature, scope, and results of the audrtor's work and develops
policy on and reviews (reserving the night to approve) any
non-audit services that are provided by the external auditors

The committee normally meets at least three times a year and
meets the external auditors at least annually without the presence
of the Executive Directors

Remuneration committee

The committee comprises onfy non-executive directors, being
chared by John Bryant and hawving as other members Robin
Pinchbeck and Cuth McDowell The committee, which normally
meets at least twace a year, has responsibibty for making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the Company’s
policy on the remuneration of the Charman, Executive Directors
and other semor executives (as are delegated to the committee
to consider) and for deterrmining, within agreed terms of reference,
specfic remuneration packages for each of them, including
pension nights, any compensation payments and the
implementation of executwve ncentive schemes In accordance
with the committee’s terms of reference, no Director may
participate in discussions relating to their own terms and
conditions of service or remuneration

Nomination committee

The Nominauon commitiee is chared by the Charman,

Francis Gugen, and its other member 15 the Semor Independent
non-executive director, John Bryant The committee, which meets
as required throughout the year, has responsibility for considering
the size, structure and composition of the Board of Directors,
retirements and appointmenis of additional and replacement
Directors and making appropriate recommendations to the Board
of Directors The committee s also tasked with ensunng that plans
are In place for orderly succession to the Board of Directors and
senior management positions, 0 as to maintain an appropriate
balance of skills and expenence within the Group and the Board
of Directors The Chief Executive Officer of the Company 1s invited
to attend meetings of the commuttee when the committee s
discussing matters related to executive management and such
other matters as the commuttee charman deems appropriate

At each Annual General Meeting at least one-third of the Directors
shall retire fram office by rotation The Directors to retre by
rotation shall indlude, firstly, any Director who wishes o retire at
the meeting and not offer himself for re-election and, secondly,
thase Directors who have been longest in office since therr last
appomtment or reappointment, provided always that each Director
shall be required to retrre and offer himself for re-efection at least
every three years Directors apponted by the Board hold office
only untll the dissolution of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company nexs following such appointment

Internal control

The Board acknowledges that 1t 15 responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group's system of internal controls and reviewang
its effectiveness The procedures that include, inter alia, financial,
operational, health & safety, compliance matters and risk
management are reviewed on an on-going basis The internal
control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance agamst matenal misstatement or loss The Board has
considered the need for a separate internat audit function but,
bearing in mind the present size and composition of the Group,
does not consider it necessary ai the current time

UK Brnbery Act

IGas has reviewed the appropnate polictes and procedures
to ensure comphance with the UK Bribery Act The Company
continues actively to promote goed practice throughout the
Group and has initrated a rolhing programme of anti-bribery
and corruption training for all relevant employees

Relations with shareholders

Communications with shareholders are considered important

by the Directors The primary contact with shareholders, investors
and analysts is the Chief Executive Officer The other Executive
Directors, however, regularly speak to investors and analysts dunng
the year Company circulars and press releases have also been
issued throughout the year for the purpose of keeping investors
informed about the Group’s progress

The Company also maintams a website (www igasplc com) that is
regularly updated and contains a wide range of information about
the Group
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report explans our remuneration policy for Directors and sets out how decisions regarding Directors’ pay for the period under review
have been taken

Remit of the Remuneration committee
The remit of the Remuneration Commuttee (the “Committee") 1s provided in the Corporate Governance section

The Committee has engaged the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC") to provide wholly independent adwvice on executive
compensation and to assist the committee in the implermentation and evaluation of its long term incentive arrangements There were
no other services provided by PwC to the Group during the period

Remuneration paolicy

The Company’s policy 15 to maintain levels of remuneration sufficent to attract, motivate and retatn senigr executives of the tughest calibre
who can deliver growth in shareholder value Executive remuneration currently consists of basic salary, pensions, benefits, annual bonus
(based on annually set targets), and long term incentwves (to reward tong term performance) The Company seeks to strike an appropnate
balance between fixed and performance-related reward, therefore, the total remuneratton package is structured so that a significant
proportion 1s subject to the achievement of performance targets, farming a clear link between pay and performance The performance
targets are aligned to the key drivers of the business strategy, thereby creating a strong alignment of interest between executives

and shareholders

The Committee will continue to review the Company’s remuneration policy and make amendments, If necessary, to ensure 1t remains fit
for purpose for the Company, drniving high levels of executive performance and remains competitive In the market

Base salary

The purpose of the base salary is to

+ help recruit and retain key individuals,

« reflect the individual’s expenence, role and contributron within the Company, and
+ ensure fair reward for "doing the job”

The Committee reviews base salares annually to ensure that Executive Directors pay remains competitively aligned with external
market practices

The Committee will retain the discretion to increase an indmduak s salary where there 15 a significant difference between current levels
and a market competitive rate for similar positions in similar organisations (based on size, complexity and sector) However in determming
whether to increase levels the Committee will take the following into consideration

s the performance of the mdwidual Director,

s the indmvidual Director's experience and responsibilities,

* impact on fixed costs of any increase, and

« pay and condrions throughout the Company

Bonus

Executives and employees are eligible to participate in a discretionary bonus plan The percentage of maximum bonus entitlement receved
15 based on the achievement of challenging corporate and persenal targets The maximum potential bonus entitlement for Directors under
the plan 1s to up to 100% of base salary The Committee can exceed this imit In exceptional circumstances The Comrmittee will determine
on an annual basis the tevel of deferral, if any, of the bonus payment intc Company shares Maximum bonus levels and the proportion
payable for on-target performance are considered in the hight of market bonus tevels for similar roles among the industry sector

For the penod ended 31 March 2013, the Committee set clear objectives for each individual Director refating to Group KPIs plus mdmdual
and strategic targets taking into account where an indimdual has particular influence and responsibility The Committee also takes into
account overall corporate performance in determining the actual annual bonus payment

The following critersa sets out the performance metncs which the Remuneration Commitiee determined the bonus against the relevant
KPIs and individual and strategic targets and the relative weighting for each Executive Director {the Committee have determined that
It 15 inappropriate to disclose the actual targets due to commercial sensitivity)

A list of the Performance metrics are as follows -

* HSE targets,

production targets,

reserves and resources targets (conventtenal and unconventional),

Opex and G&A costs,

cashflow,

annual share price performance relative to an appropriate comparator group, and
personal and strategic development goals
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The table below sets out the percentage achieved for each Executive Director -

Andrew Austin John Blaymres Stephen Bowler
Percentage of Performance Metric achieved 875% 68 5% 86 75%

1t should be noted that the actual bonus payment relates to performance over a 15 month peniod and as such the bonus payments have
been pro-rated to reflect this longer performance penod

Given the transformational acquisiion of the Star business, the Remuneration Committee determined to make an exceptional bonus
payment to the CEO of £175,000 to reflect the importance of this transaction 10 long-term shareholder value creation

Bonuses were pard in cash and are not pensionable The Commuttee mitend to operate the bonus for 2014 on similar principles

Benefits
The Company provides Executive Directors with benefits in kind, with a pension contsibution up to 15% of base salary (as well as other
less signuficant benefits in kind)

Long Term Incentives

LTIP

In November 2011, the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP”) scheme for certain key employees of the Group Under the
LTIP, parttcipants can each be granted two types of award an Initial Award and an Annual Award Both types of award are in the form of
anil-cost option If the relevant condttrons attaching to the awards are met then the Director has seven years in which to exercise

the award

The maximum indimdual hmit for an Inibal Award 1s 300% of salary and 150% of salary for an Annual Award The primary purpose of
the lmitial Award 1s to aid recruiiment and retention of key exacutives with the Annual Award focused on the achievement of challenging
growth targets

Inrhial Awards were granted n 2011 These awards vest at the end of a three year performance penod prowded the Company’s share price
performance exceeds the Company's weighted average cost of capital of 10% No further Imitial Awards will be granted to the current
Executive Directors

Annual Awards will vest at the end of a three year penod provided certam challenging corporate performance condiions have been met
In addition, awards wall only vest provided that up to 50% of an Executive Director's post tax bonus paid in the year of grant has been
invested Into Company shares and retained over that penod No Annual Awards have been granted this year

Share Investment Plan {“S1P")

In January 2013, the Company adopted the Share Investment Plan for all employees of the Group The scheme was approved by HM
Revenue & Custorns on 5 February 2013 and 1s a tax efficient incentive plan pursuant to which all employees are eligible to acquire up to
£125 {or 10% of salary, if less) worth of 1Gas ordinary shares per month or £1,500 per annum An initial lump sum purchase was offered

In March 2013 to allow participants to acquire up to £1,500 of [Gas ordinary shares in respect of the 2012/13 tax year, which the Company
matched on a 2-to-1 basis

On an ongoing basis shares will be acquired on a quarterly basis The Company will match the shares purchased on a 1-to-1 basis and
subject to the Company having met pre-defined quarterly production targets, will increase the matching element of that quarter to 2-to-1
To recewve therr allocation of matching shares, employees must ordinarly remain employed by the Company for a perniod of 3 years from
the date of grant of the matching award

Share price movements during the year
The Group's share price as at 31 March 2013 was 83p per share The highest price dunng the penod was 151p per share and the lowest
share price during the pernod was 47 25p per share
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Current arrangements
Executive Directors

The Executive Directors are employed under rolling contracis with notice pertods of 12 months or less from the Company or executive

Directors’ emoluments for the period were as follows

15 Months ended

Year ended 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Taxable

Salary/Fees Banus Benefits Pensions Total Total

Executive Directors. £000 £000 £000 f000 £000 £000
A Austin = Chief Executive Officer 260 459* 2 39 760 464

S Bowler — CFO (Appointed 01 November 2011) 200 152 1 30 383 11
J Blaymires ~ COQ 200 120 2 30 352 324

B Cheshire — Executive Techrical Director

(Resigned 20 June 2011) - - - - - 50
Total - Executive Drectors 660 731 5 99 1,495 949
15 Months ended

Year ended 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Other
Consultancy Taxable

Emoluments Services Benefits Pensions Total Total

Non Executive Directors £000 £000 E00C £000 £000 £000
F Gugen - Non-Executive Chairman 80*+ - - - 80 100

J Bryant - Senior Independent 45%* - - - 45 91
R Pinchbeck {(Appointed 11 July 2012) 25 - - - 25 ml
C McDowell (Appointed 20 December 2012} 10 - - - 10 ml
R Armstrong (Resigned 20 December 2012} 34 - - - 34 79
} Hamilton {Resigned 20 December 2012) 47> - - - 47 64
Total - Non-Executive Directars 241 - - - 241 334

£175 000 of this bonus amount was in relation to the Star acquisition
** Part of these emcluments are pard to companies that provide the services

Each of the Executive Directors devotes such time as 1s required to discharge his duties, which in the case of A Austin, J Blaymires and

S Bowler 1s full time

As at 31 March 2013, the outstanding long term incentives held by the Directors who served dunng the year are as set out in the table below

Long term incentive arrangements

At Asat Earhest
Date of 1 Apnl 31 March vesting Lapse
Grant 2012 Granted Exercised Waned 2013 date date
A Austin 2111 1,029,702 - - - 1,029,702 21/1172014 2171172021
) Blaymires 211N 681,743 - - - 681,743 211172014 2171172021
S Bowler 21111 396,040 - - - 396,040 217112014 2111/2021

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are employed under rolling contracts with notice penods of three months, under which they are not entitled

to any pension, benefits or bonuses

John Bryant
Chairman Remuneration Committee
10 July 2013
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the Group and Parent Company financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Bustness review and future developments
A review of the business and the future developments of the Group are presented in the Chairman's statement, the Chief Executive’s
statement and the Chief Financial Officer's review

Results and dividends

The Group's profit for the period before taxation before costs of marking 1o market ail price, interest rate dernvatives and warrants and
befare costs of acquisitions, exploration impairment and written off debt costs was £9 2 million (2012 profit £2 6 milhon) After adjusting
for these items amounting to £15 2 milhon the total loss for the penod before taxation was £6 0 million (2012 loss £17 9 milion)

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2012 £nil)

Going Concern

The Directors consider that, having taken into consideration the factors set out in Note 1(b) in the financial statements, the expected
operating cash flows of the Group combrned with the Bond monies give themn confidence that the Group has adeguate resources
to continue as a going cancern The finanaal siatements have, therefore, been prepared on the going concern basis

Principal activity
The Group's principal area of activity 1s exploning for, appraising, developing and produang ol and gas resources in Great Britan

Share Capital
Detalls of changes to share capital In the penod are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

Directors and their interests
The Directors who served during the year were as follows

F Gugen Non-Executive Chairman

A Austin Chief Executive Officer

J Blaymires Chief Operating Officer

S Bowler Chief Financial Officer

} Bryant Non-Executive

R Pinchbeck Non-Executive - Appaointed 11 July 2012

C McDowel Non-Executive = Appointed 20 December 2012
R Armstrong Non-Executive - Resigned 20 December 2012

J Hamilton Non-Executive - Resigned 20 December 2012

The interests of the Directors n the shares of the Company at 31 March 2013 were as follows

31 March 2012 31 March 2012
Ordmary 10p Shares QOrdinary 50p Shares
Number % Number %
F Gugen 27.615.764 1480 27,615,764 1703
A Austin 10,659,253 571t 10,659,253 657
J Blaymures 20,000 001 20,000 oo
S Bowter 70,000 004 40,000 002
J Bryant 59,045 003 57,870 004
R Pinchbeck 144,000 008 - -
C McDowell - - - -
R Armstrong * - 65,960 Qo2
J Hamilton * - 85,000 005

* }Hamilton and R Armstrong still held the same shares as at 31 March 2013 but these are not reparted as they are no longer Directors at this date

On 22 Apnl 2013, A Austin, J Blaymires and S Bowler subscribed to thew full entitiement under the imitial subsenption of the Group's share
scheme and accardingly were each allotted 5,805 shares under the Share Investment Plan (“SIP*)

The interests of the Directors in the 10% Bonds 1ssued by the Company at 31 March 2013 were as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2812
uss uss

F Gugen 5.000,000 -

On 13 Apnl 2013, C McDowell subscribed to US$300,000 10% |Gas Bonds
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Rotation and re-election of Directors o]
In accordance with the Articles of Assoaation A Austin and J Bryant retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election 5
C McDowell was apponted by the Board durning the peniod and, In accordance with the Articles of Association, offers himself for re-election g
Directors’ insurance and indemnity provisions =
Subject to the condttions set out In the Companies Act 2006, the Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers insurance
to indemnify the directors and officers against hability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties Such prowsion remains in force
at the date of this report

oo
The Company indemnifies the Directors against actions they undertake or fail to undertake as Directors or officers of any Group company, 2 &
to the extent permissible for such indemmities to meet the test of a qualfying third party indemnity provision as provided for by the g a
Companies Act 2006 The nature and extent of the indemnities 15 as described in Section 60 of the Company’s Articles of Association b}

as adopted on 20 June 2010 These provisions remained in force throughout the year and remain in place at the date of this report

Substantial shareholders
At 31 March 2013, in addition to the directors’ interests as set out above, the Comgany had recewed notfication from the following

institutions of interests in excess of 3 per cent of the Company’s issued Ordinary Shares with voting nghts 9 g
Number of Shares % 5 -g

Nexen Petroleum UK Limited 39,714,290 2129 é 2

Brent Cheshire 11,429,253 6513 33

Peter Levine and Levine Capital Management Ltd 8,871,005 476 2

Henderson Global Investors 8,830,315 473

Baille Giffard & Co 8,088,217 434

Hedger Management SA 6,450,000 346

Princpal nisks and uncertainties

s The Group Is expased to market price nsk through vaniations in the wholesale price of oil in the context of the production from ol fields
it owns and operates The Group has entered into a series of ol price puts until 31 March 2014 for ¢ 450,000 barrels at US$90 O/barrel
and ¢ 450 000 barrels at £58 8/barrel Going forward, the Board will seek to underpin the Group's future cash flows by buying puts
for baseline production for at least the following 12 months The Board will continue to monitor the benefit of such contracts

= The Group 1s also exposed to market price nsk through vanations in the wholesale price of gas and electnaity in the context of its
future unconventional production volumes Currently the Group has not entered into any forward contracts to fix the prices of these
commodities The Board will continue to monitor the benefit of entering into such cantracts at the appropriate time

+ The Group 15 exposed to exchange rate nisk through both its major source of revenue and its major borrowings being priced in Us$
The sterling denominated ol price puts have been taken out in order to migate this nisk as 1t affects the need to fund operating and
admimsstration costs which are normally paid in peunds sterling

= The Group 1s exposed, through its operations, to iquidity nsk, which s managed by the Board wha regularly review the Group’s cash
forecasts and the adequacy of avalable faciities to meet the Group's cash requirements

* The Group Is exposed to nisks associated with geologrcal uncertainty No guarantee can be given that oil or gas can be produced in
the anticipated quantities frem any or alf of the Group’s assets or that ol or gas can be delivered economically The Group considers
that such risks are mihgated given its assets are located in established oil and gas produang areas coupled with the extensive expertise
and experience of 1ts operating staff

* The Group Is exposed to planning, environmental, licensing and other permitting nisks associated with its operations and, i particular,
with driling and production operations The Group considers that such risks are partially mitigated through comphance with regulations
and the expertise and experience of its team operating on the Group’s conventiona! assets

* The Group 15 exposed to capital nsk resulting from its capital structure However, the caprtal structure is continually monitored to ensure
it 15 0 ine with the business needs and ongoing asset development Further details of the Group's capital management policy are
disclosed in Note 23 io the consclidated financial statements

= The Group 15 also exposed 1o a variety of other risks including those related to
= operattonal matters (inctuding cost increases, availability of equipment and successful project execution),
¢ competition,
* key personnel, and
+ |litigation
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Financial Instruments

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash balances, borrowings, derivative instruments and other debtors and creditors
that anse through the normal course of business as set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements The Group's financial risk
management objectives are set out 1n Note 23 to the consohdated financial statements and the Operational review

Employment policy

It 15 the policy of the Group to operate a fair employment policy No employee or job applicant is less favourably treated than another on
the grounds of therr sex, sexual onentation, age, mantal status, religion, race, natonality, ethnc or national ongin, colour or disability and
all appantments and promotions are determined solely on ment The Directors encourage employees (o be aware of all issues affecting
the Group and place considerable emphasis on employees sharing in 1ts success
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Directors’ Report continued

Creditor payment policy and practice

It1s the Group's normal practice to agree payment terms with its supphers and abide by such terms Payment becomes due when It can
be confirmed that goods and/or services have been prowided in accordance with the relevant contractual conditions The amount owed
by the Company to trade creditors at the end of the financal year represented 17 days of dally purchases for the Company {2012 44 days)

Chantable and political contnbutions
During the penod, the Group made chantable donations of £7,752 to local causes (2012 £600) There were no political donations dunng
the penod (2012 nil)

Status
The Company 1s a closed Company as defined in the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988

The Company 15 domialed in the UK and incorporated and registered in England

Board committees
tnformation on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomnination commuttees s mcluded in the Corporate Governance section of the annual report

Auditor
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting at a fee to be agreed in due
course by the Audit Committee and the Board

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to the auditor

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information, being

information needed by the auditor in connection with prepanng its report, of which the auditor s unaware Having made enquiries of !
feltow Directors, each Director has taken all the steps that a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken as a Director in order
to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that nformation

By order of the Board |

Jof b

Mofo Secr imited /7

Secretary

1Gas Energy plc
Registered Office
7 Down Street
London

W1) 7A)

Registered in the United Kingdom number 04981279
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Relation to the Group
Financial Statements and Annual Report

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the graup finanaal statements in accordance with apphicable United
Kingdom law and regulations Company law requires the directors to prepare Group financial statements for each financial year Under
that law, the directors are required to prepare Group financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union Under Company Law the directors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satsfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that eriod In preparing the
Group financial statements the directors are required to

= present farly the finanoal position, finanaal performance and cash flows of the Group,

= select surtable accounting policies in accordance wath 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars and then
apply them consistently,

* present information, induding accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and understandable information,

* make judgements that are reasonable,

* provide additional disciosures when compliance with the speafic requirernents in IFRSs as adopted by the European Union is insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and
finanoal performance, and

» state whether the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Unian,
subsect to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financal statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the Group financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties The directors
are also responsible for prepaning the Directors’ Report in accordance with the Companes Act 2006 and applicable regulations
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of IGas Energy Plc

We have audited the Group finanaal statements of 1Gas Energy plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprnise the Consohdated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consohdated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 28 The finanaial reporting framework that has been
appled in therr preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adapted by the Egropean Union

Ths report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them n
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility o anyone
other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Statement of Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group
financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
Group financial staternents in accordance with applicable law and Internavonal Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's} Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficent 1o give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of signtficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial iInformation in the Annuat Report and Accounts to identify matenal incanststencies with the audited
finanaal statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal risstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for

our report

Opinion on finanaal statements

In our opinion the Group financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of its loss for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the iInformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financal year for which the finanoial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us ta report to you if, in our opinion
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration speafied by law are not made, or

¢ we have nct recerved all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financal statements of 1Gas Energy ple for the year ended 31 March 2013

Eroe + Youn f

Daniel Trotman

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

10 July 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Year ended 15 manths.
31March 31 March
2013 012
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 2 68,304 22,120
Cost of sales
Depletion, depreciation and amoryisation (9.975) {3,203)
Other costs of sales (28,067) (8,838}
Total cost of sales (38,042) (12,041)
Gross profit 30,262 10,079
Administrative costs (8.351) {4,956)
Costs relating to acquistions (59) (2,986)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets (1.093) (42)
Other income 225 235
Profit/flossh on ail price swaps 938 (18,512)
Operating profit/(loss) 3 21,922 (16,182}
Finance income 6 447 2,374
Finance costs 6 (28.368) (4,089)
Net finance costs (27.921) (1,715)
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (5.,999) (17,897}
Income tax (chargecredit 7 (12,356) 5,773
Loss from continuing operations attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Group (18,355) {12,124)
Basic and diluted loss per share (pence/share) 8 (11 11p) (8 14p}
Adjusted basic (loss)/profit per share (pence/share) 8 (191p) 564p
Adjusted diluted Joss)iprofit per share (pence/share) 8 (191p) 543p
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2013
Year ended 15 munths
31 March 34 March
2073 202
€000 £000
Loss for the period (18,355) {12,124)
Other comprehensive income for the penod - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period (18,355} (12,124)

M3IADY
ssauisng MIIAIIAD

SOUBUIIA0L)
aeiodio)

SJUBLUYLYS
[epveuy



32  I1Gas Energy Plc
Annual report and accounts 2012/13

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 11 58,668 57,237
Property, plant and equipment 12 138,378 100,545
Goodwill 10 34,339 23,515
231,385 181,297
Current assets
Inventories 14 1,056 716
Trade and other receivables 15 8,569 12,113
Cash and cash equivalents 16 9,831 7,915
Other Financial Assets — Restricted cash 16 102,865 -
122,31 20,744
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 (14,056) (10,480)
Current tax kabilities (3,006} {3,167)
Finance lease hatihty 22 - (51}
Borrowings — Macquarie 18 (89,710) (16,475}
Borrowings - Bond 18 (5.,466) -
Other habilities 19 {8,208} (2,806)
Denvative financial instruments 23 (10,001) (8,713)
(130,447} {41,692}
Net current liabilities (8.126) (20,348}
Total assets less current habilities 223,259 160,349
Non-current iabilities
Beorrowings — Macquane 18 - (38,477
Borrawings — Bond 18 (94,942) -
Denvative financial instruments 23 - {7,979)
Deferred tax habihities 7 (40,194) {20,552)
Provisions 20 (29,005) {18,383)
(164,141} {105,391)
Net assets 59,118 54,958
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 24 56,646 54,213
Share premium account 25 37,747 18,036
Other reserves 26 (797) {1,140
Accurmulated defict {34,478) (16,151)
Shareholders’ funds 59,118 54,958

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board on 10 July 2013 and are signed on its behalf by

2N

Andrew Austin
Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Bowler
Chief Finanaal Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Called up

Share
premium

Qther

share capital atcount reserves Accumulated
{Note 24} (Note 25) {Nete 26} defiait Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January 2011 19,665 2,500 {1,236) (4,201) 16,728
Changes in equity for 15 months ended 31 March 2012
Total comprehensive [oss for the penod - - - (12,124 (12,124)
Capital contnbution - - 47 - a7
Employee share plans cost under IFRS2 (note 26} - - 49 174 223
Issue of shares dunng the period 34,548 15,536 - - 50,084
Balance at 31 March 2012 54,213 18,036 {1.140) (16,151) 54,958
Changes in equity for year ended 31 March 2013
Total comprehensive loss for the penod - - - (18,355) (18,355)
Employee share plans cost under IFRS 2 (note 26) - - 343 28 371
Issue of shares during the period 2,433 19,711 - - 22,144
Balance at 31 March 2013 56,646 37,747 (797) (34,478) 59,118
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Year 15 Months.
anded ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2017
Notes £000 E0C0
Operating activities
Loss before tax for the year/penod {5.999) {17.897)
Depreaiation, depletion and amortisation 3 10,152 3,354
Share based payment charge 347 1,117
{GamnAloss on denvative financal instruments {6,939) 16,160
Finance income 6 (447) {2,374)
Finance costs, mcluding urwinding of discount of decommissioning 6 28,368 4,286
Decrease/increase) in trade and other recewables 4473 {3,866)
Increase in trade and other payables, net of accruals related to investing activities (2,287) (1,025}
Decrease/fiincrease) m inventones 17 (34
Impatrment 1,093 42
Abandonment costs incurred {29) (s
Other nen-cash adjustments (122) 3
Bad debt provision 252 -
Taxation pad (1) (2,340
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities 28,878 (2,592)
Investing activities
Acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets (2,453) (17,880)
Acquisitton of praperty, plant and equipment (1,123) (653)
Acquisitions 9 (13,877} (79,630)
Interest receved 25 336
Net cash used in Investing activities (17,428) (97.827)
Financing activities
Cash proceeds from issue of Ordinary Share Capiial 24 23,114 20,625
Share 1ssue costs 24 (970} (681}
Capital contnbution 24 - 47
Interest pad 6 (6,727) (2,143)
Cash proceeds from loans and borrowings 21410 84,569
Loan 1ssue costs (1,887) (3,141)
Repayment of loans and borrowings (16,735) (3,100}
Repayment of assumed borrowings and associated fees relating to acquisiuons (28,286) -
Repayrment of finance lease/hire purchase agreement {51) 21)
tet cash {used n)Hrom financing activities (10,132} 96,155
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents mn the year/period 1,320 (4,264)
Net foreign exchange difference 596 92
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year/penod 7,915 12,087
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 16 9,831 7915
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes
As at 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of 1Gas Energy plc (the ‘Company”) and subsidiaries (the *Group”) have been prepared under
the histonical cost convention in accordance with Internatronal Financial Reparting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union
("IFRSs") as they apply to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and with the Companies Act 2006 The accounting pentod 1s not
comparable with the 15 month prior pentod as this penod was extended to ahign to the year end of the then newly acquired entity Star
Energy Group Limited The accounts were approved by the board and authorised for issue on 10 July 2013 1Gas Energy plc is a public
lirited Company incorporated, registered in England and Wales and is listed on the Alternative Investment Market ("AIM ")

The Group finangal statements are presented in UK pounds sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except
when otherwise indicated

Dunng the penod, the Group adopted the following new and amended IFRS which were applicable to the Group’s actviies as of 1 Apnil 2012

International Accounting Standards {(IFRS/IAS})

1AS 12 Income Taxes {Amendment) - Deferred Taxes — Recovery of Underlying Assets — The amendment clarified 1 January 2012
the determination deferred tax on mvestment property measured at fair value and intraduces a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value model in JAS 40
should be determmed on the basis that Its carrying amount will be recovered through sale It includes
the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation
model in 1AS 16 should atways be measured on a sale basis The Group has considered the effect of
this amendment and has concluded that there 1s no impact on the financial statements

New and amended standards and interpretations

Certan new standards, interpretations and ameandments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory only for
the Group s accounting periods beginring on or after 1 Apnl 2012 or iater penods and which the Group has not adopted early
Those that may be applicable 1o the Group in future are as follows

For financial perod
commencing on or after”

International Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS)

1AS 1 Amendment to 1AS 1 — Financal Staterment Presentation — This amendment changes the grouping 1 July 2012
of items presented in the Other Comprehensive Income Items that could be reclassified to profit
and loss at a future pomnt in tirme (for example, upon de-recogniion or settliement) would be
presented separately from items which will never be redlassified The amendment affects presentation
only and therefore will have no iImpact on the Group’s financial position or performance

IFRS 9 IFRS 9 ~ Finanaal Instruments Classification and Measurement —IFRS 9 as 1ssued reflects the 1 January 2015
first phase of the IASB's work on the replacement of I1AS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financoial assets as defined N 1AS 39 The standard 1s effective for annual periods
beginring on or after January 2015 In subsequent phases, the IASB will address classification and
measurement of finanoal habilities, hedge accounting and derecogrition The adaption of the first
phase of IFRS 9 wall have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when 1ssued,
to present a comprehensive picture

IFRS 7AAS 32 {FRS 7/1AS 32 - The amendments to IAS 32 and IFRS 7 on offsetting of finanaial instruments are 1 January 2013
intended to clanfy existing application 1ssues relating to the offsetting rules and reduce the level 1 January 2014
of diversity in current practice The clanfying amendments to LAS 32 are effective for the annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 The new disclosures in IFRS 7 are required for annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The Group 1s currently assessing the impact that
these amendments will have on its finanaial position

IFRS 10 IFRS10 - replaces the portion of 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that 1 January 2013
addresses the accounting for consoldated financial statements It also includes the 1ssues raised
In 5IC-12 Consohdation — Special Purpose Entities IFRS 10 establishes a single controt model that
apphes to all entities ncluding special purpose entities The changes introduced by IFRS 10 waill
require management to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that
were N 1AS 27
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting policies continued

IFRS 11 IFRS11 - Joint Arrangements - IFRS11 establishes the principles of the financial reporting by parties
to a joint arrangement IFRS 11 supersedes IAS31 It removes the option for jointly controlled
entiies (JCE) using proportionate consolidation 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 IFRS12 — Disclosures of involvement with other entities — IFRS12 combines, enhances and replaces
the disclosure requirement for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and in consolidated
structured entities 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 IFRS 13 - Farr Value Measurement — IFRS13 defines fair value, setting out in a single IFRS a
framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosure about fair value measurements IFRS 13
apphes when other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements It does not introduce any new
requirements to measure an asset or habihty at fair value, change what 1s measured at far value

in IFRS or address how to present changes in farr value 1 January 2013
1AS 28 IAS28 - Investrents 1n Associates and Joint Venture - JAS28 has been renamed as a

consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 and describes the application of the method

to investments in joint venture in addiion 1o associates 1 January 2013

IAS 27 Revised  IAS 27 Rewised — Consohdated and Separate Financial Staternents The objective of the Standard
15 to prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries,
Jont ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements 1 January 2013

* The etiective dates stated above are those given in the onginal LASBAFRIC standards and interpretations As the Group prepares its financial statements in accordance with
IFR5 as adopted by the Eurepean Umon (EU) the apphication of new standards and interpretations wil be subject to therr having been endorsed for use in the EU via the
EU endorsement mecharusm In the majonity of cases this will result in an effecuve date consistent wath that given in the onginal standard or interpresation but the need
{or endarsement restricts the Group s discretion to early adopt standards

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretattons wall either indvidually or collectively have
a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements in the period of smtial application The Group does not antiqipate adopting
these standards and interpretations ahead of their effective date

(b) Going concern

The Group's principal actvity and princpal risks and uncertainties are set out in the Directors’ report The ability of the Group to operate
as a gang concern 1s dependent upon the continued availabibity of future cash flows and the availability of the mormies drawn under its
Bond, which in tum 1s dependent on the Group not breaching covenants Under the Bond, the Group drew down from escrow US$165m
of funds in Aprl 2013 The Group regularly monitors forecasts to determing that breaches are not anticipated to occur in the future

On the basis of the Group's current forecasts, no breaches in covenants are anticipated However these forecasts are based on certain
assumptions particularly in relation 1o ol prices, production rates, operating costs, capital and general expenditure The Group 15 protected
to @ matenal degree agamst volatiity in the ot price, by having a sigmificant propertion of its production hedged at US$90 and £58 per
barrel untl 31 March 2014 Despite this, there can be no certainty that these farecasts will be achieved, in which case the finanoal
covenants could be breached Should any breach be anticipated to anse, the Group would manage 1ts working capital profile, reduce
discretionary expenditure where necessary and, If applicable, take additional mittgating actions that have already been identifted as a
precautionary measure The Directors consider that the expected operating cash flows of the Group combined with the current Bonds
give them confidence that the Group has adequate resources to continue as a going concern The financial statements have, therefore,
been prepared on the gong concern basis

{c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of 1Gas Energy plc and 1ts subsidianes as If they formed a single entity

The financial statements of subsidianes used in the preparation of consclidated financial statements are based an consistent accounting
policies to the parent All intercompany transactions and balances between Group comparnies, including unrealised profits ansing from
them, are eliminated in full Where shares are 1ssued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company is the sponsoring entity, 1t 15
treated as an extension of the entity

At 31 March 2013, the Group comprised the Company and entities controlled by 1Gas Energy pic {its subsidiaries) made up to the reporting
perod at this date The resuits of subsidiaries acquired during the perod are included in the consoldated income statement from the date
that control passed ta the Company

(d) Bustness combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method The cost of the acquisition 15 measured at the aggregate of the

fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, iabihties incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree The acquiree’s identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under IFRS 3 are recognised at their far value at the acquisition date Goodwill ansing on acguisition 1s recognised as an asset and mitially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, habihities and contingent habilities recognised If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identrfiable assets, habilittes and contingent habilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recogrised rmmedsately

In the income statement Acquisilion osts are expensed and shown as a separate ine in the Income Statement
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1 Accounting policies continued

€) Interest Iin associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term equity interest and over which 1t has significant inffuence, but not control,
through participation in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee Significant influence can change if, for example,
the entity goes into administration or hquidation

This results i assets and liabilities of assocrates being incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting
Interests In associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisitton changes i the Groug's share of the net assets
of the associate, less any impairment i the value of indwidual investments Where the Group's share of any retained loss in an associate
exceeds 1ts ;nvestment, the Group's investment 1s capped at zero  Should the associate subsequently report profits, the Group resumes
recognising 1ts share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised The Group’s Income
Statement reflects the share of the associate’s results after tax Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,

unrealised profits and losses are eblminated to the extent of the Group’s Interest in the relevant assocate

(f} Joint ventures

A small proportion of the Group’s licence interests are held jointly with others under arrangements whereby unincorporated and jointly
controlled ventures are used to explore, evaluate and ultimately develop and produce from its ol and gas interests Accordingly, the Group
accounts for 1ts share of assets, habilities, Income and expenditure of these jointly controlled assets, dlassified in the appropnate balance
sheet and income statement headings, except where its share of such amounts remain the responsibility of ancther party in accordance
with the terms of carred interests as described at () below Where the Group enters in{o a farm-up agreement involving a licence in the
exploration and evaluation phase, the Group records all costs that it incurs under the terms of the joint operating agreement as amended
by the farm-up agreemerit as they are incurred

(g) Srgnificant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consohdated financial statements in confarmity with IFRS reguires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liablities and the disclosure of contingent habilites at the date
of the consolidated financal statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting penod Estimates and
assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s expernience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances However, actual outcomes can differ from these estimates

In particular, the Group has idenuified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are required,

and where if actual results were to differ, this could matenally affect the financal position or financial results reported in future periods
Further information on each of these and how they impact the various accounuing pohicies are described in the relevant notes to the
financial statements

Carrying value of intangible exploration and evatuation assets

The Group has capitalised intangible exploration and evaluation assets in accordance with IFRS 6, which are evaluated for impairment as
descnbed at ()) below Any impairment review, where required, involves estimates and assumptions related to matters (when apprapnate),
such as recoverable reserves, production profiles, rewew of forward oil, gas and electniaity prices, development, operating and off-take
costs, nature of land access agreements and planning permissions, application of taxes and other matters Where the final outcome or
revised estimates related to such matters differ from the estimates used in any earhier impairment reviews, the results of such differences,
to the extent that they actually affect any impairment provistons, are accounted for when such revisions are made Details of the Group's
intangible exploration and evaluation assets are disclosed in note 11

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the Group's property, plant and equipment penicdically for impairment indicators The determination of recoverable
amounts In any impairment test requires judgement around key assumptions Key assumptions in the impairment models include those
related to prices, that are based on forward curves and long-term corporate assumptions thereafter, discount rates, that are nsked to
reflect conditions specific to individual assets, future costs, both capital and operating, that are based on management’s estimates having
regard to past experience and the known charactenistics of the indiadual assets and production and reserves, discussed further below

Proved and probable reserves

The volume of proven and probable od and gas reserves 1s an estmate that affects the umit of production depreciation of producing

gas and oll property, plant and equipment as well as being a significant estimate affecting decommussioning provisions and impairment
calculations Proved and probable reserves are estimated using standard recognised evaluatron techniques Estirnates are reviewed at least
annually and are regularly esumated by independent consultants Future development costs are estimated takmng into account the level

of development reguired to produce the reserves by reference to operators, where applicable, and internal engineers

Decommissioning costs

The estimated cost of decommissioning at the end of the producing lives of fields is reviewed pericdically and 1s based an proven and
probable reserves, forecast price levels and technology at the balance sheet date Provision 1s made for the estimated cost at the balance
sheet date, using discounted cash flow methodology and a nisk free rate of return Detalls of the Group’s decommissioning costs are
disclosed in note 20
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting pohicies continued

Business combinations

When the Group acquires a business, 1t assesses the fair value of the assets and iabilities assumed by reference to the contractual
terms, economic arcumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisttion date Those petroleum reserves and resources that can

be relably measured are recogrised in the assessment of fair values on acquisttion by reference ta independent assessments of reserves
and discounted cash flow models to reflect the revenues and expenditures related to the extraction of those reserves Other assets and
hatihties ase valued by reference to market-based observations or independent valuations where possible, but where this 1s not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required In establishing fair values Details of business combinations occurning in the current year and prior
period are disclosed in note 9

Functional currency

The deterrmination of functional currency often requires significant judgement where the primary economic environment in which a
Company operates may not be dear This can have a sigmificant impact on the consobidated results of the Group based on the foreign
currency translation methods used

(h) Exceptional items

Exceptional itemns are material items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, due to their nature and infrequency
require separate wdentrfication on the face of the income statement tc allow a better understanding of the financial performance in the
year A full explanauon of such items is given, where applicable, in the notes to the financial statements

(1} Revenue

Revenue compnses the invoiced value of goods and services supplied by the Group, net of value added tax and trade discounts
Revenue 1s recogrused in the case of oil, gas and electncity sales when goods are delivered and title has passed to the customer
This generally occurs when the product 1s physically delivered to the customer’s prermises or transferred into a vessel, pipe or other
delivery mechanism

Revenue from the production of ail, in which the Group has an interest with other producers, 1s recognised based on the Group's working
interest and the terms of the relevant production shanng contracts Where ol produced by third parties 1s processed and delivered to a
refinery by the Group, the measurement of the revenue depends upon whether physical title to the oil passes to the Group or whether
the Group simply acts an agent for the producer

Revenue from services rendered (s recognised only once a legally binding contract 15 in place Amounts billed for services where the
contract provides for their delivery over a penod of time are recogrised evenly over the relevant period, amounts due for all other services
are recognised as the services are provided

(1) Non-current assets

Goodwill

Goodwall 1s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised over
the fair value of the Identifrable net assets acquired and labilities assumed

After initial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually {as at 31 March) and when crcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

Impairment 1s determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or Group of CGUS) to which the goodwill
relates Where the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than its carrying amount, an impairment 16ss 1s recogrised Impairment losses
relating to goodwilf cannot be reversed in future perods

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

The Group accounts for exploration and evaluation costs in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation

of Mineral Resources” as follows

* Exploration and evaluation assets are carned at cost less any impairment and are not depreciated or amortised

* Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets comprise those related to acquisition of nghts to explore, topographical,
geological, geochemical and geophysical studies, exploratory driling {including coring and sampiing), actvities in relation 10 evaluating
the technical feasibifity and commercial viabulity of extracting hydrocarbans (including appraisal drilling and production tests) and any
land rights acquired for the sole purpose of effecting these actmvities These costs include employee remuneration, matenals and
consumables, equipment costs and payments made to contractors

* Any costs incurred prior to obtaming the legal nghts to explore an area are expensed immediately te the Income Statement
Expenditures related to development and production activities are not recogrised as explaration and evaluation assets

= Tangible assets acquired for use i exploration and evaluation activities are ciassified as property, plant and equipment However, (o the
extent that such tangible assets are consumed i developing an Intangible exploration and evaluation asset, the amaunt reflecting that
consumption 1s recorded as part of the exploration and evaluation asset

» Expenditures recogrused as exploration and evaluation assets are initially accumulated and capitahsed by reference to approprate
geographic areas

* Expenditure recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to property plant and equipment, interests in oll and gas
properties when technical feasibility and commeraial viability of extracting hydrocarbons 1s demonstrable Exploration and evaluation
assets are assessed for impairment (on the basts described below), and any impairment lass recognised, before reclassification
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1 Accounting policies continued

Impairment testing of exploration and evaluation assets

Expenditures recogrised as exploratton and evaluation assets are tested for impawment whenever facts and arcumstances suggest that
they may be impaired, which includes when a licence 1s approaching the end of its term and is not expected to be renewed, there are no
substantive plans for continued exploration or evaluation of an area, the Group deades to abandon an area, or whilst development s likefy
to proceed In an area there are indications that the exploration and evaluation asset costs are unlikely to be recovered in fult erther by
development or through sale

Property plant and equipment — interests in a1l and gas properties

Property plant and equipment, interests m ol and gas properties are accounted for as follows

« Expenditure relating to interesis in il and gas properties ncludes both expenditure which 1s depleted on a unit-of-production basis,
commenang at the start of commercial productron and expenditure which 1s depreciated on a stratght line basis over the relevant
asset’s esumated useful ife Where expenditure 1s depreciated on a unit of production basis, the depletien charge 15 calculated
according to the proportion that production bears to the recoverable reserves for each property

= The Group's interests in oil and gas properties are assessed for indications of impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances
wndicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, when impairment 15 computed on the basis as set out below
Any mpairment in value (s charged to the Income Statement as additional depreciation

» Net proceeds from any disposal of development/producing assets are compared to the previously caprtalised costs for the relevant asset
or Group of assets A gain or loss on disposal of a development/producing asset 15 recognised in the Income Statement to the extent
that the net proceeds exceed or are less than the approprate portion of the net capitalised costs of the asset or Group of assets

Impairment

Impairment reviews, when required as described above, are carmed out on the following basis

* By companng the sum of any amounts carried in the books as compared to the recoverable amount

* The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use The Group generally relies on
fair value less cost to sell assessed either by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller
or on the same basis as used by willing buyers and sellers in the ol and gas industry When assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the nisks specific to the asset or CGU

* Where there has been a charge for imparrment m an earlter period that charge wall be reversed in a later penod where there has
been a change in circumstances to the extent that the recoverable amount 1s higher than the net book value at the ime In reversing
impairment lasses, the carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of 1ts oniginal carrying value and the carrying value
that would have been determined (net of depletion) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods

Decommuissioning

Where a lability for the removal of production facilities or site restoration exists, a provision for decommissioning Is recognised

The amount recognised is discounted to its present value and is refiected in the Group's non-current liabilities A corresponding asset 1s
included in the appropriate category of the Group’s non-current assets (intangeble exploration and evaluation assets and property plant
and equipment), depending on the accounting treatment adopted for the underlying operations/asset leading to the decommissioning

provision The asset 1s assessed for imparment and or depleted in accordance with the Group's policies as set out above

Carried interests

Where the Group has entered into carmed interest agreements in exploration and evaluation projects and the Group's interest 1s being
carried by a third party, no amounts are recorded in the financal statements where expenditure incurred under such agreements is not
refundable Where expenditure 1s refundable, out of what would but for the carry agreements have been the Group’s share of production,
the Group records amounts as non-current assets, with a corresponding offset in current habilities or non-current liabilties, as appropnate,
but only once 1t 1s apparent that 1t 1s more likely than not that future production will be adequate to result in a refund under the terms of
any carry agreement, the Group records refunds only to the extent that they are expected to be repayable

Other property plant and equipment

Other property plant and equipment s stated at cost to the Group tess accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s prowided on such assets,
with exception of freehold land at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less thewr estimated residual values, over their
esumated useful hves at the following rates, with any impairment being accounted for as additional degreciation

Equipment used for exploration and evaluation  — between six and twelve years on a straight ine basis

Freehold Land - indefinite useful life

Buildingsfeasehold property improvements — over five to ten years on a straight ine basis/over the pericd of the lease
Fixtures, fitings and equipment - between three and twenty years on a straight line basis

Motor Vehicles — over four years on a straight fine basis

The Group does not capitahise amounts considered to be immaterial

(k) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at vanable interest rates
with onginal matunty penods of up to three months Any interest earned 1s accrued monthly and dlassified as interest income within
finance income
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Other financial assets - Restricted cash

Where cash is held in Escrow, funds are only classified as cash and cash equivalents when mories are transferred to and under the contral
of the Group

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are mihally recogrised at fair value when related amounts are invoiced, then carried at this amount less any afllowances
for doubtful debts or provision made for impairment of these recevables

Trade and other payables
These financial iabiliuies are all non-interest bearing and are initially recognised at the fair value of the consrderation payable

Denwvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into dervatives to manage its exposure 1o variability in the price and foreign exchange rate of a proportion of its crude
oll production All denvative finanaiat instruments are inibally recogrused at farr vatue on the date a dervative contract 15 entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair value at each period end Apart from those denvatives designated as qualifying cash flow
hedging instruments, all changes in farr value are recorded as financal inceme or expense in the year in which they anse, otherwise they
are recogmised in other comprehensive Income

Fair value s the amount for which a financial asset, hability or instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties
i an arm’s length transaction It 1s determined by reference to quoted market prices adjusted for estimated transaction costs that would
be incurred in an actual transacuion, or by the use of established estimation technigues such as option pncing models and estimated
discounted values of cash flows The farr value of derivative financial nstrumants has been calculated on a discounted cash flow basrs

by reference to forward market prices and nisk free returns adjusted in the case of denvative financial habilities by an approprate

credit spread

Impairment of financial assets

In refation to financial assets, a provision for Impairment 1s made when there 15 objective evidence (such as the prababilizy of nsolvency
or sigmficant financial difficulties of the debtoer) that the Group will not be able 1o collect all of the amounts due under the anginal terms
of the invoce The carrying amount of receivables 15 reduced through use of an allowance account Imparred debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible

(I) Borrowings

Borrowings are measured imtially at far value After imtial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amartised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”} methad Gains and losses are recognised in the income staternent when the
liabiities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process When management esumates of the amounts or timings

of cashflows are revised, borrowings are remeasured using the revised cash flow estimates under the onginal effective iInterest rate

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or prermium on acquisition and fees or ¢costs that are an integral part
of the EIR The EIR amortisation 1s included in finance costs in the income statement

Dervatves embedded in host contracts, such as warrants attached to [oans, are accounted for as separate dervatives and recorded at far
value If therr economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at far value though profit or loss These embedded dervatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recogrised in the Income Statement

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attrnibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessanly
take a substantial penod of ume to get ready for ther intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investrment of specific barrowings pending their expendsture on qualfying assets 1s deducted
from the borrowing costs ehgible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or lass in the period in which they are incurred

{m) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains a lease 15 based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date
including whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement canveys
a nght to use the asset

Operating leases
Renials are charged to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over she period of the lease
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1 Accounting polictes continued

Finance leases

Assets under finance leases are included under tangible fixed assets at their capital value and depreciated over their useful lives Capital
value 1s defined as the amount equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower the present value of the mirumum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease Lease payments consist of capital and finance charge elements, the finance charge element
15 charged to the income statement

(n) Inventonies

Inventones, consisting of crude oil, drifing matenals and maintenance matenals, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Costs comprise all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventornies to their present location and
condivon Weighted average cost 1s used to determine the cost of ordinarily inter-changeable items

(o) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current income tax assets and habilises for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or

paid to the tax authonties Taxable (fossyprofit differs from the {(Joss)/profit before taxation as reported in the Income Statement because
it exctudes items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible The Group's habiity for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
Temporary differences anise from differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities and thetr carrying
amounts for financtal reporting purposes Deferred tax labilities are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that 1t 1s regarded as mare likely than not that they will be recovered

The carrying amount of deferred tax 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to affow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utiised Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recogmised to the extent that it has become probatle that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and hiabihities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the year when the assets Is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporuing date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss Deferred tax items are recognised
n correlation to the underlying transaction either n other comprehensive income or directly in equity

(p) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (including Directors), the far value of the options or warranis at the date of
the grant is recorded in equity over the vesting period Non-market vesting conditions, but only those related to service and performance,
are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, uluimately, the
cumulative amount recogrised over the vesting penod ts based on the number of options that eventually vest All other vesting conditions,
including market vesting condrtions, are factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted As long as all other vesting
conditions are satisfied, the amount recorded 1s computed trrespective of whether the Market vesting conditions are satisfied

The cumulative amount recogrised 1s not adjusted for the failure to achieve a market vesting condition, although equity no longer
required for options or warrants may be transferred to another equity reserve

Where the terms and conditions of aptions or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase n the farr vatue of the options,
measured immediately before and after the mod:ification, 1s also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting period

When an equity-setiled award s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as if 1t vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
or the award 15 recognised immediately

Where equity nstruments are granted to persons other than employees, the amount recogrised in equity 1s the fair value of goods and
services received

Charges corresponding to the amounts recognised In equity are accounted for as a cost agamst profit and loss unless the services rendered
qualify for capitalisation as a non-current asset Costs may be caprtalised within non-current assets in the event of services being rendered
In connection with an acquisition of intangible exploration and evaluation assets or property plant and equipment

Where shares are 13sued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company 1s the sponsoring entity, the value of such shares at 1ssue will be
recorded in share capital and share premium account in the ordinary way, but will not affect shareholders’ funds since this same value will
be shown as a deduction from shareholders’ funds by way of a separate component of equity

{q) Post-retirement benefits

A subsidiary within the Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an Independently administered fund The amount charged to the Income statement represents the contnbutions payatle
to the scheme tn respect of the accounting perniod
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting policies continued

(r) Equity

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs, and allocated between
called up share capital and share premium accounts as appropriate

(s} Foreign currency

The consolidated financial staterments are presented in UK pound sterling, which is the parent Company's and its subsidiaries’ functional
currency The Group does not have any foreign operations Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are
translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in fareign currencies are
re-translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All differences that arise are recorded in the income statement

2 Revenue and segment information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”} to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance, and for which financial information 1s available In the case of the Group the CODM are the Chief Executive Officer and
the Board of Directors and all information reported to the CODM 1s based on the consolidated results of the Group as one operating
segment as the Group’s activities relate to UK o and gas Therefore the Group has one operating and reportable segment as reffected

in the Group's cansclidated financial statements

All revenue which represents turnover anses within the United Kingdom and relates to external parties £61 7 million of the Group's
revenue was derwved from two customers (2012 £21 9 millon)

All the Group’s non-current assets are in the United Kingdom

3 Operating profit/loss

Year 15 Months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Operating profitfloss) 1s stated after charging
Staft Costs (see note 4) 10,507 4,659
Depletion, depreciation and amortisation 10,152 3,354
Imparrment 1,093 42
Audrtor's remuneration
Audit fee 207 173
Audrt of accounts of any associate of the Company 140 g0
Audit-related assurance of services "7 18
All taxation adwvisory services other than tax complance - 96
Non-assurance services a1 -
Services relating to corporate finance iransactions - 400
Operating lease charges
Land and buldings 1.464 522
Other 197 51
4 Employee information Year 15 Months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Staff costs compnised
Wages and salanes 8,872 3676
Social Secunity Costs 790 556
Company contnbution to pension scheme 571 260
Employee share based payment cost under IFRS 2 274 167
10,507 4,659
No Na
Average number of employees in the period
Operations, including services 112 34
Administrative 49 14
153 48

At 31 March 2013 the Group had 162 employees (2012 152 employees} In the year ended 31 March 2013 £635 thousand
{2012 - £703 thousand) of the Group's remuneration costs has been capitabised in accordance wath the Group's accounting pohicy
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5 Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the Directors for the year/penod was as follows

15 Months

ended

Year ended 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Taxable

Salary/Fees Bonus Benehts Pensions Tatal Total

Executive Directors £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 EQ00

A Austin = Chief Executive Officer 260 459+ 2 39 760 464

S Bowler — CFO (Appainted 01 November 2011) 200 152 1 30 383 m

) Blaymires - COO 200 120 2 30 352 324
B Cheshire — Executive Techmical Director

{Resigned 20 June 2011) - - - - - 50

Total - Executive Directors 660 1 5 99 1,495 949

DOther
Consultancy Taxabla

Emoluments Services Benefits Pensions Total Totat

Non-Executive Directors £000 EDOQ £000 f000 £000 £00C

F Gugen - Non-Executive Chairman BO** - - - 80 100

] Bryant ~ Senior Independent 45%* - - - 45 a1

R Pinchbeck {Appomnted 11 July 2012) 25 - - - 25 il

C McDowell {Appointed 20 December 2012) 10 - - - 10 il

R Armstrong (Resigned 20 December 2012) 34 - - - 34 79

) Hamilton (Resigned 20 December 2012} 47+ - - - a7 64

Total — Non-Executive Directors 24 - - - 241 334

*  £175 thousand of this bonus amount was in relation to the Star acguisition
** Part of these emoluments are pawd to companies that provide the services

Directors’ share schemes/warrants

At 31 March 2013 the Executive Directors held the followng awards under the Long Term Incentive Plans and the Share Option scheme as follows

Long Term Incentive Plans

Year 15 months
ended ended
31 March Exercise 31 March Exercse
2013 prnice 202 pnce
Number {p/share) Number {pshare)
A Austin 1,029,702 - 1,029,702 -
J Blaymires 681,743 - 681,743 -
S Bowler 396,040 - 396,040 -
6 Finance income and costs
Year 15 months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest on short-term deposits 26 373
Gain on far value of warrants {note 19) - 1,651
Foreign exchange gains 421 350
Finance income recognised In income statement 447 2,374
Finance expense
Finance lease charges 25 1
Interest an borrowings — Macquarne 8,882 3,165
Interest an borrowings — Macquarie debt costs written off under amortised cost* 7,647 -
Interest on borrowings — Bond 322 -
Interest expense 16,876 3,166
Loss on interest rate swaps 573 632
Foreign exchange loss 3,696 94
Unwinding of discount on provisions 457 197
Lass on fair value of warrants (note 19) 5,402 -
Finance charges — early settlement fees for assumed Singleton loan 1.364 -
Finance expense recognised in income statement 28,368 4,089

*  Costs are in relation to the Group refinanang further details can be found n note 18
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Consolidated Financial Statements - Notes continued

7 Tax charge/(credit) on loss on ordinary activities

Year 15 months
ended ended
31March 3% March
2013 2012
£000 £000

UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the penod - -
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods (161) -
Total current tax charge/(credit) {161} -

Deferred tax

Current year/penod chargef(credit) relating to the ongmation or reversal of temporary differences 13.274 (5,773
Credit in relation to pnor penods {757) -
Total deferred tax chargedcredit) 12,517 (5,773)
Tax chargef{credit) on profit or loss on ordinary activities 12,356 (5.773)

Factors affecting the tax charge or (credit)
The tax assessed for the year does not reflect a credit equivalent to the loss on ordinary activities multiphed by the rate of corporation
tax and supplementary charge for nng-fenced businesses in the United Kingdom A reconaliation of the UK statutory corporation

tax rate applicable to the Group's loss before tax to the Group's total tax charge 15 as follows

Year 15 manths

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

(Loss) on ordinary actimties before tax (5,999) (17,897)
Expected tax charge/{credit) based on profit or loss on ordinary actmties multiplied by the combined rate of

corporation tax and supplementary charge in the UK of 62% {2012 62%) (3.719) (11,096)

Prior year deferred tax credit (757) -

Prior year current tax credit (161) -

Tax effect of expenses not allowable for tax purposes 720 565

Tax effect of expenses not allowable for supplementary charge purposes 4,383 135

Impact of profits or losses taxed or relieved at different rates 7.389 2,364

Net increase in unrecognised tosses carried forward 3,981 2,259

Other 20 -

Tax chargeAcredit) on loss on ordinary activities 12,356 (5,773)

Following the acquisition of Star in December 2011 and PR Singleton in Febiruary 2013, the majonty of the Group's profits are
now generated by “ning fence” businesses which attract UK corporation tax and supplementary charge at a combined rate of 62%,
rather than the small companies rate of 20% borne by the Group prior to the acquisition

Tax losses

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences where the directors beheve 1t 1s probable
that these assets will be recovered Such tax losses nclude £49 million of nng-fence corporation tax losses and £25 million of supplementary
charge losses

The Group has further tax losses and other similar attnbutes carned forward of approximately £65 milhon (2012 £53 million} on which no
deferred tax 1s recognised due to insufficrent certainty regarding the avallability of appropnate future taxable profits This may affect future
tax charges should certain subsidianes in the Group produce taxable trading profits in future penod where there 1s currently uncertamnty

of the tming of future taxable profits

The movement on the deferred tax hability 15 shown below

Year 15 manths

anded ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

€000 £000

Opening liabibity at beginrung of year/pertod 20,552 -
Tax credit relating to prior year/period {(757) -
Tax chargeXcredit} during the year/period recognised in income statement 13,274 (5,773}
Deferred tax habiity arising from business combinations 7125 26,325

Closing liability at end of year/penod 40,194 20,552
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7 Tax charge/(credit) on loss on ordinary activities continued
The following 1s an analysis of the deferred tax iability by category of temporary difference

31 March 31 March

2013 2052

£000 £000

Accelerated capital allowances 83,242 58,458
Tax losses carried forward (23,910) (16,601)
Decommissioning provision (13,222} (11,244)
Unrealised gains or losses on dervative contracts (5.718) (10,147)
Share based payments (198) (40)
Other - 126
Deferred Tax Liabilities 40,194 20,552

8 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the penod attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of Ordinary Shares cutstanding during the period

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders cf the parent by the weighted average
riumber of shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of Crdinary Shares that would be issued on the
conversion of all the potentially dilutive Ordinary Shares into Ordinary Shares

Adjusted EPS amounts are calculated by dwiding the loss for the period, after adjusting for one-off costs relating to acquisitions and
“mark to market” valuation adjustments which do not reflect the trading of the Group, attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the parent by the adjusted weighted average number of shares outstanding dunng the penod

Diluted adjusted EPS amounts are calculated by dwiding the loss for the peniod, after adjusting for one-off costs relaung to acquisitions
and “mark to market” valuatron adjustments which do not reflect the trading of the Group, attributable to the ardinary equity holders
of the parent by the duted adjusted weighted average number of shares cutstanding dunng the period

The following reflects the income and share data used n the basic and diluted earrings per share computations

Year 15 months

ended enged

31 Merch 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000
Basic EPS - Ordinary Shares of 10p each {Pence) (11 11p) {8 14p)
Diluted EPS — Ordmnary Shares of 10p each (Pence) (11 11p) (8 14p)
Adjusted EPS — Ordinary Shares of 10p each (Pence} (191p) 5 64p
Adjusted Diluted EPS — Ordtnary Shares of 10p each (Pence} (191p) 543p
Loss for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent - £000 {18,355} {12,124}
Add back {Gam)/loss on ol price swaps (938) 18,512
Loss on interest rate swaps 573 632
Acquisition costs 59 2,986
Imparment of explaration and evaluation assets 1,093 42
Lossfgain) on revaluation of warrants 5,402 {1,651)
Early settlement fees for assumed Singleton foan 1,364 -
Debt costs written off 7.647 -
Ad|usted {loss)/profit for the year (3,155) 8,397
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year — basic EPS, diluted EPS and adjusted basic EPS 165,257,078 148,947,106
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year - adjusted diluted EPS 165,257,078 154,760,053

There are 24,682,523 potentially difutive warrants and options over the Ordinary Shares at 31 March 2013 (2012 23,855,505), which are
not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share and adjusted eamings per share in 2013 because they were anti-dilutive for
the period as thetr conversion to Ordinary Shares would decrease the loss per share
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Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes continued

9 Acquisitions

Acquisition of PR Singleton Limited (Renamed Island Gas (Singleton) Limited)

On 28 February 2013, the Company acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of PR Singleton Limited (“Singleton”), an unhsted ol and gas
exploration and productton Company for a cash consideration of £13 9 million and assumed borrowings of £28 3 mulion The acquisttion
of Singleton added 100% of PEDL 240, 50% of PEDL 233, bringing a number of development opportunities and an experenced
execution team

The Singleton acquisiion has been accounted for as a business combination by the acquisition method of accounting with an effective
date of 28 February 2013, being the date the Group gained control of Singleton The faw value allocation to Singleton's assets and habilities
1s provisional subject to further analysis of the oil and gas properties acquired including the Baxter’s Copse and Burton Down fields

Assets acquired and habilities assumed
The fair values of the rdentifiable assets and habiities of Singleton as at the date of acqussition were

Provisional
far value
£a00
Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 12} 41,568
Cash and cash equivalents _
Trade and other receivables 1,178
Inventories 362
43,108

tiabilities
Borrowings (26,939)
Deferred tax habilities (7.125)
Provisions (Note 20) (4,776)
(38.840)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 4,268
Purchase consideration transferred plus provisional working capital adjustments* 15,092
Goodwill 10,824

* Upon acquisition the Group settled the assumed borrowings The settlement of the borrowings and consideration were financed by a £23 4 mihon facrlity wath Macquane Bank
uimited and £20 8 milion of existing 1Gas cash resources £13 9 million was paid for the acquisibon at completion date and a further £1 2 million s payable for working capital

The far value of contractual receivables amounts 10 £0 9 mithon The gross value of the contractual recevables amounts to £0 9 million,
with £nil not expected to be recewed

Accrued transaction costs in respect of the Singleton acquisition of £59 thousand have been recognised in the Income Statement

From the date of acquisition, Singleton has contnbuted £1 mullion of revenue and £1 3 million loss towards the net loss before tax of the
Group If the combination had taken place at 1 Apnl 2012, the Group's revenue from continuing operations for the year would have been
£78 0 millron and the Group's operating loss before tax and acquisiion costs for the Group would have been £2 6 million

The goodwall of £10 8 million is discussed further in note 10

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

£000
Consideraticn paid for Singleton {included i cash flows relating to investing activities) 13,877
Net cash flow on acquisitron of Singleton 13,877

Acquisition of Star Energy Group Limited

On 14 December 2011, the Group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Star Energy Group Limited ("Star”), an unlisted ol and gas
exploration and production Company for a cash consideration of £110 miflkon The acquisition of Star added a portfolio of 25 UK onshare
hcences, occupying or gwring 105 sites with an mventory of 247 wells (of which 85 are currently still in operation), a number of development
and exploration opportunities and an expentenced execution team

The Group funded the acquisition by way of a U53135 milhon debt facilty from Macquane Bank Limited, cash generated by Star and held
n escrow prior to dosing and 1Gas” existing cash resources
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9 Acquisitions continued

The accounting for the acquisition of Star as of 14 December 2011 {acquisition date) was only provisionally determined in respect of the fair

values of certan assets acquired and habihities assurmed Duning the year ended 31 March 2013, the necessary valuations and assessments
have been undertaken so that the accounting for this acquisition has been finzlised The detals of the adjustments of the provisionally
determined fair values of assets acquired and habilities assumed are shown below

Provisonal Acquired final
fair value Adjustments farr values
£ 000 £ 000 Comments {000
Assets
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 3,775 - 3,775
Property, plant and equipment 108,739 {5,608) 15 103,041
Investment in assoCiate - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 30,707 - 30,707
Trade and other recevables 6,809 - 6,809
Inventones 1,368 - 1,368
151,398 (5.698) 145,700
Labilities
Trade and other payables (9,685) - (9,685}
Current tax habilities (5.934) 394 2 (5,540}
Deferred tax liabiliues (29,004) 2,679 35 (26,325}
Pravisions (12,329 (5.291) 4 {17,615)
(56,947) (2.218) (59,165)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 94,451 (7,916) 5 86,535
Purchase consideration transferred 110,050 - 110,050
Goodwill 15,599 7916 23,515
1 Wnte down based on final externat valuation for land acquired
2 Final tax computaticns based on the final acgusiuon balance sheet
3 Rewvision based on adjustrments made to property plant and equipment and provisions
4 Revision based on re assessment of future decommissioning hability
5 The adstments to finalise the accounting for the acguisiion have been amended as compared to those reported in the Intenm Repart for the six months ended

30 September 2072 in order to correct the valuation of property plant ang equipment which had been overstated by £4 4 million In 2dditon to reduring the assets by
£4 4 milion this adjustment decreased related deferred tax hiabilities by £2 8 milhon and goodwill has increased by £1 6 milion In addiwon deferred tax at acguisiion date
has been increased by £4 2m following further analysis of assets acquired and related tax attnbutes This adjustment has increased goodwill by a corresponding amount

10 Goodwilt 31 March 3% March
2013 202

£000 000

Opening balance 23,515 -
Acquistions 10,824 23,515
Accumulated impairment losses - -
34,339 23,515

Goodwill of £10 8 million was generated in the penod, as described in note 9 above

Goodwilt all relates to the acquisitions of Star and PR Singleton and anses prinaipally because of the following factors
1) the requirement to recognise deferred income tax assets and habilities for the difference between the assigned farr values and the
tax bases of assets acquired and hahilities assumed in a business combination at amounts that do not reflect far value,
2) theintangible value of an expenenced team of ol industry professionals with experience of operating in the UK onshare market,
3} the relauonships and reputation developed by the acquired business with central and local government in Great Britain, and
4} the considerable potential for discovery of additional reserves of hoth conventional and unconventional rescurces in Star's and
PR Singleton’s licence areas

Impairment testing of Goodwaill
Goodwill has been assigned to the UK business segment, the level at which goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes
The UK business segment 1s considered the cash generating unit for the purpose of any impairment testing of this goodwill

The Group tests goodwill annually for imparment or more frequently If there are indications that goodwalt might be impaired The
Company has undertaken an impairment review of goodwill as at 31 March 2013 The Group assessed whether goodwill was impaired
by calculating the value-in-use using discounted future cash flows of the cash generating urit and comparning this to the total carrying
value of the cash generating unit Including goodwill
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10 Goodwill continued

The calculation of value in use includes the followng key assumptions
¢ Production volumes

* Crude oil prices

* Discount rate

Estimated production volumes are based on detailled data for each of the Group's fields and take into accourt development plans for the
fields agreed by management as part of the iong-term planning process

Value in use calculations are based on cash flows expected to he generated by projected ail production profiles up 10 the expected
cessation of production dates Future operating and capital expenditure were based on management's assessment, and production
and reserve profiles were based on proved and probable reserves as determined by an independent reserve evaluator

The crude ol prices used are based on the forward o1l price curve and on management’s view of long term price

The pre-tax discount rate in 2013 1s 19 per cent The period over which the Group has projecied cash flows s 1in excess of five years and
Is believed to be appropnate as it 1s underpinned by estimates of commercial reserves

It was determined that the carrying amount of goodwill s not impaired

The drrectors have considered the sensitvty of the key assumptions and have concluded that any possible changes that may be reasonably
contemplated in these key assumptions would not result in the value in use falling below the carrying value of goodwitl

11 Intangible exploration and avaluation assets

Exploration and
evaluation
£000

Cost
At 1 January 2011 4,644
Additions 19,132
Acquisitions* 33,485
Changes in decommissioning 18
Impairment (42}
At 31 March 2012 57,237
Additions 2,51
Changes in decommissioning 23
Impairment (1,093)
At 31 March 2013 58,668
Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 January 2011 -
Charge for the penod -
At 31 March 2012 -
Charge for the year -
At 31 March 2013 -
Net book amount
At 31 March 2012 57,237
At 31 March 2013 58,668

* Included in the pnor year acquisition s £28 7 million relating to the acquisition of 1Gas Exploration UK Limited

£1 1 milion of costs were imparred during the year (2012 £42 thousand) relating to expenditure on a site (PEDL 115) where no future
exploration activity was planned and the hcense was therefore relinquished
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Equipment
Used for Buldingslease
Exploration hold property Olandgas  Fistures fitings Motor
and Evaluation Freetald land umprovements. properties and egupment vehucles Total
£000 £000 £600 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2011 179 - - - 21 20 220
Additions - - - 592 72 8 672
Disposals - - - - (19} (8) 2n
Acquisitions - 866 539 99,837 593 1,206 103,041
At 31 March 2012 179 866 539 100,429 667 1,226 103,906
Additions - - - 1,055 28 - 1,083
Disposals - - - {29) (14) (173} (216}
Acquisitions - - - 41,566 2 - 41,568
Changes in decommissioning - - - 5.3%6 - - 5,396
At 31 March 2013 179 866 539 148,417 683 1,053 151,737
Depreciation and Impasrment
At 1 January 201 6 - - - 4 5 15
Charge for the penod 25 - 336 2,756 139 98 3,354
Disposals - - - - - (8) (8)
At 31 March 2012 31 - 336 2,756 143 95 3,361
Charge for the year 20 - 164 9,523 203 260 10,170
Disposals - - - - (10} (162} (172)
At 31 March 2013 51 - 500 12,279 336 193 13.359
Net book amount
At 31 March 2012 148 866 203 97,673 524 1,131 100,545
At 31 March 2013 128 866 39 136,138 347 860 138,378

Included in the total net book value of fixed assets s ml (2012 £210 thousand) in respect of assets held under finance leases and similar

hure purchase contracts Depreciation for the period on these assets was nil (2012 £12 thousand)

Under the terms of the faclity agreement, Macguane Bank Limuted has a fixed and floating charge qver all these assets This charge was
released on the 10 Apnl 2013 when the Macquarne loan was settled and was replaced with the Bond

13 Investment in associate
Associate

Detarls of the Groups associate as at 31 March 2013 are as follows

Associate

Country of incorporation

Principal actwity

Class and percentage of shares held

Larchford Limited

United Kingdem

Ol nig contractor

33% Ordinary shares of £1 each

Larchford (in which a 33% interest was acquired as part of the acquisition of Star) was already in significant financial difficulties at the time

that the Group purchased Star, and the company went into liguidation on March 6, 2012 As a result, the Group has ceased to have any
significant influence over the company and the investment has a £nil value at 31 March 2013 (2012 £nil) Recewables due from Larchford

are included in note 15
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14 Inventories

31 March 31 March

2013 2002

£000 £000

il Stock 836 429
Dnilfing matenals 43 42
Maintenance matenals 177 245
1,056 716

15 Trade and other receivables 31 March 31 March
2013 2012

£000 £009

VAT recoverable 305 1,454
Trade debtors 6,529 8,656
Other debtors 404 220
Amount due from Larchford - 252
Prepayments 1331 1,531
8,569 12,113

Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms

Of the Group’s financial assets as stated above £nif thousand (2012 £878 thousand) were past due at the reporting date An impairment
of £252 thousand has been provided aganst the amounts due from Larchford (2012 £626 thousand) The ageing of the financial assets
(trade debtors, other debtors and amounts due from associate} is as follows

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

Not yet due 6,783 8,876
Qverdue by not more than three months - -
More than three manths but not more than six months - -
More than six months but not more than one year - 252
6,783 9,128

16 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 31 March
2013 2012

£000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 9,831 7,815
9,831 7,915

The carrying value of the Group's cash and cash equivalents as stated above 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of therr

farr value

The Group only deposits cash surpluses wath major banks that have acceptable credit ratings of “A” or better, with the exception of banks

where the UK government is the major shareholder

Other financial assets - Restricted cash

31 March 31 March
2013 2082
£000 £000

Restncted cash 102,865 -

102,865 -

On 22 March 2013 the Company raised bonds to a value of US$156 2 million The cash relating to these bonds were receved into,
and held n Escrow, remaining restncted untib all of the conditions precedent were satisfied in relation to the Bond 1ssued

On 10 April 2013, 3l conditions precedent were met by the Group and the funds in Escrow were reclassified as cash and cash eguivalents
Part of these funds were used to repay the bank faciity agreement with Macquane Bank Ltd, plus outstanding interest and all associated
break fees, termination fees and costs of closing out the hedges The remainder 15 being used for general corporate purposes of the
Group See note 28 for further details of refinancaing
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17 Current habihities

31 March 3% March
2013 2002
£000 000

Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 2,102 3,509
Employment related taxation 209 n7z
Accruals and other creditors 11,745 6,254
14,056 10,480

The carrying value of each of the Group s financial habitities 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value Al creditors
are payable within one month and na creditors have been outstanding for longer than three months (2012 all within one month)

18 Borrowings
Borrowangs are measured at amortised cost in accordance with |AS 39

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Within Graater Within Greater
1 year than 1 year Total 1 year than 1 year Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Macquarie — Facility A** 38,673 - 38,673 16,475 32,818 49,293
Macquarie — Facility B** 29,634 - 29,634 - 25,659 25,659
Macquarie —Facility C 21,403 - 21,403 - - -
Sub total 89,710 - 89,710 16,475 58,477 74,952
Issued Bonds* 5.466 94,542 100,408 - - -
Sub total 5,466 94,942 100,408 - - -
Total 95,176 94,942 190,118 16,475 58,477 74,952

*  Transaction costs of raising debt of £2 8 milien (**2012 £7 6 milion) have been netted off aganst the labiity

Macquarie financaing

On 21 November 2011 the Company and Macquane entered into a semior secured facihity agreement {the “Credit Agreement”)
which were repaid on 10 Apnl 2013 On 11 February 2013 the Company signed an expansion of the exsting loan facility with
Macguane to increase the amount available to draw down fram facility C, which was repaid on 10 April 2013

The Credit Agreement consisted of three separate facilities

(1) Facity A US$ 90,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 5 5% over LIBOR and a 2% commitment fee,

(n) Facility B US$ 45,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 12% above LIBOR and a commitment fee of 3 5%, and

(m) Factity € US$ 90,000,000 3 year senior secured term loan of which U$$32 5 mitlon was drawn down, carrying interest at 12% above
LIBOR and a commiiment fee of US$2 million on imtial drawdown, with a 2% fee thereafter

The Credit Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary for a credit facility of this nature Such
covenants include the provisien of financial and reporting information, compliance with environmental law, maintenance of financial ratios
and certain restrictions on mergers, acquisitions, jont ventures, granting of secunty, disposals, 1ssuances of loans, incurrence of financial
indebtedness and on payments of dividends by the Company and its operating subsidiaries The Credit Agreement also contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which allow Macquane {(and any other fender that accedes to the Credit Agreement) to accelerate
outstanding loans and terminate the commitments The faclities are required to be repaid In full on the date that 1s 60 months following
the completion of the Acquisition of Star Energy Group Limited, or on a change of control or the sale of the assets of the Group

In accordance with 1AS 1 the Macgquane faclites were re-classified as current hiabilities as at 31 March 2013 as the Group had intended
to repay these facilities upon completion of the Bonds The facilities were re-measured at 31 March to take into account the change

in the estimated future cashffows The re-estimation resulted in a difference of £7 6 milion which s recognised s recognised in finance
costs in the income statement for the year

On 10 April 2013, the loan with Macquarie (Faciity A, B and C) was repaid o full This was funded by the cash raised from the ssuance
of the Bonds The table below summanses the Macquarie [oan balance upon repayment

£000
Macquarie debt at amortised cost (per above) (89,710}
Accrued interest to 10 Apnl 2013 (305)

Repayment of borrowings and accrued interest 90,015
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18 Borrowings continued

Bond 1ssuance

On 21 March 2013, the Company and Norsk Tillitsmann {“"Bond Trustee”) entered nto a Bond Agreement for the Company to 1ssue

up to 165 million US$1 Bonds (the “Bond™) At 31 March 2013 US$156 2 million of bonds had been sold with the funds paid into escrow

By 10 Apni 2013, the conditions precedent under the Bond Agreement were met, with the related cash then released from escrow
to the Company Part of the net proceeds of the Bond were used to repay the outstanding loan balance with Macquarnie Bank Ltd,
plus outstanding interest and all associated break fees, termination fees and to pay costs associated with closing out hedges

The remainder ts being used for general corporate purposes by the Group

The Bond carries a coupon of 10% per annuem (where interest 1s payable semi-annually in arrears} and semi-annual amortisation of 2 5%
of imual loan amount Final matunty on the notes will be 22 March 2018

The Bond Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary for an instrument of this nature Such
covenants indude the growvision of financial and reporting infarmation, compliance with environmental law, mantenance of financial ratias
and certain restrictions on mergers, acguistions, joint ventures, granting of security, disposals, issuances of loans, incurrence of financal
indebtedness and on payments of dvidends by the Company and its operating subsidiaries The Bond Agreement also contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which allows The Bond Trustee (on behalf of the bond holders) to accelerate outstanding bonds and
terminate the commitments

Further details regarding the Group's refinancing can be found in note 28

19 Other habilittes

£o00
At 1 January 2011 ~
Warrants 1ssued durning period 4,457
Revaluation gain (1,651)
As at 31 March 2012 2,806
Woarrants i1ssued durnng year -
Revaluation loss 5,402
As at 31 March 2013 8,208

Warrants issued to Macquane Bank under the Facilities Agreement can be exercised in three different ways and, although the cost to
the Company would ke the same under each exercise option, these warrants do not qualify as equity Instruments under I1AS39 due
1o the vanable number of shares that would be issued in each case Accordingly they have been accounted for as financial habiliies

All warrants vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made in arriving at the Black-Scholes valuations were share price on
date of valuation, adjusted for subsequent consolidations where appropriate and the length of tme for which the warrants were expected
to remain exercisable A risk free interest rate of 1 09% and an implied volatiity of 35% were used In valung the warrants at the time of
granting, and an interest rate of 0 62% and an implied volatility of 37 04% at 31 March 2013 it was also assumed that no dividends
would be pard dunng the life of the warrants

Movement durning the peniod was as follows

Werghted

average

exercse proe

Mo (pence)

At 1 January 2011 _ -
Granted in penod 21,286,646 558
Lapsed in penod - _
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 21,286,646 558
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 21,286,646 558
Granted in year - _
Lapsed tn year - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 21,286,646 558
Exercisable at 31 March 2013 21,286,646 558

The weighted average remaining contractual Iife for the warrants outstanding as at 31 March 201315 4 75 years
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20 Provisions for habilities and charges

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Decommussioning Other Total Decommmssioning Cther Toal
£000 £000 £000 1000 £000 £000
At the beginning of the year/penod 18,283 100 18,383 - - -
New prowsions - - - 445 - 445
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4776 - 4,776 17,598 160 17,758
Unwinding of discount 457 - 457 157 - 197
Reassessment of decommussioning provision/
abilities 5.419 - 5,419 - - -

Utiisation/write back of prowision 5) (25) (30) 43 {60) (an
At the end of the perrod 28,930 75 29,005 18,283 100 18,383

Included In the prior year acquisition of subsidiary 15 £143 thousand relating to the acquisttion of 1Gas Exploration UK Limited

Proviston has been made for the discounted future cost of restonng fields to a condition acceptable to the relevant authorries The
abandanmens of the fields is expected to happen at vanous tmes between one to 35 years from the pericd end These prowisions have
been created based on the Groups’ internal estimates Assumptions based on the current economic environment have been made, which
management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future hability These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into
account any matenal changes to the assumptions However, actual decommuissioning €osts will ultimately depend upon future market
prices for the necessary decommusstoning works required that will reflect market conditions at the relevant ime Furthermore, the timing
of decommissioning is likely to depend on when the fields cease to produce at economecally viable rates This, in turn will depend upon
future ol and gas prices, which are inherently uncertain

The nisk free rate range of 0 25% to 3 02% s used in the calculation of the prowision as at 31 March 2013 (2012 Risk free rate range
of 035% to 3 16%)

21 Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme The pension charge for the year ended 31 March 2013 represents
contributions payable by the Group to pension funds and amounted to £571,000 (2012 £260,000)

Contributions amounting to £97,500 (2012 £84,000) were accrued at 31 March 2013 and are incduded in creditors

22 Commitments
The Group's capital and lease commitments comprised

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000

Capital Commitment
Obligation under 13th kcensing round 2,000 2,000
Total capital commitments 2,000 2,000

Finance lease commitments

The Group used finance leases to acquire property, plant and equipment with a net book value of nil 2012 £210,000) These leases had
terms of renewal but no purchase options or escalation clauses Renewals are at the option of the lessee Future minimum lease payments
under finance leases are set out below

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000

Future minimum lease payments payable within
1 year - 52
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
- 52
Less finance charge - 1
Net obligations - 51
Of which — payable within 1 year - 51
- payable within 1 to 2 years - -
- payable within 2 to 3 years - -
- 51

Secunty 1s given far net obhgations under finance leases faling due within one year and after more than one year with a fixed charge over
the relevant assets of the Group relative to the amount outstanding
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22 Commitments continued
Operating lease commitments

Year 15 months

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in profit for the year/penod 1,661 573
At the balance sheet date the Group had miimum [ease payments under non-cancellable operatung lease for

each of the following years

—expiring within 1 year 456 307

—expiring within 2 to 5 years 1,634 520

—over 5 years 378 -

Total 2,508 827

23 Finanaal instruments and nisk management
In accordance with IFRS 7, the Group has detaled the financial instruments and risk management as at the balance sheet date

Fair values
Set out below 15 a companson by dass of the carrying amourts and farr value of the financial instruments that are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet

Camrying amount Fair vatue
31 March 31 March 31 March 3% March

2013 2012 2013 012

£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Loans and recevables
Cash and cash equivalents’ 9,831 7915 9,831 7,915
Other financial assets — restricted cash’ 102,865 - 102,865 -
Trade and other recevables’ 6,783 9,128 6,783 9,128
Finanaal habilittes
Amortised cost
Finance lease? - 51 - 51
Borrowings (floating ratef 89,710 74,952 89,710 82,296
Borrowings (fixed rate)? 100,408 - 103,150 -
Trade and other payables' 2,102 3,509 2,102 3,509
Fair value through profit and loss
Commodity price swaps?* 9,222 16,161 9,222 16,161
Interest rate swaps? 779 532 779 532
Warrants® 8,208 2,806 8,208 2,806

1 The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents other financial assets short-term receivables and payables are assumed to approximate therr fair values where discounting
15 not matenal

2 The farr value of borrowings and other financial habiities has been calculated by discounung the expected future cash flows at prevaling market interest rates for instruments
with substantially the same terms and charactenistics

3 The far value of commodity price swaps and interest rate swaps are determined using discaunted cash flow analysis at guated commodity prices and interest rates

4 Some 55% of the commodity price swaps indude an embedded foreign currency forward which has not been accounted for or valued separately

5 The fair value of warrants 1s estimated using a Black Scholes valuation model

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the financal instruments by valuation technique

= Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habilitias,

= Level 2 other techrugues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are abservable, either directly
or indirectly, and

s Level 3 technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recarded farr value that are not based on observable
market data
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23 Financial instruments and risk management continued
The financial assets and babilities measured at fair value are categorised into the fair value hierarchy as at the reporting dates as follows

Level 1 Level 2 Levet 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2013
Commodity price swaps - 9,222 - 9,222
Interest rate swaps - 779 - 779
Warrants - 8,208 - 8,208
Total - 18,209 - 18,209
At 31 March 2012
Commadity price swaps - 16,161 - 16,161
Interest rate swaps - 532 - 532
Warranis - 2,806 - 2,806
Total - 19,499 - 19,495

Denvative finanaal instruments
The Group enters into certain swap contracts in order to manage its exposure to commodity price sk and forergn exchange nsk associated
with sales of o in US dollars and interest rate risk associated with debt service costs

The outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2013 were as follows

Fair value at
Average Fixed 31 March 2013

Term Contract amount Contract prce/rate Price/Rate £c00
US dollar commodity price swaps 20132017 1,251 Mbbls oit $90-$105 65/bbl  $97 97/bbl 2,060
Pound sterling commaodity price swaps  2013-2017 1,610 Mbbls oil  £56 70-£63 60/bbl  £60 74/bbi 7,162
Interest rate swaps 2012-2016  $51 9m dechning to $22 8m 091%-1 36% 1 20% 779

The Group’s commodity price swaps matured over the penod from 1 Aprif 2013 to 31 December 2017 on contracted volumes that decline
in line with the Group's 2P production profile During the year to 31 March 2013 od hedges for 573 thousand barrels (2012 146 thousand
barrels) matured generating a net cost of £5 9 milhion (2012 £2 3 mitlion)

The Group's interest rate swaps matured over the peniod from 1 April 2013 to 13 December 2016 with a profile inked to the expected
repayment of principal on the Macquarie Facilities grior to the refinanaing in Apnl 2013 (see note 28) As no denvative instrurment has
been designated for hedge accounting, all gains and losses are recognised immediately in the 1ncome statement within finance costs

Dervative financial instrument hatihties were classified as current habilities at 31 March 2013 as the Group had intended to settle the
dervatives upon completion of the bonds Further details can be found in note 28

Financial sk management

The Group’s pnncipal financial iabedities, other than denvatves, compnse borrowings, warrants and trade and other payables The main
purpose of these financial hiabilities 1s to finance the Group's operations including the Group's capital expenditure programme and to fund
acqussitions The Group has trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations and
restricted cash The Group also enters into derivative transactions

The Group manages its expasure to key financial nsks in accardance with its financial risk management pohicy The abjective of the policy
15 10 support the Group’s finanaal targets while proteciing future financial secunity The Group is exposed to the following nisks

= Market nisk, including commodity price, interest rate, and fareign currency risks

e Credit sk

« Liquidity nsk

Management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below Itis the Group's policy that
all transactions wnvolving derivatives must be directly refated to the underlying business of the Group The Group does not use derivative
financial nstruments far speculative exposures

Market nisk
Market nisk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finanaal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices,
such as commodity price nisk, interest rate nisk and foreign currency risk

The sensitvity analyses below have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of financial instruments
in foreign currencies are all constant and that finanaial dervatives are held to matunty The sensitivity analyss is intended to lilustrate the
sensitvity to changes in market vanables on the Group's finangal instrurnents and show the impact on profit or loss and shareholders
equity, where apphcable
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23 Finanaal instruments and risk management continued

The following assumptions have been made in caleulating the sensitivity analysis

= The sensitivity of the relevant prafit before tax item is the effect of the assumed changes in respeciive market risks This 1s based on the
financial assets and financial iathties held at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, and

» The mpact on eguity 15 the same as the mipact on profit before tax and ignores the effects of deferred tax, if any

Commodity price nisk
The Group 1s exposed to the risk of fluctuations in prevailing market commodity prices {pnmarly crude od) o the mix of all and gas
products it produces The Group’s policy 15 10 manage these risks thraugh the use of dervative financial Instruments

The following table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in cornmodity prices on the fair value of dervative financial
Instruments The impact on eguity 1s the same as the impact on profit befare tax as these derwvative financial instruments have not been
designated as hedges and are classified as held-for-trading

The analysis s based on hedges existing at balance sheet date, the assumption that crude oif price moves 10%, with all other vanables

held constant Increase/{decrease) in profit befare

1ax for the penod ended and to

equity as at
31March2013 31 March 2012
£000 £000
10% Increase in the price of il (15.681) {12,300)
10% decrease in the price of oll 15.681 12,300

Interest rate nisk

The Group's exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarnly to the Group's borrowings with floating interest rates
The Group's policy s to manage its interest cost using derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) The Group s policy Is to keep
approximately half of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest

The following table summarises the impact on profit tefore tax for changes 1n interest rates on the far value of interest rate swaps
The impact on equity 1s the same as the impact on profit before tax as these dervative finanaal instruments have not been designated
as hedges and are classified as held-for-trading

The analysis 1s based on the assumption that US-dollar LIBOR moves 50 basis points, with all other vanables held constant

Increasefdecrease) in orofit before tax
for the pernod ended and to

equity as at
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000 £C00
50 basis point increase in LIBOR 362 800
50 basis pomnt decrease in LIBOR (362) (800)

Foreign currency nisk

The Group has transactional currency exposures Such exposure anses from sales or purchases in currenaies other than the UK pounds
sterling, the functional currency of all Group companies The Group's sales are denominated in US dollars, and around 5% of costs are
denominated In currenctes other than the functional currencies of the entities within the Group, primarily US dollars The Group manages
this nsk through the use of dervative financial iInstruments (commodity price swaps) which fix the price of ail in pounds sterkng

The commodity price swaps dencminated n sterling account for 55% of the total production covered by commodity price swaps

(the remainder are denominated in US dollars), fang the exchange rate

The following table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in the US dollar/pound sterling exchange rate on the finanaal
assets and liabilittes in the balance sheet at period end The impact on equity 1s the same as the impact on profit before tax

The analysis 15 based on the assumption that the pound moves 10%, wath all other variables held constant

Increase/decrease) in profit before tax
far the period ended and {o

equity as at
31March 2013 31 March 2012
£000 £000
10% strengthering of the pound against the US dollar 8,694 14,666

10% weakering of the pound against the US dollar (8.694) (14,666)
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23 Financial tnstruments and risk management continued

Credit nsk

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties tis the Group's policy to assess the credit nisk of new customers
before entenng contracts Under this policy, each new customer is analysed indiwidually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered The Group's review includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases
bank and trade references

The exposure to credit nsk from credit sales 1s not considered significant given the small number of well established credit customers
and zero historic default rate

At 31 March 2013, the Group had 2 customers (2012 2) that owed the Group more than £2 5 million each and accounted for
approximately 90% (2012 95%j) of all recevables owing The need for impairment 1s analysed at each reporting date on an individuai
basis for major chents

With respect to credit nsk ansing from the ather financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash, the Group’s exposure to credit risk anses from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments The Group himits its counterparty credit nisk on these assets by dealing only with financial institutions with credit
ratings of at least A or equivalent other than if the UK government 1s a majority sharehoider

Refer to Note 15 for analysis of trade recewvables ageing

Liguidity nisk

The Group manages liquidity nisk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faalities and borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the matunty profiles of financal assets and hiabiities and future capital and operating commitments

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the Group’s financial iabilities at 31 March based on contractual undiscounted
payments (see note 28 for an updated profile for the borrowings}

On dernand < 1 year t-2 years 2-3years >3 years Totak
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2013
Borrowings (floating rate) - 89,710 - - - 89,710
Barrowings (fixed rate) - 11,071 10,769 10,491 100,669 133,000
Trade and other payables - 2,102 - - - 2,102
Warrants - 8,208 - - - 8,208
Dervative financial instruments
Commodity price swaps - 9,222 - - - 9,222
Interest rate swaps - 779 - - - 779
- 115,164 5,143 5,143 87,435 212,885
At 31 March 2012
Borrowings (floating rate) - 16,475 15,584 15,021 34,313 81,393
Trade and other payables - 3,509 - - - 3,509
Warrants - 2,806 - - - 2,806
Dermvative financial instruments
Commodity price swaps - 8,694 5,280 2,488 1,424 17,896
Interest rate swaps - 434 261 69 (241) 523
- 31,918 21,135 17,578 35,496 106,127

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it remains sufficiently funded to support its business strategy and maximise shareholder
value The Group’s funding needs are met through a combination of debt and equity (2012 funding reguirements met through a
combination of debt and equity} and adjustments are made 1n hght of changes in economic condiions The Group’s caprtal structure
changed in the peniod to 31 March 2012 as a result of the acquisitions it made and the related financing The Group’s strategy

1s to maintamn ratios in ine with covenants assocated with the semor debt facility

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt dvtded by equity plus net debt The Group includes within net debt,

interest beanng banik loans less cash and cash equivalents and restnicted cash Capital includes share capital, share premium, other reserves

and accumulated losses
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24 Share capital
On 31 December 2007 the Company completed a reverse takeover whereby Island Gas Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company but with IGL's shareholders acquinng 94% of the Ordinary Share capital of the combined entity (the “Reverse”)

In accordance with the required accounting for a reverse, the nominal value of the Company's share capital 1s not reflected in the Group's
consolidated equity For the purposes of the consolidated accounts share capital was recorded at the date of the Reverse at a value equal
to the deemed cost of the Reverse, being the adjusted market value of the Company as last quoted immediately prior to the
announcement of the Reverse, plus the equity of IGL, the effectve acquinng Company

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
£000 £000

No Nominal value No Nominat value
Issued and fully paid
1 January 2011, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 93,109,431 45,555 - -
09 March 2011 shares 1ssued at a price of 73 5p each 39,714,290 19,857 - -
10 March 2011 shares 1ssued at a price of 75p each 27,500,000 13,750 - -
14 December 2011 shares 1ssued at a price of 50 5p each 1,881,188 940 - -
31 March 2012, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 162,204,909 81,102 - -
16 August 2012 share conversion of each issued
Ordinary Shares of 50p each into (162,204,909) (81,102) - -
New Ordinary Shares of 10p each* 162,204,909 16,220 - -
New Deferred Shares of 40p each* - - 162,204,909 64,882
15 lanuary 2013 shares i1ssued at a price of 95p each 24,330,730 2,433
31 March 2013, Ordinary Shares of 10p each 186,535,639 18.653 - -
31 March 2013, Deferred Shares of 40p each - - 162,204,909 64,882

"

On 16 August 2012 the Company converted each Ordinary Share of 50p each :nto a New Qrdinary Share of 10p each and a New Deferred Share of 40p each pursuant to

an obligabon to Macquarie Bank Limited under the terms of the warrants issued during the pernod ended 31 March 2012 The New Ordinary Shares carry the same nights as
attached to Ordinary Shares Deterred shares have no voung nghts and shall not be enttted te any dvidends ar any ather nght or partiopation in the prafits of the Company
The Company had the night to purchase all the ssued New Deferred Shares from all Shareholders for an aggregate consideration of one penny On 16 August 2012

the Company repurchased the New Deferred Shares from all Shareholders for an aggregate consideration of one penny For further informauon see note 26

Accordingly, the Group share capital account comprised

£000
Share capital account

At 1 January 2011 19,665
Shares 1ssued dunng the period 34,548
At 31 March 2012 54,213
Shares 1ssued during the year 2,433
At 31 March 2013 56,646

25 Share premium account

The share premium account of the Group anses from the capital that the Company raises upon issuing shares for consideration in excess
of the nominal value of the shares net of the costs of Issuing the new shares During the year the Company issued 24,330,730 10p
ordinary shares at a price of 95p each (2012 69,095,478 shares issued) The cost of these 1ssues was £0 9 milhon {2012 £0 7 million)
Together these events resulted in a net movement in the Share Premium reserve of £13 7 million (2012 £15 5 million)

26 Other reserves
Other reserves can be analysed as follows

Treasury

Warrant/Share Plan shares  Capital Contnbutions Tetal

Reserves FO00 £000 £000 £000
Balance 1 January 2011 63 {1,299) - (1,236}
Employee share plans — cost under IFRS 2 49 - - 49
Capital contnbution - - 47 a7
Balance 31 March 2012 112 {1,299) 47 {1,140}
Employee share pians — cost under IFRS 2 343 - - 343

Balance 31 March 2013 455 {1,299) 47 (797)
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26 Other reserves continued
Employee share plans — Equity settled
Details of the share options under employee share plans outstanding duning the year are as fallows

2070 LTIP 2011 LTiP Share Optian Plan
Weighted Weighted Weghted
Numberof  average exercie Numberof  average exercise Numberof  average exercise
Options price (pence) Options price {pence) Optigns price (pence)
QOutstanding at 1 January 2011 1,125,000 - - - 1,322,204 70
Granted during the penod - - 2,107,485 - - -
Forferted dunng the penod (1,075,000} - - - (910,930} 70
Exercised dunng the pernod - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 50,000 - 2,107,485 - 411,274 70
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 - - - - - -
Granted duning the year - - 1,071,542 - - -
Forfeited duning the year (50,000) - - - {237,773) (70)
Lapsed duning the year - - - - {173,501) (70}
Exercised during the year - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 - - 3,179,027 - - -

Exercisable at 31 March 2013 - - - - - _

Long Term Incentive Plan 2010 (“LTIP")

In October 2010 the Company adopted a Long Term Ingentive Plan scheme for certain key employees of the Group Under the LTIP,
partiapants can each be granted nil cost options aver up to 1 5% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company {(subject to an overall plan
hmit of 7 5% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company for all partiipants) The LTIP has a three year performance period and awards
vest subject to the achievement of stretching share price targets On a change of control prior to the third anniversary of the grant date,

a revised share price target reflecting the reduction in the perfarmance period shall instead be used to determine the extent to which LTIP
options vest Other than on a change of control, 50% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting, with the remaiming 50%
becoming exercisable on the first anniversary of vesting There were no LTIPs i this scheme exercised during the year There were no
LTiPs outstanding at 31 March 2013

The total charge for the year was £2 thousand Of this amount, £l thousand was capitalised and £2 thousand was charged io the
ncome statement in relation to the fair value of the awards granted under the LTIP scherme measured at grant date using a Monte Carlo
Simulation Model

Long Term Incentive Plan 2011 {*2011 LTIP")

In November 2011 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentwe Plan scheme for certain key employees of the Group Under the LTIP,
partiapants can each be granted nif cost options over up to 300% of remuneration for the Initial Award and up to 150% of remuneration
for the Annual Award (subject to an overall plan hmit of 10% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company for all participants) The LTIP has
a three year performance penod and awards vest subject to share price performance exceeding the Company's weighted average cost of
capital of 10% On a change of control prior to the third anniversary of the grant date, a proportion of the options that vest will take into
account items such as the time the Option has been held by the participant and the performance achieved i the period from the grant
date Other than on a change of control, 100% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting

There were no LTIPs exercrsed dunng the year The LTIPs outstanding at 31 March 2013 had both a weighted average rematning
contractual hfe and maximum term remamning of 8 5 years

The total charge for the year was £218 thousand Of this amount, £26 thousand was capitalised and £192 thousand was charged to
the incame statement in relation to the farr value of the awards granted under the Share Option scheme measured at grant date using
a Monte Carlo Simulation Model

Share Option plan

In October 2010 the Company adopted a Share option plan for certain key employees of the Group Both executives and employees

may participate i the Share Option Plan Typically each indvidual participant can be granted options under the Share Option Plan with

a market value at grant of up to 100% of his base salary, although this imit can be exceeded n exceptionat arcumstances Share options
vest in three equal tranches over a three year penod from the date of grant and vested options are exercisable subject to the attainment
of a Company share price target

2010 grants under the Share Option Plan are subject to an exercise price of 70p per share

There were no options exercised during the year There were no unvested options outstanding at 31 March 2013
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26 Other reserves continued

The total charge for the year was £2 thousand Of this amount, £nil thousand was caprtabsed and £2 thousand was charged to the ncome
statement tn relation to the fair value of the awards granted under the Share Option scheme measured at grant date using a Monte Carlo
Simulation Model

The inputs into the Monte Carlo model were as follows

2010L5P 2011 TP Share Option Plan
Weighted average share price 64 5p 50 5p 64 5p
Weighted average exercise price il Nl 70p
Expected volatility 35% 35% 35%
Expected ife 65 years 6 5years 5-65 years
Risk-free rate 109% 0701% 1 09%
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average fair value of awards granted in 2012 n/a nfa nfa
Weighted average fair value of awards granted in 2011 n/a 2312p n/a

Other share based payments

Dunng the year, certain employees agreed to settle bonuses earned in the penod ended 31 March 2012 in share options The number

of share options 1ssued was 216,850 with a fair value of £148 thousand, measured indirectly with reference to the value of the option
Due to the fact that the options vested immediately with £ntl strike price and no condittans, the fair value of the aption equals the market
price of the share at the grant date There weré no options exercised during the year The options outstanding at 3% March 2013 had
both a we:ghted average remaining contractual ife and a2 maximum term of 8 75 years

Treasury shares
The Treasury shares of the Group have anisen in connection with,

The shares 1ssued ta the 1Gas Employee Benefit Trust of which the Campany 1s the sponsoring entity The value of such shares 1s recorded
in share capital and share premium account in the ordinary way and s also shown as a deduction from equity in this separate other reserve
account, and so there 1s no net effect on shareholders’ funds During the year ended to 31 March 2013 no shares were 1ssued 1o the
Employee Benefit Trust (2012 nil)

As detailed n Note 24, the Company repurchased all 162,204,909 Deferred Shares for an aggregate consideration of one penny
Following this repurchase, these Deferred Shares are held as treasury shares

Capstal contribution
The capital contribution of £47 thousand was received in cash following the acquisition of IGAS Exploration UK Limited

27 Related party transactions
The information below sets out transactions and balances between the Group and related parties in the normal course of business for the
year ended 31 March 2013

Transactions between the Group and its subsichanes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consohdation and are not
disclosed in this note

Nexen Petroleurn UK Limited 15 related by virtue of having as at 31 March 2013 a 21 29% share in the Group s a result of the Company’s
acquisiion of 1Gas Exploration UK Lirmited Pursuant to the terms of the Secondment Agreement dated 10 March 2011 entered into by the
Company, Nexen Petroleumn UK Limited provided varnious services in relation to the Group's operations For the year ended 31 March 2013,
the services provided duning the year to the Group amounted to £146 thousand of which mil thousand remained outstanding (2012 £264
thousand of which £nil thousand remained outsianding)

Larchiord is related by virtue of the Group's 33% nterest in the Company There were no transactions with Larchford dunng the penod
Aloan of £252 thousand between Latchford and Star Energy Limited was deemed unrecoveracle as Lachford went into iquidation
on & March 2012 This amount has been fully prowided for the period to 31 March 2043

F Gugen subscribed to US$5 milhon bonds issued by the Company These bonds will earn interest at 10% per annum  As at 31 March 2013
accrued interest amounted to US$13 9 thousand
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27 Related party transactions continued
The Directors of the Company are considered to be the only key management personnel as defined by IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures
Transactions with key management personnel were as follows

Year 15 Manths

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1.946 1,425
Share plan 162 199
2,108 1,624

Short-term employee benefits These amaunts comprise fees paid to the Directors in respect of salary and benefits earned dunng the
relevant financial penod, plus bonuses awarded for the penod

Share plan Thes 1s the cost to the Group of Directors” participation in LTIPs and Share Option plans, as measured by the fair value of LTIPs
and options granted, accounted for in accordance wath IFRS 2

Further details regarding transactions wath the Directors of the Group are disclosed in Note 5
There are no other related party transactions

28 Subsequent events

Refinancing

On 14 March 2013, the Group announced its intention to1ssue 165 milhon US$1 bonds (the “Bond”) Part of the proceeds from the Bond
were intended to repay the Macquarie Bark Ltd loan faciities and the settlement of hedges also taken out with Macquarie Bank Ltd

On 21 March 2013, a Bond Agreement was signed between the Company and Norsk Tillitsmann {*Bond Trustee”) As at 31 March 2013,
US$156 2 million Bonds had been sold

On the 10 Apni 2013, the Company successfully completed all conditions precedent to the satisfaction of the Bond Trustee, whereby the
funds raised by the Bonds were released to the Company By 30 Apni 2013, all the Bonds had been sold, raising a total of US$165 0 milion
before expenses

Part of the net proceeds of the Bond were used to repay the outstanding loans with Macquane Bank Ltd, plus outstanding interest and
all associated break fees, termination fees and costs of clesing out hedges The remainder 15 being used for general corporate purposes
of the Group The total amount used to repay the debt, hedges and early settlement fees was US$156 0 million, detalled as follows

USS000
Principal 136,225
Interest to 10 Apnl 2013 462
Total loan repayment 136,687
Oil hedge settlement {including payment in relation to amount accrued n March 2013} 15,061
Interest rate swaps settlement (including payment in relation to amount accrued in March 2013) 1,182
Total derivatives settlement 16,243
Fees and expenses 3,097
Total repaid 156,027

The bonds carry a coupon of 10% per annum (where mnterest 1s payable semi-annually in arrears) and sermi-annual amortisation of 2 5%
of inimial loan amount Final matunty on the notes will be 22 March 2018 The bonds are secured by @ pledge over shares of certain of the
Group's subsidiary companies

The Bond Agreement contains certain representations, warrantres and covenants customary for a facility of this nature Such covenants
include the provision of financial and reporting information, comphance with environmental law, maintenance of financial ratios and
certain restrictions on mergers, acquISItions, joInt ventures, granting of security, disposals, issuances of loans, incurrence of finanaal
indebtedness and on payments of dwvidends by the Company and its operating subsidianes The Bond Agreement also contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which allows The Bond Trustee {on behalf of the bond holders) to accelerate outstanding bonds
and terminate the commitments
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28 Subsequent events continued

As per the Group's accounting policy, the bonds were measured mitially at fair value After intial recognition, the Bond will subsequently
be measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate ("EIR) method Gains and losses will be recogrised in the income
staterment {as part of finance costs) when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortsatton process

The amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount or prermium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an ntegral part
of the EIR

The net proceeds recewved from the 1ssue of the Bonds will be reflected in the balance sheet net of 1ssue costs, representing the fair value
of the hability to the Company, as follows

Usscoo £000
Norminal value of bonds issued 165,000 108,660
Issue costs (4.457) (2,935)
Liability net of 1ssue costs 160,543 105,725
Interest and amortisation of 1ssue costs 1,927 1,269
Liabilty at 30 Aprit 2013 162,470 106,994

The interest charged for the year 1s calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 10 80% to the net hability The hability 15 measured
at amortised cost The difference between the carrying amount of the hability component at inception and the amount reported in the
balance sheet at 30 April 2013 represents the effective interest rate less nterest paid to that date

Part of the Bond proceeds were used to settle the Macguarie debt Details of the balance with Macquane at repayment are as follows

£000

Macgquare debt at amortised cost (Note 18} (89,710
Accrued interest to 10 April 2013 (305)
Repayment of borrowings and accrued interest 90,015

Macquane loan balance
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28 Subsequent events continued
Had the full Bond 1ssue of US$165 0 million completed at 31 March 2013, the impact on the consolidated balance sheet would have been
as follows

Pro forma Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2013 . sudbted broforma
31 March 31 March
2013 Adjustments* Adjustments® 2013
Motes £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets 231,385 - - 231,385
Current assets
QOther current assets ! 9,625 - - 9,625
Cash and cash eguivalents 9,831 - 6,240 16,071
Other financial assets - restricted cash 102,865 5,795 {108,660) -
Current assets 122,321 5,795 (102,420) 25,696
Current habilities
Other current habilities 2 (25,270 (145) 2,709 (22,706)
Borrowings - Macquarie (89,710} - 89,710 -
Borrowings — Bond (5,466) (290 - (5,756)
DOervatve finanaal instruments {10,001} - 10,0014 -
{130,447) (435) 102,420 {28,462)
Net current hiabilities (8,126) 5,360 - (2,766)
Total assets less current liabilities 223,259 5,360 - 228619
Non-current Labilities
Borrowings — Bond (94,942) {5.360) - (100,302)
Other non-current habilies 3 {69,199) - - (69 199)
{164,141 (5,360} - (169,501}
Net assets 59,118 - - 59,118
Shareholders’ funds 59,118 - - 59,118

Notes

1 Other current assets include inventories and trade and other recevables

2 Other current liabilities includes trade and other payables current tax labilities and other labiliues
3 Other non current hiabhties mclude deferred tax hatmhes and provisions

Adjustments
A Indudes funds recerved for remaining US$8 B mellion bonds net of associated fees which were sold in April 2013
B Repayment of Macquarie loan hedges and early cancellation fees upon completion of condiions precedent Exctudes interest paid to 10 Apnl 2013

Bonds
C McDowell subscnbed to US30 3 milhon bonds 1ssued by the Company These bonds will earn interest at 10% per annum

Hedging
On 16 Apnl 2013, the Group entered into new hedging arrangements by acquinng puts for ¢ 450,000 barrels at 145390 O/barrel and
€ 450,000 barrels at £58 8/barrel over the period at 31 March 2014

Issued Shares

In January 2013, the Company adopted the Share Investment Plan for afl employees of the Group The scheme was approved by HM
Revenue & Customs on 5 February 2013 On 22 April 2013, the Company 1ssued 475,002 Ordinary 10p shares in relation to the Groups
SIP scheme Further details regarding this scheme can be found in the Remuneration Report

On 26 june 2013, Macquane exercised warrants over 3,000,000 ordinary 10p shares The warrants were exerased at 55 8p per share
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Parent Company Financial Statements — Directors’ Statement of
Responsibilities in Respect Thereof

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union {*“IFRSs™)

Under Company Law the directors must not approve the Company financial statements unless they are satisfied that they present faily

the financial position of the Parent Company and its financial performance and cash flows for that perod In prepaning the Parent

Company financial statements the Directors are required to
select sutable accounting poltcies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then
apply them consistently,

= present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements mn IFRSs 1s msufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions other events and conditions on the Parent Company’s financial positron and financial performance,

= state that the Parent Company has complied wath IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

= make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Parent Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors confirm that they have complied with these requirernents and, having a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, will continue to adopt the going concern basis
In preparing the accounts
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of IGas Energy plc

We have audited the parent company financal statements of 1Gas Energy plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the Parent
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Parent Compary Balance Sheet, the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity,
the Parent Comgany Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 17 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation 15 applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umicn and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solefy to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor's repert and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
company finanaal statements and for being satisfied that they qive a true and fair wvew Qur responsibility s to audit and express
an opinion on the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiing
(UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply waith the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finanaal statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment
of whether the accounting poliies are appropriate to the parent company's arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the finanaal and non-finanaial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matena!l misstatements or
inconsistericies we consider the implications for our repart

Optnion on finanaal statements

In our opinion the parent company finanaal statements

¢ qgwve a true and fair view of the state of the company's affarrs as at 31 March 2013,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year far which the financal statements are prepared is consistent
with the parent company financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewed
from branches not wisited by us, or

= the parent company financial staterments and are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, ar

+ certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group finangal statements of [Gas Energy plc for the year ended 31 March 2013

M“’MW.

Daniel Trotman

(Semior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

10 July 2013
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Parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Year ended

15 months

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

Loss for the year 6,117 {B,506)
Other comprehensve income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (26,117) {8,506)




67  IGas Energy Plc

Annual repert and accounts 2012/13

Parent Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2013

31 March 1 March
2013 2012
Notes €000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidaries 2 217,912 180,154
Property, plant and equipment 3 57 72
217,969 190,226
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 4 55,745 22,795
Cash and cash equivalents ) 3,596 3,452
Other finanoal assets - Restricted cash 5 102,865 -
162,206 26,247
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 6 (75,694) (29,205)
Borrowings — Macquarie (89,710) (16,475}
Borrowings — Bond 8 (5.466) -
Other liabilities 9 (8,208) (2,806)
Dervative finanoial instruments n (779) 413)
(179.857) (48,899)
Net current hiabilities (17,651) (22,652)
Total assets less current habilities 200,318 167,574
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - Macqualre 8 - (58,477)
Borrowings — Bond 8 (94,942) -
Derivative financial instruments 1 - {119)
(94,942) (58,596)
Net assets 105,376 108,978
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 83,535 81,102
Share premium account 13 41,639 21,928
Merger Reserve 14 22,222 22,222
Other reserves 15 (797) (1.140)
Accumulated defiait (41,223) {15,134)
Shareholders’ funds 105,376 108,978

These financial statements were approved and authonised for 15sue by the Board on 10 July 2013 and are signed on its behalf by

oz A

Andrew Austin
Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Bowler
Chief Financral Officer
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Called up share Merger Share premum Other
capial reserve account rEServes Accumulated
{Note 12) (Note 14) {Note 13) {Note 15) defiat Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2011 46,555 22,222 6,392 (1.236} (6,802) 67,131
Changes in equity for 15 months ended
31 March 2012
Total comprehensive loss for the penod - - - - (8,506) (8,506)
Lapse of warrants - - - 47 - 47
Employee share plans cost under IFRS {note 15) - - - 49 174 223
Issue of Shares 34,547 - 15,536 - - 50,083
Balance at 31 March 2012 81,102 22,222 21,928 (1,140) (15,134) 108,978
Changes in equity for the year ended
31 March 2013
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (26,117} (26,117)
Employee share plans cost under IFRS2 (note 15) - - - 343 28 37
Issue of shares 2,433 - 19,711 - - 22,144
Balance at 31 March 2013 83.535 22,222 41,639 (797) (41,223) 105,376
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Parent Company Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Year 15 manths
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Operating activities
{Loss} for the year/penod (26,117) {8,506}
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 25 24
Share based payment charge 54 1,103
Finance income {5,678) {1,897}
Finance costs 28,028 3,796
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 122 (248)
{Decrease)increase In trade and other payables (1,009) 841
Revaluation effects as a result of foreign exchange movements - 101
Net cash used in operating activities (4,575) {4,786)
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (10) (63)
Acquisition of subsidsarres - (110,338)
toans granted to subsicharies (13,951) (17.246)
Interest receved 20 246
Net cash used investing activities (13,941) (127,401}
Financing activrties
Cash proceeds from issue of Ordinary Share Capital net of 1ssue costs 12 23,144 20,625
Share Issue costs 12 (970) (681)
Capital contnibution 12 - 47
Interest paid {6.692) (2,095}
Cash proceeds from loans and borrowings 21,410 84,569
Loan 1ssue costs (1.887) {3,141}
Repayment of loans and borrowings (16,735) (3,100}
Loans from substdiary - 27,834
Net cash from financing activities 18,240 124,058
Net (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents in the year/pernad (275) (8,129}
Net foreign exchange difference 419 (191}
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year/penod 3,452 11,772
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/penod 5 31,59 3,452
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Parent Company Financial Statements — Notes
As at 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Parenit Company finanoal statements of 1Gas Energy plc {the “Company™) have been prepared under the hsstoncal cost convention
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the Eurapean Union (“IFRSs”) as they apply to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 and with the Companies Act 2006 The accounting period Is not comparable with the

15 month prior period as this period was extended to align to the year end of the then newly acquired entity Star Energy Group limited
The financial statemenits were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2013 1Gas Energy plc 1s a public
limited Company incorporated and registered in England and Wales and listed on the Alternative Investment Market (“AlM")

The Company's financial statements are presented in UK pound sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000)
except when otherwise indicated

As a Consolidated income statement 15 published in this Anrual Report, a separate income statement for the Company s not presented
within these financial statements as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

Duning the peniod, the parent adopted the following new and amended IFRS which were applicable to the Company’s activities as of
1 Apni 2012

1AS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) — Deferred Taxes Recovery of Underiying Assets - The amendment clanfied 1 January 2012
the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at farr value and introduces a
rebuttable presurnption that deferred tax on Investment property measured using the farr value mode!
in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that it's a carrying amount will be recovered through sale
It mcludes the requirement that deferred tax on non-deprectable assets that are measured using the
revaluation Model in 1AS 16 should always be measured on a sale basis The Company has considered
the effect of this amendment and has concluded that there 15 no iImpact on the financial statements

New and amended standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, mterpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory only for the
Company’s accounting penods beginning on or after 1 Apnik 2012 or later periods but which the Company has not adopted early
Those that may be applicable to the Company in future are as follows

Far financial penod
commencing on or after

International Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS)

1AS 1 Amendment to IAS 1 - Financial Statement Presentation - This amendment changes the grouping of 1 July 2012
items presented in the Other comprehensive Income  Items that could be reclassified to profit and loss
at a future point i ttme (for example, upon de-recagnition or settlement} would be presented separately
from 1tems which will never be reclassified The amendment affects presentation only and therefare will
have no impact on the Company’s financial position or perfarmance

IFRS 9 IFRS 9 - Finanaial Instruments Classificaticn and Measurement - IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase 1 January 2015
af the [ASB's work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets as defined in1AS 3% The standard is effective for annua! penods beginning on or after January
2013 In subsequent phases, the 1ASB wll address dasstfication and measurement of financial liabilities
hedge accounting and derecogrution The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classificaon and measurement of the Company’s finanoal assets The Company will quantify the effect
in conjunction with the other phases, when 1ssued, to present a comprehenswe picture

IFRS 11 IFRS11 - Joint Arrangerments — IFRS11 establishes principle of the finanaal reporting by partes to ajoint 1 January 2013
arrangement IFRS 11 supersedes IAS31 It removes the option to jomntly controlled entities (JCE) using
proportionate consolidation

IFRS 12 IFRS12 - Disclosures of mvolvement wath other entities- IFRS12 combines, enhances and 1 January 2013 1 January 2013
replaces the disclosure requirement for subsidianes, joint arrangemenits, associates and in consohdated
structured entities

IFRS 7AAS 32 IFRS 7AAS 32 - The amendments to IAS 32 and IFRS 7 on offsetting of financial nstrumenits are intended 1 January 2014
to clanfy existing application 1ssues relating to the offsetting rules and reduce the level of diversity In
current practice The clanfying amendments ta IAS 32 are effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014 The new disclosures in IFRS 7 are required for annual penods beginming on or
after 1 January 2013 The Company is currently assessing the impact that these amendments wall have
on its financial pasion
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1 Accounting pohicies continued

IFRS 10 IFRS10 — replaces the portion of I1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses 1 January 2013
the accounting for consoldated financial statements It also includes the issues raised in SIC-12
Consolidation —Speaal Purpose Entities IFRS 10 establishes a single controt model that applies to all
entitigs including speaal purpose entites The changes ntroduced by IFRS 10 wall require management
to exercise sigmficant jJudgement to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required
to be consohdated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in |AS 27

IFRS 13 {FRS 13 — Farr Value Measurement — IFRS#3 defines fair value, set out 1n a single IFRS a framework for 1 January 2013
measuring fair value and requrres disclosure about fair value measurements IFRS 13 applies when other
{FRSs require or permit fair value measurements It does not introduce any new requirements to measure
an asset or habity at far value, change what 1s measured at fair value 1n IFRS or address how to present
changes in far value

tAS 28 IAS28 — Investiments in Associates and Joint Venture — IAS28 has been renamed as a consequence 1 January 2013
of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 and describes the application of the equity method to investments
In joint venture In addition to associates

IAS 27 Rewvised |AS 27 Revised — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements The objective of the Standard is 1 January 2013
to prescnbe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidianies, joint ventures
and assogiates when an entity prepares separate finanaal statements

The Directors do not antiapate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will either individually or collectively have a
matenat impact on the Cornpany’s financial statements in the perod of imtial apphcation The Company does not anucpate adopting
these standards and interpretations ahead of their effective date

(b) Going concern

The Company’s princpal actvity and principal risks and uncertamnties are set out in the Directors’ report The ability of the Company to
operate as a going concern )5 dependent upon the continued avallabiity of future cash flows and the avallability of the monies drawn
under 1ts Bond, which in turn 1s dependent on the Company not breaching covenants Under the Bond, the Company drew down from
escrow US$165m of funds n Apnl 2013 The Company regularly monitors forecasts to determine that breaches are not anticipated to
occur in the future Cn the basis of the Company's current forecasts, no breaches in covenants are anticipated However these forecasts
are based on certain assumptions particularly in relaton to oil prices, production rates, operating costs, capital and general expenditure
The Company 1s protected to a material degree against volatlity in the oil price, by having a significant proportion of its production hedged
at US$90 and £58 per barrel until 31 March 2014 Despite this, there can be no certainty that these forecasts will be achieved, in which
case the financial covenants could be breached Should any breach be anticipated to anse, the Company would manage its warking capital
profile, reduce discretionary expenditure, where necessary and, if apglicable, take additional mitigating actions that have already been
identified as a precautionary measure The Directors consider that the expected operating cash flows of the Company combined with the
current Bonds give them confidence that the Company has adequate resources to continue as a going concern The financial statements
have, therefore, been prepared on the gaing concern basis

{c) Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The principal activity of the Company’s major subsichary, Island Gas Lirmited, which has been accounted for at far value of consideration
paid at acquisitton less provision for impairment, 1s the production of oil and gas

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have
a significant nisk of causing a matertal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are
discussed below

Carrying value of investment in subsidiaries

The Company evaluates investments tn subsidiaries that have been accounted for at far value of consideratron paid at acquisiion less
provision for iImpairment as described 1n (d) below Any impairment review, where required, involves estimates and associated assumptions
related to matters {when appropriate), such as recaverable reserves, production profiles, review of forward gas and electnicty prices,
development, operational and offtake costs, nature of land access agreements and planning permissions, application of taxes, and other
matters Where the final outcome or rewised estimates related to such matters differ from the estimates used in any earlier impairment
reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they actually affected any impairment provisions, are accounted for when

such revisions are made Details of the Company's tnvestments are disclosed in note 2

Functional currency

The determination of a Company's functional currency often requires significant judgement where the primary econamic environment
in which 1t operates may not be clear This can have a significant impact on the results of the Company based on the foreign currency
translation methods used
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Parent Company Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting policies contnued

(d) Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in group companies held as non-current assets are held at cost less provision for impairment unifess the investments were
acquired in exchange for the 1ssue or part issue of shares in the Company, when they are inibally recorded in the Company’s balance sheet
at the fair value of the shares issued together with the fair value of any consideration paid, indluding costs of acquisition léss any provision
for impairment which may subsequently be required

The Company’s nvestments in group companies hetd as non-current assets are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes
In arcumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, when imparrment s calculated on the basis as set
out below Any :mpairment (s charged to the income statement

Loans to group companies are stated at amorhised cost

Impairment

Impairment reviews, when required as described above, are carmed out on the following basis

* By comparing any amounts carmed as investments held as non-current assets wath the recoverable amount

* The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sefl and its value n use The Company generaliy relies on fair
value less cost to sell assessed either by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller or on
the same basis as used by willing buyers and sellers in the oll and gas industry When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
manegy and the risks specrfic to the asset or cash-generating urit

Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earlier penod that charge wall be reversed in a later period where there has been a
change in circumstances to the extert that the recoverable amount is higher than the net book value at the time In reversing rmpairment
losses, the carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of its onginal carrying value and the carrying value that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in pnor penods

Property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment 1 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s provided at rates calculated to write
off the cost of fixed assets, less ther estimated residual values, over their estmated useful lives at the followsng rates, with any impairment
being accounted for as additional depreciation

Buldings —over five years on a strarght line basis
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - between three and five years on a straight hine basis
Motor Vehicles - over four years on a straight ine basis

(e) Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at vanable interest rates
with ongmaf matunty periods of up to three months Any interest earned 1s accrued monthly and dassified as nterest income within
finance income

Other financal assets — Restncted cash
Where cash is held in Escrow, funds are only classified as cash and cash equivalents when monies are transferred to and under the control
of the Company

Trade and other receivables
Trade recevables are inrtially recogrused at fair value when related amounts are invorced, less any allowances for doubtful debts or provision
made for impairment of these recevables

Trade and other payables
These financial habilities are alt non interest bearing and are imially recognised at the fair value of the consideration recerved

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to trade recenables, a provision for impairment i1s made when there 1s objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or sigmificant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will net be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of the invoice The carrying amount of the recewable 1s reduced through use of an allowance account Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured imibially at fair vafue After imitial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabihties are derecognised as well as through the EIR amertisation process When management’s estimates of the amounts or timings

of cashfows are revised, borrowings are remeasured using the revised cash flow estimates under the original effective mterest

Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an ntegral part
of the EIR The EIR amartisation 1s ncluded in finance costs in the income staterment




73  1Gas Energy Plc
Annual report and accounts 2012/13

1 Accounting pohcies continued

Denwvatives embedded in host contracts, such as warrants attached to loans, are accounted for as separate derwvatives and recorded at farr
value if thewr economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at far value though profit or loss These embedded denvatives are measured at fair value with changes in farr vafue
recognised in the Income Statement

Barrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarly
take a substantial period of ime 1o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for thesr intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendrture on qualifying assets 15 decucted
from the borrowing costs eligible for caprtalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the peniod in which they are incurred

{f) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date
including whether the fulfilment of the arrangement s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys
a nght to use the asset

Operating leases
Rentals are charged to the Income Statement in the year on a straight line basis over the period of the lease

{g) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current income tax assets and hiabiities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid
10 the tax authorities Taxable (loss)Vprofit differs from the (less)/fprofit before taxation as reported in the Income Staternent because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible m other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Company's hability for current tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
Temporary differences anse from differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities and therr carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes Deferred tax habilities are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered

The carrying amount of deferred tax 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficent taxable profit will be avalable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utiised Unrecogrised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable prafits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assets s realised or
the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to tems recognised outstde profit or loss 1s recognised outside grofit or loss Deferred tax tems are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction erther in other comprehensive incame or directly in equity

(h) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (including Directors), the fair value of the options or warrants at the date ot
the grant 1s recorded n equity over the vesting period Non-market vesiing condrtions, but only those related to service and performance,
are: taken into account by adjusting the number of equity nstruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the
curnulative amount recognised over the vesting period 1s based on the number of options that eventually vest All other vesting conditions
incfuding Market vesting conditions, are factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted ‘As long as all other vasting
conditions are satistied, the amount recorded 1s computed rrrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied The
Cumulative amount recognised is not adjusted for the failure to achteve a market vesting condition, although equity no longer required
for options or warrants may be transferred to another equity reserve

Where the terms and condinions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, 1s also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting period

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the amount recognised in equity 15 the fair value of goods
and services received
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Parent Company Financial Statements — Notes continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Charges carresponding to the amounts recogrised in equity are accounted as a cost against the profit and loss which will usually be to the
Parent Company Income Statement unless the services rendered qualfy for capitalisation as a non-current asset Costs may be capitalised
within non-current assets in the event of services being rendered In connection with an acquisition or intangible exploration and
evaluation assets or property, plant and equipment

Where shares are 1ssued te an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company s the sponsonng entity, the value of such shares at 1ssue will be
recorded in share capital and share premium account in the ordinary way, but will not affect shareholders’ funds since this same value will
be shown as a deduction from shareholders’ funds by way of a separate component of equity {Treasury shares)

() Equity
Equity instruments issued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs, and allocated between
called up share capital, share premium accounts or merger reserve as appropriate

(1} Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency UK pound sterling are translated at the exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabihties denominated in fareign currencies are re-translated at the rate of exchange
rubng at the balance sheet date All differences that anse are recorded in the income statement

2 Non-current assets - investments in subsidiaries
Investments In subsiciaries comprises

2013 2012

Investment Loans to Investment Loans ta

in Group Group In Group Group
Comp Comp Total Companies COmpanies Total
farent Company £000 £C0D £000 £000 £000 £000
At beginning of year/period 90.154 100,000 190,154 50,555 - 50,555
Additions 318 27.440 27,758 39,599 100,000 139,599
At end of year/period 90,472 127,440 217,912 90,154 100,000 190,154

The subsichary undertakings of the Company at 31 March 2013 which are afl 100% owned directly or indirectly by the Company and are
all Incorporated m England and Wales, were

Name Pricipal activity

Island Gas Limited Production and marketing of ol and gas
Islangd Gas {Singleton) Lirmited Production and marketing of oif and gas
Island Gas Operations Lirmited Electnoty Generation

1Gas Exploration UX Limited Production and marketing of gas

Star Energy Group Limited Service Company

Star Energy Limited Service Company

Star Energy Weald Basin Limited Processing of oif and gas

Star Energy (East Midlands} Limited Dormant

Star Energy Ol and Gas Limited Dormant

Star Energy Ol UK Limited Dormant




75  iGasEnergy Plc

Annual report and accounts 2012/13

3 Property, plant and equipment

Fictures fitings

and equpment Motor vehidies Total
Buildings £000 f000 1000
Cost
At 1 January 2011 - 21 20 41
Additions - 66 - 66
Disposals - 2 - (2}
At 3t March 2012 - 85 20 105
Addibons 3 7 - 10
At 31 March 2013 3 92 20 115
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2011 - 4 5 9
Charge for the year, mcluding impairment - 18 6 24
At 31 March 2012 22 i1 33
Charge for the period - 20 5 25
At 31 March 2013 42 16 58
Net book amount
At 31 March 2012 - 63 9 72
At 31 March 2013 3 50 4 57
4 Trade and other recevables 31 March 11 March
2013 2012
E00D £000
Amounts falling due within one year
VAT recoverable 63 233
Other debtors 35 2
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 55,436 22,359
Prepayments 21 201
55,745 22,795
The carrying value of each of the Company’s financial assets as stated above being other debtors 1s considered 1o be a reasonable
approximation of rts fair value
The maximum exposure to credit sk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of assets listed in the table above
5 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Cash at bank and i hand 3,596 3,452
3,59 3,452

The carrying value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents as stated above 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of therr

fair vatue
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Parent Company Financial Statements — Notes continued

5 Cash and cash equivalents continued
The Company only deposits cash surpluses with major banks that have acceptable credit ratings of "A” or better, except that the Company
will make deposits with banks where the UK government i1s the major shareholder

Other financal assets - Restncted cash

31 Marcth 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

Restncted cash 102,865 -
102,865 -

©On 22 March 2013 the Company raised bonds to a value of US$156 2 million The cash relating to these bonds were receved into,
and held tin Escrow, remaiming restricted until all of the conditions precedent were satisfied in relation to the Bond issued

On 10 April 2013, all conditiens precedent were met by the Company and the funds in Escrow were reclassified as cash and cash
equialents Part of these funds were used to repay the bank facility agreement with Macquane Bank Ltd, plus outstanding interest and

all associated break fees termination fees and costs of closing out the hedges The remainder 1s being used for general corporate purposes
of the Company See note 17 for further detalls of the refinancing

6 Current habihities

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000

Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 71 719
Taxation and social secunty 9% 75
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 69,161 27,834
Accruals and other creditors 6,366 577
75,694 29,205

The carrying vatue of each of the Company’s financial habiliies being trade credrtors 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of its
fair value All creditors are payable within one month and no creditor has been outstanding for longer than three months {2012 all within
one month})

7 Taxation
Tax losses, none of which 1s considered sufficiently certain of utiisation to set up deferred tax assets, amount to Year 15 Months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Excess management expenses 26,376 14,288
Related to share based payment transactions i 97

Excess management expenses may only be offset against future profits, if any, of the Company generated in its capacity as a Group
holding Company

8 Borrowings
Borrowings are measured at amortised cost in accordance wiath tAS 39

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Greater Greater

Within than Within than
1year 1 year Total 1 year 1 year Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Faality A** 38,673 - 38,673 16,475 32,818 49,293
Facility B** 29.634 - 29,634 - 25,659 25,659
Faality C** 21,403 - 21,403 - - -
Sub total 89,710 - 89,710 16,475 58,477 74,952
Issued Bonds* 5,466 94,942 100,408 - - -
Sub total 5,466 94,942 100,408 - - -
Total 95,176 94,942 190.118 16,475 58,477 74,952

* Transaction costs of rasing debt of £2 8 milion (**212 £7 6 million) have been netted off agamst the habilty
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8 Borrowings continued

Macquarie financing

On 21 November 2011 the Company and Macquarie entered into a senior secured faality agreement {the "Credit Agreement”)
winch were repaid on 10 April 2013 On 11 February 2013 the Company signed an expansion of the existing loan facility with
Macquarie to increase the amount available to draw down from facility C, which was repaid on 10 Apnl 2013

The Credit Agreement consists of three separate facilities

{1} Faahty A US$ 90,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 5 5% over LIBOR and a 2% commitment fee,

{n) Faclity B US$ 45,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 12% above LBCR and a commitment fee of 3 5%, and

{m) Faality C US$ 90,000,000 3 year senior secured term loan of which U$$32 5 milhon was drawn down, carrying interest at 12% above
LIBOR and a commitment fee of US$2 million on imtial drawdown, with a 2% fee thereafter,

The Credit Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary for a credit faality of this nature

Such covenants include the prowiston of financial and reporting information, compliance with environmental law, mantenance of financial
ratios and certain restnictions on mergers, acquisitions, [oint ventures, granting of secunity, cisposals, 1ssuances of loans, incurrence of
financaial indebtedness and on payments of dwvidends by the Company and its operating subsidiarnies The Credit Agreement also contains
customary events of default, the occurrence of which allow Macquane (and any other lender that accedes to the Credit Agreement) to
accelerate outstanding loans and terminate the commitments The facilities are required to be repaid in full on the date that 1s 60 months
following the completion of the Acquisition of Star Energy Group Limited, or on a change of control or the sale of the assets of the Group

In accordance with IAS 1, the Macguarie faahities were re-classified as current liabilities as at 31 March 2013 as the Company had intended
to repay these faclitres upon completion of the Bonds The facilities were re-measured at 31 March to take mto account the change in

the estimated future cashflows The re-estimation resulted in a difference of £5 6 millilon which 1s recognised In the income statement

for the year

On 10 Apn! 2013, the loan with Macguare (Facility A, B and C) was repaid in full This was funded by the cash raised from the issuance
of the Bonds The table below summarises the Macquarie loan balance upon repayment

£000
Macquane debt at amortised cost {per above) (89,710)
Accrued interest to 10 Apnil 2013 {305)
Repayment of borrowings and accrued interest 90,015

Bond Issuance
On 21 March 2013, the Company and Norsk Tilitsmann (“Bond Trustee”) entered into a Bond Agreement for the Company to 155ue up
to 165 million US$1 Bond (the “Bond”) At 31 March 2013 US$156 2 milhion bonds had been sold and with the funds paid inte escrow

By 10 April 2013, the concitions precedent under the bond agreement were met, with the related cash then released from escarow to
the Company Part of the net praceeds of the Bonds were used to repay the outstanding loan balance with Macguarie Bank Ltd, plus
outstanding interest and all associated break fees, terrmination fees and to pay costs assoaated with closing out hedges The remainder
15 being used for general corporaie purposes of the Company

The Bond carnes a coupon of 10% per annum (where interest 1s payable sermi-annually in arrears) and semi-annual amortisation of 2 5%
of imual loan amount Final maturity on the notes will be 22 March 2018

The Bond Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary for an instrument of this nature Such
covenants include the prowision of financial and reporting information, comphance with environmental law, maintenance of financial ratios
and certain restnictions on mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, granting of secunty disposals, rssuances of loans incurrence of finanaial
indebtedness and on payments of dividends by the Company and s operating subsidiaries The Bond Agreement also contams customary
events of default, the occurrence of which allows The Bond Trustee (on behalf of the bond holders) to accelerate outstanding bonds and
terminate the commitments

Further detalls regarding the Company's refinancing can be found in note 17

9 Other habilities

£000
At 1 January 2011 -
Warrants 1ssued

during penod 4,457
Revaluation {1,651)
As at 31 March 2012 2,806
Warrants issued during year -
Revaluation 5402

As at 31 March 2013 8,208
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9 Other habilrties continued

Warrants issued to Macquarie Bank under the Facilities Agreement can be exercised in three different ways and, although the cost

to the Company would be the same under each exercise aption, these warrants do not qualify as equity instruments under 1AS39 due
to the vanable number of shares that would e issued in each case Accordingly they have been accounted for as financral liabtlities

All warrants vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made in armving at the Black-Scholes valuations were share price on
date of valuation, adjusted for subsequent consclidations where appropriate and the length of time for which the warrants were expected
to remain exercisable A nisk free mterest rate of 1 09% and an implied volatity of 35% were used in valuing the warrants at the time of
granting, and an interest rate of 0 62% and an impled volatiity of 37 04% at 31 March 2013 It was also assumed that no dividends
would be paid duning the life of the warrants

Movement during the pencd was as follows

Weightad

average

EXErCise pnce

No {pence)

At 1 January 2011 - -
Granted In pencd 21,286,646 558
Lapsed in period - -
Qutstanding at 31 March 2012 21,686,646 558
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 21,686,646 558
Granted in year - —
Lapsed in year - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 21,286,646 558
Exercisable at 31 March 2013 21,286,646 558

The weighted average remaining contractual hfe for the warrants outstanding as at 31 March 2013 1s 4 75 years

10 Commitments
At the balance sheet date the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimurm lease payments under non cancellable
operating leases, all falling due in under one year of £496 thousand (2012 £45 thousand)

11 Financial iInstruments and nsk management
In accordance with IFRS 7, the Company has detalted the financial instruments and risk management as at the balance sheet date

Fatr values
Set out below 1s a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financal instruments that are carried in the
Company's balance sheet

Carrying amount Farr value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Loans and recevables
Cash and cash equivalents’ 3,596 3,452 3,596 3,452
Cther financial assets — restricted cash’ 102,865 - 102,865 -
Trade and other recewvables’ - - - -
Loans to subsidiarnies 102,578 100,000 102,578 100,000
Amortised cost
Loans to subsidiaries 24,862 - 24,862 -
Financial habilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings {floating rate)? 89,710 74,952 89,710 82,296
Borrowings (fixed ratef 100,408 - 103,150 -
Trade and other payables' Fal 719 M 719
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps? 779 532 779 532
Warrants* 8,208 2,806 8,208 2,806

1 The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents ather financial assets short-term receivables and pdvabies are assumed to approximate therr fair values where discounting
15 not matenal

2 The fair value of barrowings and ather financial iabihties has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailng market interest rates for instruments
wath substantially the same terms and charactenstics

3 The far value of warrants s esumated using a Black-Scholes valuanon model
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Fair value hterarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclasing the far value of the finanaial instruments by valuation technique

s Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or hiabiities,

» Levet 2 other techmgues for which all Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly, and

= Level 3 techmgues which use iInputs which have a sigrificant effect on the recorded farr value that are not based on observable
market data

The finanaal assets and habilities measured at fair value are categorised into the fair value hierarchy as at the reperting dates as follows

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2013
Interest rate swaps - 779 - 779
Warrants - 8,208 - 8,208
Total - 8,987 - 8,987
At 31 December 2012
Interest rate swaps - 532 - 532
Warrants - 2,806 - 2,806
Total - 3,338 - 3,338

Dernivative finanaal instruments
The Company enters into certan swap contracts in order to manage its exposure to foreign exchange nsk associated with interest rate risk
assoclated with debt service costs

The outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2013 were as follows

Fanr vahue at
Average 31 March
Contract Fied Prices 2043
Term Contract amount price/frate Rate £000
Interest rate swaps US5351 9m dechining
2013-2016 to U5322 &m 091%-136% 120% 779

The Company’s interest rate swaps matured over the periad from 1 Aprt 2013 to 13 Decernber 2016 with a profile nked to the expected
repayment of pnnapal on the Macguane Facilities, prior 1o refinancing 1n Apnl 2013 (see note 17)

The interest rate swap lability was classified as a current liability at 31 March 2013 as the Company had intended to settle it upon
completion of the bonds Further details can be found in note 28

Financial nsk management

The Company's princspat financial liabilities, other than dervatives, compnse borrowings, warrants and trade and other payables The main
purpose of these financal liabilities 1s to finance the Company’s subsidiary operations and to fund acquisitions The Company has trade
and other recevables, and cash and cash equivalents that are denved dwectly from its operations and restricted cash The Company also
enters into derwvative transactions

The Company manages its exposure to key financial nsks in accordance with its financial nsk management policy The objective of
the policy 1s to support the Company’s financial targets while protecting future financial secunity The Company 1s exposed 1o the
foltowing nsks

* Market nsk, including interest rate, and foreign currency risks

* Credrt nisk

+ Liquidity nsk

Management reviews and agrees pelicies for managing each of these nisks which are summarised below 1t 1s the Company’s policy that all
transactions involving dervatives must be directly related to the underlying business of the Company The Company does not use denvative
financial instruments for speculative exposures

Market nisk
Market nisk is the nisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finanaal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices,
such as interest rate sk and foreign currency risk

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, and the proportion of finanaial instruments
in foreign currencies are all constant and that finanaal denvatives are held to maturnity The sensitivity analysis 1s intended to illustrate the
sensitivity to changes In market vanables on the Company financial instrurents and show the impact on prefit or loss and shareholders’
equity, where applicable
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11 Financial instruments and nsk management continued

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitvity analysis

* The balance sheet position sensitivity refates to denvatives and accounts recevables,

* The sensitiity of the relevant profit before tax item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market nsks This is based on the
financial assets and financial habihties held at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, and

* The impact on equity 1s the same a5 the impact on profit before tax

Interest rate risk

The Campany's exposure to the nisk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating
interest rates The Company’s palicy 1s to ranage its interest cost using dervative ftnanaial instruments (interest rate swaps)

The Company’s policy 1s to keep between half of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest

The following table summanses the impact on profit before tax for changes in interest rates on the farr value of interest rate swaps
The impact on equity 1s the same as the Impact on profit before tax as these denvative financial instruments have not been designated
as hedges and are classified as held-for-trading

The analysis «s based on the assumption that US-dollar LBOR moves 50 basis ponts, with all other vanables held constant

Increase/detrease) in profit betore

1ax for the pencd ending
and 16 equily as at
31 March 31 March
2013 2
£000 £000
50 bass pont increase 1n LIBOR 362 800
50 basis potnt decrease in LIBOR {362) {800)

Foreign currency nsk

The Company has transactional currency exposures Such exposure arises from purchases in currencies other than UK pounds sterling,

the functional currency of the Company 10% of the Company's costs are denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency, premarily US dollars

The foltowing table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in the US dollar/UK pound sterling exchange rate The impact
on equity 1s the same as the impact cn profit before tax

The analysis 15 based on the assumption that the pound moves 10%, with all other variables held constant

Increase/idecrease) in prefil betore
tax for the penod ending
and to eguity as at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£000 £000

10% strengthening of the pound agarnst the US dollar 8,719 7.835
10% weakening of the pound agamnst the US dollar (8,719} (7.835)

Credit nsk

With respect to credit nsk ansing from the finanaial assets of the Company, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, restncted
cash and amounts due from substdiary undertakings, the Company's exposure to credit risk anses from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carryng amount of these instruments The Company limits its counterparty credit risk on cash
and cash equivalents and restncted cash by dealing only with financial institutions with credit ratings of at least A or equivalent of at
least A or equivalent other than if the UK government i1s a majonity shareholder

Liguicity risk

The Campany manages hquidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faclities and borrowing faciliies by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the matunty profiles of finanaal assets and habilities and future caprtal
and operating commitments
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial habilibes at 31 March based on contractual undiscounted

payments (see note 17 for an updated profile for the barrowings)

Qn dermand <1 year 1-2 years 2-3years >3 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 March 2013
Borrowings {floating rate) - 89,710 - - - 89.710
Borrowings (fixed rate) - 11,07 10,769 10,491 100,669 133,000
Trade and other payables - n - - - 71
Warrants - 8,208 - - - 8,208
Derwvative financial instruments interest rate swaps - 779 - - - 779
- 103,911 5,143 5,143 87,435 201,632

At 31 March 2012
Borrowings (floating rate) - 16,475 15,584 15,021 34,313 81,393
Trade and other payables - 719 - - - 718
Warrants - 2,806 - - - 2,806
Denvative financial instruments interest rate swaps - 434 261 69 (241) 523
- 20,434 15,845 15,090 34,072 85,41

Capital management

The Company manages its caprtal to ensure that it remarns sufficiently funded to support its business strategy and maximise shareholder
value The Company’s funding needs are met through a combination of debt and equity (2012 funding requirements through a combmnation
of equity and debt} and adjustments are made in Iight of changes in economic conditions The Company’s capital structure changed in the
pencd to 31 March 2012 as a result of the acquisitions it made The Company's strategy 1s to maintam ratios in line with covenants associated

with the semor debt facility

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s net debt dvided by equity plus net debt The Company includes within
net debt, interest beaning bank loans less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash Capital includes share capital, share premium,

other reserves and accumulated losses

12 Share caprtal

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
£000 £000
No Noeminal value No Nommnal value
Issued and fully paid
1 January 2011, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 93,109,431 46,555 - -
09 March 2011 shares 1ssued at a price of 73 5p each 39,714,290 19,857 - -
10 March 2011 shares issued at a price of 75p each 27,500,000 13,750 - -
14 December 2011 shares i1ssued at a pnce of 50 5p each 1,881,188 940 - -
31 March 2012, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 162,204,909 81,102 - -
16 August 2012 share conversion of each I1ssued
Crdinary Shares of 50p each nto (162,204,909) (81,102) - -
New Ordinary Shares of 10p each* 162,204,905 16,220 - -
New Deferred Shares of 40p each* - - 162,204,909 64,882
15 fanuary 2013 shares 1ssued at a price of 95p each 24,330,730 2,433 - -
31 March 2013, Ordinary Shares of 10p each 186,535,639 18,653 - -
31 March 2013, Deferred Shares of 40p each - - 162,204,909 64,882

The costs of all share 1ssues have all been charged te the share premium account and are as disciesed in the parent company statement of changes in equity

* On 16 August 2012 the Company converted each Ordinary Share of 50p each into a New Crdinary Share of 10p each and a New Deferred Share of 40p each pursuant to
an abiigation 1o Macquane Bank Limited under the terms of the warrants issued duning the period ended 31 March 2012 The New Ordinary Shares carry the same nghts as
attached to Ordinary Shares Deferred shares have no votng nghts and shall net be entitled to any dividends or any other nght or participation in the profits of the Campany
The Company had the nght to purchase all the 1ssued New Deferred Shares from all Shareholders for an aggregate consideration of one penny and exercised this nght
immediately upon conversien On 16 August 2012 the Company repurchased the New Deferred Shares from all Shareholders for an aggregate consideration of one penny

For further information see note 15

13 Share premium account

The share premium account of the Company anses from the capital that the Company raises upon issuing shares for consideration in
excess of the nominal value of the shares net of the costs of 1ssuing the new shares During the year the Company issued 24,330,730

10p Crdinary shares at a price of 95p each (2012 69,095,478 shares 1ssued) The cost of the 1ssue was £0 3 midion (2012 ni)

Together these events resulted in a net movernent in the Share premium reserve of £19 7 million (2812 £15 5 million)
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14 Merger reserve

Merger reserve — The merger reserve arose as a result of a reverse acqusition on 31 December 2007 whereby IGL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company but wath IGL's shareholders acgquiring 94% of the Ordinary Share Capital of the Company The reserve represents
the difference in the fair value and the nominal value of the shares issued The reserve 1s not distributable

15 Other reserves
Other reserves can be analysed as follows

Share Plan/
Warrant/ Treasury Captal
LTIP Reserves Shares {Contrbutions Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance 1 lanuary 2011 63 (1,299 - (1,236)
Transfer to retained earmings/(accumulated defict) account re warrants - - - -
Employee share plans — cost under IFRS 2 49 - - 49
Capital contribution - - 47 A7
Balance 31 March 2012 112 (1,299) 47 (1,140)
Employee share plans — cost under IFRS 2 343 - - 343
Balance 31 March 2013 455 (1.299) 47 (79N
Employee share plans - Equity settled
Details of the share options under employee share plans outstanding dunng the year are as follows
2000LTIP 2011 LTIP Share Gption Plan
Weighted ‘Weighted Weighted
Numberof  average exercise Numberof  average exercise Numberof  average exercise
Options pnce {pence) Qptions price {pence) Options price (pence)
Qutstanding at 1 January 2011 1,125,000 il - - 1,322,204
Granted duning the Penod 2,107,485 - - -
Forfeited during the Penod (1,075,000) nil - - {910,930) 70
Exercised during the Period - - - - - -
Qutstanding at 31 March 2012 50,000 ml 2,107,485 - 411,274 70
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 - - - - - -
Granted during the Period - - 1,071,542 - - -
Forfeited during the Period {50,000) - - - (237,773) (70)
Lapsed during the Pertod - - - - (173,501) (70}
Exercised during the Period - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 - - 3,179,027 - - -

Exercisable at 31 March 2013 - - - - — -

Long Term Incentive Plan 2010 (“LTIP")

In October 2010 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key employees of the Group Under the LTIP,
participants can each be granted mil cost options over up to 1 5% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company (subject to an overall plan
limit of 7 5% of the i1ssued share capital of the Company for all partiipants) The LTIP has a three year performance perod and awards
vest subject to the achievement of stretching share price targets On a change of control prior to the third anniversary of the grant date,
a revised share price target reflecting the reduction in the performance period shall instead be used to determine the extent to which LTIP
options vest Other than on a change of control, 50% of vested awards can be exerased and sold on vesting, with the remaining 50%
becoming exercisable on the first anriversary of vesting There were no LTIPs in this scherme exerased during the year There were no
LTIPs outstanding at 31 March 2013

The total charge for the year was £2 thousand Of this amount, £2 thousand was charged 1o the substdrary and £ril thousand was
charged to the incormne statement in relation to the farr value of the awards granted under the LTIP scheme measured at grant date
using @ Monte Carlo Simulavon Model

Long Term Incentive Plan 2011 (“2011 LTIP*)

In November 2011 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key employees of the Group Under the LTIP,
participants can each be granted nil cost options over up to 300% of remuneration for the Initial Award and up to 150% of remuneration
for the Annual Award (subject to an overall plan hmit of 10% of the ssued share capital of the Company for all participants) The LTIP has
a three year performance penod and awards vest subject to share price performance exceeding the Company’s weighted average cost of
capital of 10% On a change of control prior to the third anniversary of the grant date, a proportion of the options that vest will take into
account items such as the time the Option has been held by the participant and the performance achieved in the period from the grant
date Other than on a change of control, 100% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting
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There were no LTIPs exercised duning the year There were no LTIPs outstanding at 31 March 2013 had both a weighted average remaining
contractual life and maximum term remaining of 8 5 years

The total charge for the year was £218 thousand Of this amount, £161 thousand was charged to the subsidiary and £57 thousand was
charged to the income statement 1n relation to the fair value of the awards granted under the Share Option scheme measured at grant
date using a Monte Carlo Simulation Model

Share Option plan

In Octeber 2010 the Company adopted a Share option plan for certain key employees of the Group Both executives and employees
may participate i the Share Option Plan Typically each indwviduat participant can be granted options under the Share Option Plan with

a rmarket value at grant of up to 100% of his base salary, although this imut can be exceeded In exceptional arcumstances Share options
vest in three equal tranches over a three year period from the date of grant and vested options are exercisable subject to the attainment
of a Company share pnice target

2010 grants under the Share Option Plan are subject to an exercise price of 70p per share

There were no Options exerased during the year There no Options outstanding at 31 March 2013

The total charge for the year was £2 thousand, of this amount, £2 thousand was charged to the subsidiary and £nil thousand was charged
to the ncome statement in relation to the fair value of the awards granted under the Share Option scheme measured at grant date using

a Monte Carlo Simulation Model

The inputs mto the Monte Carlo model were as follows

Share

2050 LTIP 2011 LTIP Opton Plan

Weighted average share price 64 5p 50 5p 64 5p
Weighted average exercise price Nit Mt 70p
Expected volatihity 35% 35% 35%
Expected Iife 65 years b5years 5-6 5 years
Risk-free rate 1 09% 0701% 109%
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average far value of awards granted in 2011 n/a 2312p nfa
Waeighted average farr value of awards granted in 2010 6p n/a 12p

Other share based payments

During the year, certain employees agreed to settle bonuses earned in the period ended 31 March 2012 in share options  The number
of share options 1ssued was 216,850 with a fair value of £149 thousand, measured indirectly with reference to the value of the cption
This amount was charged to the subsidiary Due ta the fact that the options vested immediately with £nil strike price and no conditions,
the fair value of the option equals the market price of the share at the grant date There were no options exercised during the year

The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had both a weighted average remaining contractual ife and a maximum term of 8 75 years

Treasury shares
The Treasury shares reserve of the Company has ansen in connection with

The shares issued to the 1Gas Employee Benefit Trust, of which the Campany 15 the sponsoring entity The value of such shares is recorded
n share capital and share prerium account in the ordinary way and 1s afso shown as a deduction from equity in this separate other reserve
account, and so there 1s not net effect on shareholders” funds Durning the Year ended to 31 March 2013 no shares were 1ssued to the
Employee Benefit Trust (2012 nil}

As detailled in Note 24, the Company repurchased all 162,204,909 Deferred Shares for an aggregate consideration of ane penny
Following this repurchase, these Deferred Shares are held as treasury shares

Capital contribution
The capital contribution of £47 thousand was received in cash following the acquisition of 1Gas Exploration UK Limited
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16 Related party transactions
(a) wrth Group companies
A summary of the transactions in the period is as follows

Notes continued

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
{000 £000
Subsidiaries
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiary
Island Gas Limited
Balance at beginning of year/penod 22,203 5,013
Services performed for subsidiary 2,543 793
Net cash advances 52,765 16,397
Group loan interest 2,659 -
Balance at end of year/penod 80.170* 22,203
Island Gas Operations Limited
Balance at beginning of year/penod 156 101
Net cash advances (64) 55
Balance at end of year/period 92 156
Star Energy Limited
Balance at beginning of yearfpenod {10.135) (10,135}
Net cash Advances (3.153) -
Services performed by subsichary {300} -
Balance at end of year/penod (13,588) {10,135)
Star Energy Group Limited
Balance at beginning of year/peniod 82,301 -
Net cash advances 5408 82,301
Group loan interest 2,578 -
Balance at end of year/period 90,287** 82,301
Star Energy Weald Basin Limited
Balance at beginning of year/peniod - -
Net cash advances (43,290) (17,699
Services performed for subsidiary 8 -
Balance at end of year/pencd (43,282) {17,699
Island Gas (Singleton) Limited
Balance at beginning of year/penod - -
Net cash advances - -
Services performed for subsidiary 35 -
Balance at end of year/penod 35 -

Includes group loan of £22 203
** Ircludes group foan net of creditor balance £12 291 (2012 £17 699}

Payment terms are as mutually agreed between the Group's companies

{b) Whth Directors

Key management as defined by IAS 24 - Refated Party Disclosures are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
controlling and directing the actvities of the Company In the opinion of the Board, the carnpany’s key management are the Directors
of the Company Information regarding therr compensation s given in Notes 5 and 27 to the consolidated accounts

f Gugen subscnbed to US$5 million bonds issued by the Company These bonds wall earn interest at 10% per annum As at 31 March 2013

accrued interest amounted to US$13 9 thousand

17 Subsequent events
Refinancing

On 14 March 2013, the Group anncunced its intention to issue 165 milion US$1 bands (the “Band”) Part of the praceeds from the
Bond were intended to repay the Macquarne Bank Ltd loan faciiies and the settlement of hedges also taken out with Macquarie Bank Lt
On 21 March 2013, a Bond Agreement was signed between the Compgany and Norsk Tillitsmnann (“Bond Trustee”) As at 31 March 2013

US$156 2 milhon of the Bonds had been sold
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17 Subsequent events continued

On the 10 Apni 2013, the Company successfully compteted all conditions precedent to the satisfaction of the Bond Trustee, whereby the
funds raised by the Bonds were released to the Company By 30 Apnl 2013, all the Bonds had been sold, raising a total of US$165 0 million
before expenses

Part of the net proceeds of the Bond were used to repay the outstanding loans with Macquarie Bank Ltd, plus outstanding interast and all
associated break fees, termination fees and costs of closing out hedges The remainder is beng used for general corporate purposes of the
Group The total amount used to repay the debt, hedges and early settlernent fees was US$156 O million, detailed as follows

Uss000
Princrpal 136,225
Interest to 10 Apnl 2013 462
Total loan repayment 136,687
O1l hedge settlement {including payment in relation to amount accrued in march 2013) 15,061
Interest rate swaps settlement(includmg payment in relation to amount accrued in march 2013) 1,182
Total derivatives settlement 16,243
Fees and expenses 3,097
Total repaid 156,027

The Bonds carry a coupon of 10% per annum (where interest 1s payable semi-annually in arrears) and semi-annuat amortisation of 2 5%
of iitial loan amount Final maturity on the notes will be 22 March 2018 The Bonds are secured by a pledge cver shares of certain of the
Group's subsichary companies

The Bond Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary for a faciity of this nature Such covenants
include the provision of financial and reporting information, comphance with environmental law, maintenance of financial ratios and
certain restrictions on mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, granting of secunty, disposals, 1ssuances of loans, incurrence of financial
indebtedness and on payments of dividends by the Company and 1ts aperating subsidianes The Bond Agreement also contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which allows The Bond Trustee {on behalf of the Bond holders) to accelerate cutstanding Bonds and
terminate the commitments

As per the Company’s accounting policy, the bonds were measured initially at fair value After intial recognition, the Bonds will
subsequently be measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method Gains and losses will be recogmised in
the Income statement (as part of finance costs) when the liabilities are derecogrised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

The amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition anc fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR

The net proceeds received fram the 1ssue of the Bond will be reflected in the balance sheet net of i1ssue costs, representing the fair vatue
of the hability to the Company, as follows

us$000 £000
Nominal value of Bonds issued 165,000 108,660
Issue costs {4.457) (2,935)
Liability net of 1ssue costs 160,543 105,725
Interest and amortisation of 1ssue costs 1,927 1,269
Liability at 30 Aprnl 2013 162,470 106,994

The interest charged for the year 15 calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 10 80% to the net liability The hablity 1s measured
at amortised cost The difference between the carrying amount of the liability at inception and the amount reported in the balance sheet
at 30 April 2013 represents the effective interest rate less interest paid to that date

Part of the Bond proceeds were used to settle the Macquarne debt Detalls of the loan balance with Macquarie at repayment are as follows

£000

Fair value of the Macquare debt (Note 8) (89,710)
Accrued interest to 10 Apnil 2013 (305
Repayment of barrowings and accrued interest 90,015

Macguarie loan balance -
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Parent Company Financial Statements - Notes continued

17 Subsequent events continued
Had the full Bond issue of US$165 0 medlion completed at 31 March 2013, the impact on the balance sheet would have been as follows

Pro forma Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Audited Pro forma
31 March 2013 Adpstments® Adpustments' 31 March 2013
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets 217,969 - - 217,969
Current assets
Qther current assets 1 55,745 - 9,222 64,867
Cash and cash equivalents 3,596 - 6,240 9,836
Cther financial assets — restncted cash 102,865 5,795 (108,660} -
Current assets 162,206 5,795 {93,198} 74,803
Current labilities
Cther current habiiities 2 (83,902) {145} 2,709 (81,338)
Borrowangs - Macquarie (89,710) - 89,710 -
Borrowings — Bond (5,466) (290) - {5,756)
Derivative financial instruments (779) 779 -
(179,857) (435) 93,198 (87.094)
Net current habilities (17,651} 5,360 - {12,991}
Total assets less current habilities 200,318 5,360 - 205,678
Non-current liabilrities
Borrowings — Bond {94,942} (5,360) - (100,302)
(94,942) (5,360) - (100,302}
Net assets 105,376 - - 105,376
Shareholders’ funds 105,376 - - 105,376

Notes
1 Other current assets includes Trade and other recevables from related parties and inventory
2 Qther current habilities includes Trade and other payables and other habilities

Adustments
A Indudes funds receved for remaining 8 8 mition bonds
B Repayment of Macguane loan hedges and early cancellation fees upon completion of conditions precedent on Excludes interest paid to 10 Apnl 2013

Bonds
C McDowell subscribed to US$0 3 million bonds issued by the Company These bonds will earn interest at 10% per annum

Issued Shares

In January 2013, the Company adopted the Share Investrent plan for all employees of the Group The scheme was approved by

HM Revenue & Customs on 5 February 2013 Gn 22 April, the Company 1ssued 475,002 Ordinary 10p shares in relatron to the Groups
SIP scheme Further details regarding this scheme can be found in the Group's Remuneration Report

On 26 June, Macquarie exerased warrants over 3,000,000 ordinary 10p shares The warrants were exercised at 55 8p per share
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Oil and Gas Reserves
As at 31 March 2013

The Group's estimates of proven and probable reserve quantities for assets held prior to the Singleton acguisition are taken from the
Group’s Competent Person’s evaluation (Senergy) reports for the Group's ail fields as of 1 July 2012 together with adjusted for production
data thereafter The report for the acquired reserves was provided by Netherland, Sewelt Associates and the existing Group report was
provided by Senergy The Group’s estimates of proven and probable reserves acquired through the Singleton acquisition 1s based on
reserves estimates commussioned by the former owner adjusted for production data thereafter Proved reserves are estimated reserves
that geclogical and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years under existing economic
and cperating condittons, while probable reserves are estimated reserves determined to be mare likely than not to be recoverable

in future years under existing economic and operating conditions

All of the Group's oil and gas assets are located in the United Kingdom

Group proved plus probable reserves

Total

Ol mmbbis Gas Bef mmboe

At 1 Apnl 2012 991 821 1133
Acquired during the year* 537 - 537
Revisions of estimates after acquisition 056 (0 10) 056
Production {087) (0 16) (090}
Total change during the year 506 (0 26} 503
At 31 March 2013 14 97 795 16 36

The Group’s estimates of proven and probable reserves are made in accordance with the 2007 Petroleum Resources Management System
prepared by the Oit and Gas Reserves Committee of the Society of Petroleum Engineers ("SPE”) and reviewed and jointly sponsored by the
World Petroleum Counal ("WPC"), the American Assocation of Petroleum Geologists ("AAPG”) and the Socety of Petrcleum Evaluation
Engineers (SPEE”™)

*  Excludes Baxters Copse as CPR not commissiened by 1Gas

Glossary

£ The lawful currency of the United Kingdom

1P Low estimate of commercially recoverable reserves

2P Best estimate of commercally recoverable reserves

3P High esumate of commeraally recoverable reserves

1C Low estimate or jow case of Contingent Recoverable Resource quantity
2C Best estimate ar mid case of Contingent Recoverable Resource quantity
3C High estinate or high case of Conungent Recoverable Resource quantity
AlM AlM market of the London Steck Exchange

Bcf Bithons of standard cubic feet

boepd Barrels of ol equivalent per day

bopd Barrels of ol per day

CBM Coal bed methane

Recoverable As defined in the (il and Gas Reserves table above
reserves

Contingent Contingent Recoverable Resource estimates are prepared in accordance with the Petroleumn Resources Management Systerm {PRMS) an industry recogrised
Recoverable standard A Conungent Recoverable Rescurce s defined as discovered potentially recoverable quantities of hydrocarbons where there 1s no current certainty that
Resource twill be commeraally wiable to preduce any portion of the contingent resources evaluated Contingent Recoverable Resources are further divided into three status

groups marginal sub-marginal and undetermined IGas Contingent Recoverabie Resources all fall into the undetermined group Undetermined is the status group
where it1s considered premature to dearly define the ulimate chance of commerciality

All amounts shown in this annual report have been compiled by statisucal aggregation

DECC Department of Energy and Chimate Change

GIP Gasnitially in place

1GL The Company s subsidiary hoiding all its ficences

MMboe Millions of barrefs of ol equivalent

Miscfd Milliens of standard cubic feet per day

PEDL United Kingdom petroleum explaratien and development licence
PL Preductien hcence

Scf Standard cutic feet

Tef Trilhons of standard cubic feet of gas

UK United Kingdom
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Proposed Business of the Annual General Meeting

Introduction

You will find set out at the end of this document the formal Nouice of the Annual General Meeting of IGas Energy plc This section
provides some additional information on the Resolutions being proposed at the Annual General Meeting The following defirutions
apply throughout this section of the document unless the context requires otherwise

“2006 Act”
“Accounts”

“Annual General
Meeting”™ or "AGM"

“Articles”
"Board” or “Directors”™
“Company”

“Form of Proxy”

the Companies Act 2006
the audited financial statements of the Company for the 12 month penod ended 31 March 2013

the annual general meeting of the Company convened for 8 August 2013 pursuant to
the Notice of Annual General Meeting which appears at the end of this document

the articles of association of the Company in force at the date of this document
the board of directors of the Company
|Gas Energy plc

the form of proxy accompanying this document for use at the Annual General Meeting

“New Articles” the new Arucles of Association proposed to be adopted at the AGM

“Ordinary Shares” ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company
“Resolutions*” the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting which appears at the end of this document
“Shareholders”™ holders of Ordinary Shares

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of Morrison & Foerster (UK) LLP, CityPoint, One Ropemaker Street,
London EC2Y 9AW at 10 30 am on Thursday 8 August 2013, at which the following Resalutions will be proposed

1 to recewve and adopt the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts for the 12 month period ended 31 March 2013, and the Directors”
Report and the Independent Auditors’ Report on thase accounts,

2 1toreceive and approve the Remuneration Report of the Directors for the 12 month penod ended 31 March 2013 and the Independent
Auditors’ Report on the auditable part of the Remuneration Report,

3 to reappomnt as a Director John Bryant who, in accordance with the Articles, 1s required to retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and, bemng eligible, offers himself for reappantment,

4 1o reappoint as a Drrector Andrew Austin who, in accordance with the Articles, 1s required to retire by rotatron at the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment,

5 toreappoint as a Director Cuthbert McDowell who, m accordance with the Articles, having been appointed since the last annual
general meeting 1s required to retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment,

6 toreappoint Ernst & Young LLP as the auditors of the Company untl the next annual general meeting,
7 to authorise the Directors to determine the fevel of the rermuneration of the audrtors,
8 to grant the Directors authonty to allot shares in the capital of the Company,

9 conditional upon Resolution 8 being passed, to grant the Directors the power 1o disapply the statutory pre-emption rights for certain
shares in the capital of the Company, and

10 to adopt the New Articles

Resolutions 1 and 2 and 6 and 7 are self-explanatory Information on the other Resclutions 15 provided below Resolutions 1 1o 8 are
ordinary resolutions which require 10 be passed the approval of a simple majority of Shareholders present and voting In persan or by proxy
or authonised representative On a show of hands each Shareholder so present has ore vote, but should a poll be demanded, each such
Shareholder has one vote for each share held by him or her Resclutions 9 and 10 are special resolutions that require to be passed with
the approval of 75% of such Shareholders determined in the same way as for the ordinary resolutions
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Resolution 3 — reappointment of John Bryant as a Director

Mr Bryant 1s hable to retre by rotation at the Annual General Meeting under the Articles, and offers himself for re-efection Having considered
his re-election, the Normination Committee considers that his performance remains effective, particularly having regard to his responsibilities
as Senior Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Bryant is the Chairman of AIM histed Weatherly International plc, and a board member of AIM listed China Africa Resources Plc He was
until recently a board member of the Attiki Gas Company, which supplies natural gas to Athens and the surrounding districts Mr Bryant
previously served as president of Cinergy Global Resources Corp, responsible for ali international business and global renewable power
operations of this US based electricity and gas utility provider Before jommg Cnergy, Mr Bryant was executive director with Midlands
Electnoty plc He has been involved in developing a number of large gas fired pawer stations bath In the UK and overseas, together with
both electnaty and gas chstribution in Europe and Africa, renewable power in Europe and North Amenica and gas and electnaity trading
His prior expenence was at British Sugar plc, Drexel Limited, the British Oxygen Company and Unilever plc Drexel, where he was president,
was a global ol and gas equipment manufactuning and servicing company Mr Bryant 1s a Fellow of the Institute of Directors and a Fellow
of the Royal Soaety of Arts

Resolution 4 - reappointment of Andrew Austin as a Director

M Austin 15 liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting under the Articles, and offers himself for re-election Having considered
hus re-election, the Nomination Comrmittee considers that his performance remains effective, particularly having regard to his responsibilities
as Chief Executive Officer

Mr Austin is a founder of the Company, has been an Executive Director since 2004 and the Chief Executive Cfficer for the last S years with
full time responsibility for the day to day operattons and business development Prior to joiming the Company, Mr Austin has been involved
tn a number of ventures as prinaipal, specalising i energy projects in the gas, electricity and renewable sectors with a track record of
raising substantial funding from both private and public equity Mr Austint 1s responsible for the transformation of the Company from

a non-operating partner to delivering matenal hydrocarbon production to Britain's energy market

Resolution 5 - reappointment of Cuthbert McDowell as a Director

Mr McDowell was appointed as a Non-executive Director in December 2012, which was subsequent to the last annual general meeting
angd, in accordance with the Articles, he must retire at this Annual General Meeting, but he offers himself for reappontment Upon
appointment, the Board considered that his expenence made him a suitable candidate to complement the board The Nomination
Committee has considered his reappointment ard considers that his performance remains effective, particularly having regard to his
responsibilities as a Non-executive Director

Mr McDowell has 33 years of international experience in the oif and gas sector, having held a range of leadesship positions in Exploration
and Production He began his career with BP where he held vanous commercial and management roles over 8 years Mr McDowell then
joined Clyde Petrofeum plc, mitially as Senior Economist, subsequently becoming Group Commercial Manager before Clyde was bought
by Gulf Canada In 1997, Mr McDowell joined Paladin Resources plc, where he served primanly as Finance Director Paladin Resources plc
raised £120 milhon in 4 separate primary offenngs before the company was sold to Talisman Energy Inc for approxmately £1 2 billion

in 2006 Mr McDowell 15 currently a Non-Executive Director at Pitkin Petroleum, a privately owned international upstream a1l and

gas company

Resolution 8 — authority to issue shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 16 August 2012, the Directors were authonised, In accordance with section 551 of the 2006 Act,
to allot Ordinary Shares, grant nights to subscribe or to convert any secunty into Ordinary Shares up 1o an aggregate nominal amount of
£5,406,830 This authonty expires at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting

It 15 therefore proposed to revoke the existing authority and replace it with a new authonty, granted under section 551 of the 2006 Act,
which will allow the Directors to allot Ordinary Shares and to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any securities into Ordinary Shares
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,333,688 representing approximately one third of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company and a further aggregate nominal amount of £6,333,688 representing approxtmately a further third of such 1ssued share
caprtal, which will e avaifable only for nghts issues and other pre-emptive issues of equity shares

The proposal that the authonty to allot Ordinary Shares shall extend to a further third of the 1ssued share capital 1s in accordance
with the guidelines 1ssued by the Association of British Insurers (“ABI") which confine the use of this amount to rights 1ssues only
The Directors have no gresent intention of exerasing this authonty However, if they do exercise the authonty, the Directors intend
1o follow the emerging best practice as regards its use {including as regards Directors standing for re-election) as recommended by
the ABI and the Naticnal Assocation of Pension Funds

Assuming the passing of the Resolution, the new autherity will expire 15 months fram the date of the passing of the Resolution or
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting. if earlier, and wall revoke alt previous authoniises to the extent that they have
not alreacy been uthsed apart from other specific authonties taken in respect of outstanding warrants and options which will continue
unaffected The Drrectors have no present intention of 1ssuing any share capital of the Company, but the passing of this Resolution

will enable the Directors to take advantage of any epportunities which may arnise
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Proposed Business of the Annual General Meeting continued

Resolution 9 — disapplication of pre-emption nghts

Section 561 of the 2006 Act contains pre-emption rights that require all equity shares which it 1s propesed to allot for cash to be offered
to existing shareholders in proportion to existing shareholdings, unless a special resolution 15 passed to disapply such nights Such nghts
do not apply to an issue otherwise than for cash, such as an issue In consideration of an acquisiion The Directors believe that these
requiIrements are too restrictive and, 1t 1s proposed that, subject to the passing of Resolution 8, the Directors should be able to allot shares
amounting to no more than an aggregate nominal amount of £2,850,159 representing approximately 15 per cent of the equity share
capital of the Company (ncluding treasury shares) immediately after the passing of Resolution 8 otherwise than on a pre-emptive basis

In addition, 1t 1s customary to disapply the statutory pre-emption nghts altogether, and substitute similar non-statutory provistons because,
far techrical reasons, the statutory nights are difficult to apply in certain arcumstances The proposed Resolution therefore provides that
all allotments for cash in excess of the 15 per cent limat, must be i the form of nghts issues, apen offers or other pre-emptive 1ssues
except for the one third of the existing 1ssued share capital reserved only for nghts issues in accordance with the previous Resolution,

and free of the statutory constraints The broadening of the proposed Resolution to indude pre-emptive issues other than nghts issues

15 @ departure from the strict wording of the ABI guidelines which s mited te nights sssues, which the Directors regard as too restrictive
especially as AIM companies normally make open offers and not nghts issues The above departures in Resolutions 8 and 9 from the strict
wording of the ABI guidelines should not be taken to indicate that they are being disregarded, but rather that the proposed Resolutions
are designed to prowide greater flexibility for the Directors to determine the form of any future pre-emptive 1ssues in the light of market
conditions and practice, at the time such an issue may be proposed

Resolution 10 - adoption of New Articles
The Articles have been amended to reflect changes in legislation since the adoption of the Articles The New Articles reflect current
legrslatron and practice

Action to be Taken

A Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting 15 enclosed If you are a Shareholder you are advised to complete and return the
form in accordance with the instructions printed on 1t 50 as to arnve at the Company‘s registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc, The
Pavilions, Bridgewater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY, as soon as possible, but in any event no later than 10 30am on & August 2013 Alternatively,
you may cast your proxy online by following the instructions printed on the form, such electronic appontment must also be made no later
than 10 30am on 6 August 2013

The return of a Form of Proxy or the electronic appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending and voting at the Annual
General Meeting 1f you so wish

Recommendation

The Drrectors consider the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be in the best interests of the Company and

its Shareholders Accordingly, the Directors unamimously recommend Shareholders to vote in favour of all the Resolutions, as they intend
to do In respect of their own holdings (where they control the votng nghts) compnsing 38,565,062 Ordinary Shares, representing
approximately 20 29% of the i1ssued share capital of the Company
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of 1Gas Energy plc will be held at the offices of Mornson & Foerster (UK) LLP,
CityPoint, One Ropemnaker Street, London EC2Y 9AW at 10 30 am on Thursday 8 August 2013 to consider, and «f thought fit, pass the
following Resalutions of which Resolutions 1 to 8 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and Resolutions 9 and 10 will be proposed
as speaal resolutions

Ordinary Business
i To receve and adopt the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts for the 12 month period ended 31 March 2013 and the Directors'
Report, and the Independent Auditors” Report on those accounts

2 To receve and approve the Remuneration Report of the Directors for the 12 month penod ended 31 March 2013 and the independent
Auditors’ Report on the auditable part of the Remuneration Report

3 To reappoint as a Director, John Bryant, who s retining by rotation i accordance with Article 38 of the Campany's Articles of
Assocration and who being eligible 1s offenng limself for reappointment

4 To reappoint as a Director, Andrew Austin, who 1s retinng by rotation in accordance with Article 38 of the Company’s Articles of
Assoctation and who being eligible s offering himself for reappontment

5 To reappoint as a Director, Cuthbert McDowell, who 1s retiring by rotation in accordance with Artscle 33 2 of the Company's Articles
of Association ard who being eligible 1s offening himself for reappointment

6 To reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Meeting until the cenclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid

7 To authonise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditars

8 That in substitution for all exsting authonities for the allotment of shares by the Directors, which are hereby revoked but without
prejudice to any allotment, offer or agreement already made pursuant thereto, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally authonsed, pursuant to section 551 of the Compantes Act 2006 (the “2006 Act”) to exercise all
the powers of the Company to

(A) allot shares in the Company and to grant nghts to subscribe for or to convert any secunty into such shares {all of which transactions
are hereafter referred as an allotment of "relevant secunties”) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,333,688, and

(B) aliot equity secunities {within the meaning of section 560(1) of the 2006 Act) up to an aggregate nomunal amount of £6,333,688
In connection with a nights issue or other pre-emptive offer which satisfies the conditions and may be subject to all or any of the
exclusions spectied in paragraph (BX1) of the next following Resolution,

in each case for a period expirnng {unless previously renewed, vaned or revoked by the Company in general meeting) 15 months
after the date of the passing of this Resolution or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following
the passing of thus Resolution, whichever occurs first, provided that the Company may before such expiry, vanation or revocation
make an offer or agreement which would or might require such relevant or equity securities to be allotted after such expiry, vaniation
or revocation and the Directors may allot relevant or equity securities pursuant to such an offer or agreement as if the authority
conferred hereby had not expired or been vaned or revoked

Speaial Business

9 That, subject to and conditonally upon the passing of Resolution 8, the Directors are hereby empowered pursuant to section 570
of the 2006 Act to allot equity securities {as defined by sectign 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the authonity conferred
by Resolution 10 as if section 561 of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment prowided that such power

{A)shall, subject to the continuance of the authonty conferred by Resolution 8, expire 15 months after the passing of this Resolution
or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following the passing of this Resolution, whichever occurs
first, but may be previousty revoked or varied from time to tme by special resolution but so that the Company may before such
expiry, revocation or vanation make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securties to be allotted after such
expiry, revocation or vanation and the Directors may allot equity secunities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if such power
had not expired or been revoked or varied, and
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

{B) shall be hmited to

{1) the allotment of equity securities of up to an aggregate nommal amount of £6,333,688 pursuant to a nghts 1ssue, open offer,
scrip dividend scheme or other pre-emptive offer or scheme which is in each case in favour of holders of Ordinary Shares and
any other persons who are entitled to partiaipate in such 1ssue, offer or scheme where the equity secunties offered to each such
holder and other person are proportionate {as nearly as may be} 1o the respective numbers of Ordinary Shares held or deemed
to be held by them for the purposes of their inclusion in such sssue, offer or scheme on the record date applicable thereto, but
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deemn fit or expedient to deal wath fractional entitlernents,
legal or practical problems under the laws of any overseas territory, the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange
in any territory, shares being represented by depositary receipts, directions from any halders of shares or other persons to deal
In some other manner with their respective entitlernents or any other matter whatever which the Directors consider io require
such exclusions or other arrangements with the ability for the Directors to allot equity secunities and sell relevant shares not
taken up to any person as they may think fit, and

(2) the allotment of equity secunties for cash otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (BX1) up to an aggregate maxmum nominal
amount of £2,850,159

10 That the New Articles (inrualled by the Chairman and on display at the AGM) be adopted in substitution of the Company’s existing
articles of association with immediate effect

15 July 2013
By Order of the Board

MoFo Secretaries Limited
Company Secretary

Registered office
7 Down Street
London

W1} 7AT

NOTES

{1} A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and on a poll vote mstead of im A proxy need not also be a member
A Farm of Proxy i enclosed

{2) The Form of Proxy if used and the pawer of attorney or other autheority {1 any) under which 1tis signed or a certified copy of such power or authonty must be lodged at
Computershare investor Services PLC at The Pavilons Bridgwater Road Bristol BS99 6ZY or (dunng normal business hours) by hand to Computershare Investor Services PLC
at The Pawlons 8ridgwater Road Bnstel B399 6ZY not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting

{3} Completing and returning a Form of Proxy wili not preclude a member frem attending in person at the meeung and voting sheuld he or she wish to de so

{4

The Form of the Proxy must be signed and dated by the sharehoider or histher attorney duly authonsed in writing 1f the shareholder 15 a company 1t may execute under
its common seal Dy the signature of & drecior and its secretary or twa directors or other authensed signatonies in the name of the company or by the signature of a duly
authgrrsed officer or atlorney In the case of jont holders the vote of the semicr wha tenders a vote whether in person or in proxy will be accepted 1o the exclusion of the
votes of the other joint holders and for this purpose semority will be determined oy the order in which the names stand in the register of members n respect to the joint
holding Names of all joint holders should be stated

{5} Members wha hold Ordinary Shares in the Company in uncertificated form must have been entered on the Company s regrster of members by 6 00 prm on 6 August 2013
wn order 1o be entitled to attend and vole at the meeting Such members may only vote at the meeting in respect of Ordinary Shares in the Campany held at the ume 1f the
meeting s adjourned the time by which a person must be entered on the register of members in arder to have the nght to attend or vote at the adjourned meeting 1s

48 houwrs befare the date fixed for the adjourned meeung Changes to entries on the register of members after such times shall be disregarded in determiring the nights

of any person to attend or vote at the meeting

(6

in the absence ot instructions the person appointed proxy may vote ar abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit an the Resolutions and unless instructed otherwise
the persan appointed proxy may also vote or abstain fram voting as he or she thinks fit on any other business {including amendments to any Resclution} which may progerly
come before the meeting

(7} if you wish to appont as your proxy someone other than the Chairman of the meetng wnite the full name of your proxy in the space provided on the proxy form

(8) i two or mare vahd Forms of Proxy are delivered in respect of the same Ordinary Share the one which was delivered last {regardiess of its date or the date of its execution)
will be vald to the exclusion of any ones previously delivered
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